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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

b ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007
OR
0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission file number 001-13735

Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 36-3252484

(State of Incorporation) (L.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

501 West North Avenue, Melrose Park, Illinois 60160

(Address of principal executive offices including ZIP Code)

(708) 865-1053

(Registrant’s telephone number including Area Code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Depositary Shares each representing 1/100th of a Share of Series A
Noncumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock,
$25.00 liquidation preference, NASDAQ Global Market
(Title of Class)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Common Stock, $0.01 par value, NASDAQ Global Market
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yeso Nobp

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. Yeso Nobp

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yesp Noo

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated
by Reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. p

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting
company” in Ruler 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company o
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yeso Nop

The aggregate market value of the voting and nonvoting common equity held by nonaffiliates of the registrant on
June 30, 2007, based on the last sales price quoted on the NASDAQ Global Market System on that date, the last business
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day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was approximately $335.9 million.

As of March 14, 2008, the number of shares outstanding of the registrant’s common stock, par value $0.01 per share,
was 27,833,794.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated by reference
into Part II1.
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PART I

Item 1. Business
The Company

Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc., the Company, a Delaware corporation founded in 1983, is a community-based
bank holding company headquartered in Melrose Park, Illinois. Through its wholly owned subsidiaries, the
Company provides a wide range of services, including traditional banking services, personal and corporate trust
services, and insurance brokerage and retail securities brokerage services. The Company’s principal operating
subsidiary is Midwest Bank and Trust Company, the Bank, an Illinois state bank that operates 29 banking centers
in the Chicago metropolitan area. The Company operates in one business segment, community banking, providing
a full range of services to individual and corporate customers. Midwest Financial and Investment Services, Inc., a
subsidiary of the Bank, is a Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, FINRA, registered broker/dealer that
provides securities brokerage and insurance services to customers of the Bank.

The Company focuses on establishing and maintaining long-term relationships with customers and is
committed to providing for the financial services needs of the communities it serves. In particular, the Company
continues to emphasize its relationships with individual customers and small-to-medium-sized businesses. The
Company actively evaluates the credit needs of its markets, including low- and moderate-income areas, and offers
products that are responsive to the needs of its customer base. The markets served by the Company provide a mix
of real estate, commercial and industrial, and consumer lending opportunities, as well as a stable core deposit base.
The Company has expanded its trust administration and trust services activities along with broker/dealer activities.

2007 Developments

On October 1, 2007, the Company completed its acquisition of Northwest Suburban Bancorp, Inc., Northwest
Suburban, in a cash and stock merger transaction. At acquisition, Northwest Suburban had total assets of
$546.2 million. The agreement and plan of merger provided that the Company’s stock comprised up to 45% of the
purchase price, at an exchange ratio of 2.4551 shares of Company common stock for each Northwest Suburban
common share, and that the remainder be paid in cash at the rate of $42.75 for each share of Northwest Suburban
common stock. The Company issued 3.7 million shares of common stock, paid $81.2 million in cash, and incurred
$414,000 in costs which were capitalized for a total purchase price of $136.7 million. Mr. Dennis M. O’Hara, a
director of Northwest Suburban, joined the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank upon closing.
Mr. John G. Eilering, Northwest Suburban’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer joined the Bank as Area
President — Northwest. Mr. Stephan L. Markovits, President of Northwest Suburban joined the Bank as Executive
Vice President — Commercial Lending. The systems conversions were successfully completed during the
weekend of October 27. The Company used the proceeds from a $75.0 million term note under a borrowing
facility it has with a correspondent bank to pay for a portion of the cash requirement of the acquisition. The term
note has an initial rate of one-month LIBOR plus 140 basis points and matures on September 28, 2010.

This acquisition added five more branches and made the Company, based on deposits, the 17th largest bank in
the Chicago area as well as expanding the Company’s geographic footprint in the northwest suburbs. Northwest
Suburban’s branch locations in Des Plaines, Lakemoor, Lake Zurich, Mount Prospect, and North Barrington
provide a complimentary addition to the Company’s branches in northwest Cook, Kane, Lake, and McHenry
counties. In addition, the Company believes that this acquisition will contribute to expansion and diversification of
its loan portfolio, its deposit base, and its noninterest income. All key sales professionals from Northwest
Suburban were retained.

In July 2007, the Company entered into a joint marketing arrangement with the largest privately held
mortgage bank in Chicago. Through this arrangement, approximately fifteen of the Company’s employees became
employees of the mortgage bank, eliminating the fixed costs and regulatory risk associated with this very cyclical
and complex business. The marketing arrangement also enabled the Company to offer its customers an even
broader array of residential mortgage products.
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In December 2007, the Company raised $41.4 million in new equity capital, net of issuance costs, through an
offering of 1,725,000 depositary shares, including the over-allotment exercised by the underwriters, each
representing 1/100th of a share of its Series A noncumulative redeemable convertible perpetual preferred stock, at
$25.00 per depositary share. The infusion of capital strengthened the Company’s balance sheet as well as allowed
it to partially pay down balances outstanding on its term note and revolving line of credit and contribute capital to
the Bank.

During 2007, the Company repurchased 661,500 shares of its common stock at an average price of $14.25.
There remains 374,111 of capacity to repurchase shares on the Company’s existing authorized repurchase program
at December 31, 2007. See Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
for details on the common stock repurchased during 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, FNMA and FHLMC preferred equity securities represented $85.1 million or 11.0%
of the total amortized cost of the Company’s portfolio of investment securities and $66.0 million or 8.8% of the
fair value of the Company’s portfolio of Investment securities. Management does not believe the unrealized loss
on these equity securities of $19.2 million as of December 31, 2007 represents other-than-temporary impairment
as of that date. These unrealized losses are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates as well as turbulent
economic conditions impacting the credit markets in the second half of 2007. See Note 5 — Securities to the
consolidated financial statements for more details on the Company’s securities portfolio.

2006 Developments

On July 1, 2006, the Company acquired Royal American Corporation, Royal American, a bank holding
company, in a cash and stock merger transaction. At acquisition, Royal American had total assets of
$561.2 million. The Company’s stock comprised approximately 50% of the purchase price, at an exchange ratio of
3.58429 shares of Company common stock for each Royal American common share, and the remainder was paid
in cash at the rate of $80 for each share of Royal American common shares. The Company issued 2.9 million
common shares, paid $64.6 million in cash, and incurred $795,000 in costs that were capitalized for a total
purchase price of $129.2 million.

The acquisition of Royal American diversified the Company’s deposit and lending mix as well as its sources
of noninterest income. Mr. J. J. Fritz, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Royal American, along with
Mr. Thomas A. Rosenquist, a director of Royal American, joined the Boards of Directors of the Company and
Bank. In addition, Mr. Fritz now serves as an Executive Vice President of the Company and President and Chief
Operating Officer of the Bank. The executive management team of the Bank was expanded with the addition of
other Royal American executives. Each key revenue producer from Royal American has been retained.

During 2006, the Company repurchased 204,188 shares of its common stock at an average price of $23.37.
These shares were acquired in private and public transactions as part of the Company’s 5% stock repurchase
program.

Earnings for 2006 were reduced by provisions for loan losses recorded to reflect the deterioration of one large
lending relationship. Developments in this customer’s operations, relating to uncertainty of the customer’s ability
to collect a large account receivable, prompted the Company to record a $5.5 million provision for loan losses and
charge off $7.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2006. The Company also recorded a loan loss provision of
$5.0 million relating to this problem relationship in the second quarter of 2006.

Strategy

The Company’s strategic plan emphasizes expanded penetration of the community banking market in the
Chicago metropolitan area, along with strong management of asset quality and risk. Initiatives implemented
beginning in 2005 have increased the level of stockholders’ equity, added to the depth of management, improved
the yield of the securities portfolio and improved operational controls. Among the strategies developed to achieve
growth targets are:

Expand and diversify loan portfolio. The Company has increased its staff of commercial loan officers and
assigned more aggressive goals for loan origination. The Royal American acquisition significantly enhanced loan
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portfolio diversification along with adding seasoned management with strong credit and new business
development skills. The Northwest Suburban acquisition further enhanced loan portfolio diversification and the
talent pool. Additional growth is expected in commercial and industrial lending, as commercial real estate and
construction lending should continue to decline as a percentage of the total loan portfolio. Beyond loan growth
itself, the Company is seeking more commercial and industrial loans and retail loans to balance better the strong
portfolio of real estate lending.

Expand deposit base. To fund loan growth, the Company is focused on core deposit generation, including
demand, interest-bearing demand, money market, and savings deposits. The Royal American and Northwest
Suburban acquisitions added strong core deposit bases. The Company has changed and expanded staffing and
management at its banking centers and initiated a number of customer outreach initiatives to expand deposits in a
highly competitive market environment. The Company maintains a performance-driven sales environment and
seeks to increase customer activity in its branches. The competitive Chicago market continues to be a challenging
environment for attracting low cost core deposits.

Expand footprint in Chicago market. The Company plans to expand in the Chicago market through
acquisitions and selective branch opportunities, in addition to internal growth. The Company consummated the
acquisitions of Royal American and Northwest Suburban, as discussed earlier, which expanded the Company’s
number of branches from 18 to 29.

The acquisition of Northwest Suburban and Royal American promoted the Company’s strategic plans by:
» Expanding the community banking market penetration;
» Adding experienced key executives;

» Expanding the size of the loan portfolio and diversifying its risk profile by increasing the percentage of
commercial and industrial loans and owner-occupied commercial real estate loans, while decreasing the
percentage of construction loans;

» Expanding the deposit base by adding a higher percentage of noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing
demand deposit, money market, and savings accounts; and

* Acquiring approximately $200.0 million in managed trust assets.

The Company opened a branch in Franklin Park, Illinois in June 2006. Management believes the Chicago
market to be saturated and its preferred strategy is to increase the number of branches through acquisition.

Expand noninterest income. The Company is focusing on opportunities to build the contribution of fees as a
percentage of revenue, emphasizing corporate cash management, and insurance, investment, and trust services.

Management believes its growth strategies to be fundamentally sound and based on reasonable opportunities
available in the Chicago market. The Company has established internal benchmarks for each growth initiative and
has taken a number of steps to align compensation with achievement of these benchmarks. During the third quarter
0f 2007, the Company launched an enhanced sales initiative aimed at increasing cross-selling to both new and
existing customers. Management believes it has already begun to show positive results. Additional initiatives
begun in the fourth quarter of 2007 included a marketing campaign aimed at the Company’s community bank
brand and risk-based pricing for consumer loans.

The Company also continues to pursue opportunities to control expenses. In July 2007, the Company entered
into a joint marketing arrangement with the largest privately held mortgage bank in Chicago. Through this
arrangement, approximately fifteen of the Company’s employees became employees of this mortgage bank,
eliminating the fixed costs associated with this very cyclical business. This also enabled the Company to offer its
customers an even broader array of residential mortgage products.
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Certain information with respect to the Bank and the Company’s nonbank subsidiaries as of December 31,

2007, is set forth below:

Company Subsidiaries

Banks:

Midwest Bank and Trust Company

Non-banks:

MBTC Investment Company

Midwest Funding, L.L.C.

MBHI Capital Trust III

MBHI Capital Trust [V

MBHI Capital Trust V

Royal Capital Trust I

Northwest Capital Trust I

Midwest Financial and Investment
Services, Inc.

%%
sk

skskoskosk

History
The Bank

‘Headquarters

Elmwood Park,
IL

Las Vegas, NV
Melrose Park, IL
Melrose Park, IL
Melrose Park, IL
Melrose Park, IL
Melrose Park, IL
Melrose Park, IL
Elmwood Park,
IL

Provides securities brokerage services.

Number of
Banking Centers

‘Market Area or Offices

Addison, Algonquin, 29
Bensenville, Bloomingdale,
Buffalo Grove, Chicago, Des
Plaines, Downers Grove, Elgin,
Elmwood Park, Franklin Park,
Glenview, Hinsdale, Inverness,
Island Lake, Lakemoor, Lake
Zurich, Long Grove, McHenry,
Melrose Park, Mount Prospect,
Naperville, Norridge, North
Barrington, Roselle, and Union

*
sk 1
skeskosk
ek
skeskosk
ek
skeskeosk

Provides additional investment portfolio management to the Bank.
Provides real estate management services to the Bank.

The trust is a statutory business trust formed as a financing subsidiary of the Company.

Midwest Bank and Trust Company was established in 1959 in Elmwood Park, Illinois to provide community
and commercial banking services to individuals and businesses in the neighboring western suburbs of Chicago.
The Company has pursued growth opportunities through acquisitions and the establishment of new branches. The

more recent are described below.

* On January 3, 2003, the Company completed the acquisition of Big Foot Financial Corp., BFFC. BFFC was
the holding company for Fairfield Savings Bank, F.S.B. with approximately $200 million in total assets at
December 31, 2002, and three branches in Chicago, Long Grove, and Norridge which were merged into the
Bank. The Company issued a total of 1,599,088 shares in the transaction. Fairfield Savings Bank, F.S.B.
merged into the Bank on January 3, 2003.

* In 2004, the Bank added new branches in Addison and Glenview, Illinois.

* In September 2005, the Company sold Midwest Bank of Western Illinois and its insurance agency
subsidiary in order to focus on the Chicago metropolitan area.

» The Company opened a branch in Franklin Park, Illinois in 2006.
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* On July 1, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of Royal American. The Company issued
2.9 million common shares, paid $64.6 million in cash, and incurred $795,000 in costs that were capitalized
for a total purchase price of $129.2 million. Royal American Bank merged into the Bank on July 1, 2006.

* On October 1, 2007, the Company, completed its acquisition of Northwest Suburban. The Company issued
3.7 million common shares, paid $81.2 million in cash, and incurred $414,000 in costs which were
capitalized for a total purchase price of $136.7 million. Mount Prospect National Bank merged into the
Bank on October 1, 2007.

As discussed in the “Strategy”
section, the Company plans to enlarge its presence in the Chicago market and will be selective in the manner in
which it accomplishes this expansion. Management believes that there will be limited branch opportunities;
however it is looking to acquire targets that would meet its objectives including diversifying the loan and deposit
mix and reducing the Company’s risk profile.

Non-bank Subsidiaries

The Company’s non-bank subsidiaries were established to support the retail and commercial banking
activities of the Bank.

In August 2002, the Bank established MBTC Investment Company. This subsidiary was capitalized through
the transfer of investment securities from the Bank and was formed to diversify management of that portion of the
Company’s securities portfolio. In May 2006, MBTC Investment Company established Midwest Funding, L.L.C.
This subsidiary holds real estate assets.

In July 2006, the Bank acquired Midwest Financial and Investment Services, Inc., Midwest Financial, a
registered bank-affiliated securities broker-dealer and registered investment advisor, through the Royal American
merger. Midwest Financial is registered with the SEC as a broker-dealer and is a member of FINRA. It operates a
general securities business as an introducing broker-dealer.

The Company formed four statutory trusts between October 2002 and June 2005 to issue $54.0 million in
floating-rate trust preferred securities. Through the Royal American merger in July 2006, the Company acquired a
statutory trust that in April 2004 had issued $10.0 million in trust preferred securities. These trust preferred
securities have a fixed rate until the optional redemption date and a floating rate thereafter until maturity. Through
the Northwest Suburban merger in October 2007, the Company acquired a statutory trust that in May 2004 had
issued $10.0 million in floating-rate trust preferred securities. These offerings were pooled private placements
exempt from registration under the Securities Act pursuant to Section 4(2) thereunder. In November 2007, the
Company redeemed $15.0 million in trust preferred securities originally issued through MBHI Capital Trust II.
The Company has provided a full, irrevocable, and unconditional subordinated guarantee of the obligations of the
five trusts under the preferred securities. The Company is obligated to fund dividends on these securities before it
can pay dividends on its shares of common and preferred stock. See Note 14 to the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. These five trusts and their trust preferred securities are detailed below as follows:

Mandatory Optional

Redemption Redemption
Issuer Issue Date Amount Rate Date Date

(In thousands)
MBHI Capital Trust III December 19,2003 $ 9,000 LIBOR+3.00% December 30, 2033 December 30, 2008
MBHI Capital Trust IV December 19, 2003 $ 10,000 LIBOR+2.85% January 23,2034 January 23, 2009
MBHI Capital Trust V June 7, 2005 $ 20,000 LIBOR+1.77% June 15, 2035 June 15, 2010
6.62% until July 23, 2009;
Royal Capital Trust I April 30,2004 $ 10,000 LIBOR+2.75% thereafter July 23, 2034 July 23, 2009
Northwest Suburban Capital
Trust I May 18, 2004 $ 10,000 LIBOR+2.70% July 23,2034 July 23, 2009

Markets

The largest segments of the Company’s customer base live and work in relatively mature markets in Cook,
DuPage, Kane, Lake, and McHenry Counties. The Company considers its primary market areas to be those areas
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immediately surrounding its offices for retail customers and generally within a 10-20 mile radius for commercial
relationships. The Bank operates 29 full-service locations in the Chicago metropolitan area. The communities in
which the Bank’s offices are located have a broad spectrum of demographic characteristics. These communities
include a number of densely populated areas as well as suburban areas, and some extremely high-income areas as
well as many middle-income and some low-to-moderate income areas.

Competition

The Company competes in the financial services industry through the Bank and Midwest Financial. The
financial services business is highly competitive. The Company encounters strong direct competition for deposits,
loans, and other financial services with the Company’s principal competitors including other commercial banks,
savings banks, savings and loan associations, mutual funds, money market funds, finance companies, credit
unions, mortgage companies, insurance companies and agencies, private issuers of debt obligations and suppliers
of other investment alternatives, such as securities firms.

Several major multi-bank holding companies operate in the Chicago metropolitan market. Generally, these
financial institutions are significantly larger than the Company and have access to greater capital and other
resources. Over the past few years, several hundred new bank branches have opened in the Company’s
marketplace. Deposit pricing is competitive with promotional rates frequently offered by competitors. In addition,
many of the Company’s non-bank competitors are not subject to the same degree of regulation as that imposed on
bank holding companies, federally insured banks, and Illinois-chartered banks. As a result, such non-bank
competitors have advantages over the Company in providing certain services.

The Company addresses these competitive challenges by creating market differentiation and by maintaining
an independent community bank presence with local decision-making within its markets. The Bank competes for
deposits principally by offering depositors a variety of deposit programs, convenient office locations and hours,
and other services. The Bank competes for loan originations primarily through the interest rates and loan fees
charged, the efficiency and quality of services provided to borrowers, the variety of loan products, and a trained
staff of professional bankers.

The Company competes for qualified personnel by offering competitive levels of compensation, management
and employee cash incentive programs, and by augmenting compensation with stock options and restricted stock
grants pursuant to its stock and incentive plan. Attracting and retaining high quality employees is important in
enabling the Company to compete effectively for market share.

The Chicago market is highly competitive making it more difficult to retain and attract customer relationships.
The Company recognizes this and has initiatives to address the competition. Part of the Company’s marketing
strategy is to create a performance-driven sales environment, increase activity in its branches, launch a renewed
promotional image, and build and market a strong private banking program.

Products and Services

Deposit Products

Management believes the Bank offers competitive deposit products and programs which address the needs of
customers in each of the local markets served. These products include:

Checking and Interest-bearing Checking Accounts. The Company has developed a range of different
checking account products (e.g., Free Checking and Business Advantage Checking) designed and priced to meet
specific target segments of the local markets served by each branch.

Savings and Money Market Accounts. The Company offers multiple types of money market accounts and
savings accounts (e.g., Relationship Savings which offers higher rates with deeper banking relationships).

Time Deposits. The Company offers a wide range of innovative time deposits (including traditional and Roth
Individual Retirement Accounts), usually offered at premium rates with special features to protect the customer’s
interest earnings in changing interest rate environments.
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Lending Services

The Company’s loan portfolio consists of commercial loans, construction loans, commercial real estate loans,
consumer real estate loans, and consumer loans. Management emphasizes credit quality and seeks to avoid undue
concentrations of loans to a single industry or based on a single class of collateral. The Company generally
requires personal guarantees of the principal except on cash secured, state or political subdivision, or not-for-profit
organization loans. The Company has focused its efforts on building its lending business in the following areas:

Commercial Loans. Commercial and industrial loans are made to small-to medium-sized businesses that are
sole proprietorships, partnerships, and corporations. Generally, these loans are secured with collateral including
accounts receivable, inventory and equipment. The personal guarantees of the principals may also be required.
Frequently, these loans are further secured with real estate collateral. In the forth quarter of 2007, owner- occupied
commercial real estate loans, where repayment is not dependent on the real estate collateral, were reclassified as
commercial loans where previously they were included in the commercial real estate classification.

Construction Loans. Construction loans include loans for land development and for commercial and
residential development and improvements. The majority of these loans are in-market to known and established
borrowers. During 2007, these types of loans decreased as a percentage of the loan portfolio to 18.0% at
December 31, 2007 from 21.8% at December 31, 2006.

Commercial Real Estate Loans. Commercial real estate loans are loans secured by the real estate including
farmland, multifamily residential properties, and other nonfarm-nonresidential properties. These loans are
generally short-term balloon loans, with fixed or adjustable rate mortgages and terms of one to five years.

Consumer Real Estate Loans. Consumer real estate loans are made to finance residential units that will house
from one to four families. While the Company originates both fixed and adjustable rate consumer real estate loans,
most medium-term fixed-rate loans originated pursuant to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac guidelines were sold in
the secondary market. In the normal course of business, the Company retains one-to five-year adjustable rate
loans. The Company exited the residential mortgage origination business in June 2007.

Home equity lines of credit, included within the Company’s consumer real estate loan portfolio, are secured
by the borrower’s home and can be drawn at the discretion of the borrower. These lines of credit are generally at
variable interest rates. Home equity lines, combined with the outstanding loan balance of prior mortgage loans,
generally do not exceed 80% of the appraised value of the underlying real estate collateral.

Consumer Loans. Consumer loans (other than consumer real estate loans) are collateralized loans to
individuals for various personal purposes such as automobile financing.

Lending officers are assigned various levels of loan approval authority based upon their respective levels of
experience and expertise. Loan approval is also subject to the Company’s formal loan policy, as established by the
Bank’s Board of Directors. The Bank’s loan policies establish lending authority and limits on an individual and
committee basis. The loan approval process is designed to facilitate timely decisions while adhering to policy
parameters and risk management targets.

ATMs

The Bank maintains a network of 31 ATM sites generally located within the Bank’s local market. All ATMs,
with the exception of one, are owned by the Bank. Twenty-seven of the ATM sites are located at various banking
centers and four are maintained off-site. The Bank is now a member of the STAR Allpoint/STARSsf Network. The
Bank’s participation allows customers to access their accounts at 32,000 surcharge-free Allpoint/STARSf ATMs
nationwide with over 1,000 of them in the Chicagoland area.

Trust Activities

The Bank offers personal and corporate trust, employee benefit trust, land trust, and agencies, custody, and
escrow services. As of December 31, 2007, the Bank maintained trust relationships holding an aggregate market
value of $256.5 million in assets and administered 1,632 land trust accounts.
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Insurance and Securities Brokerage

The Bank’s subsidiary, Midwest Financial is registered with the SEC as a broker-dealer and is a member of
FINRA. Midwest Financial operates a general securities business as an introducing broker-dealer. The area served
by Midwest Financial is the Chicago metropolitan area. It holds neither customer accounts nor customers’
securities. Licensed brokers serve all branches and provide insurance and investment-related services, including
securities trading, financial planning, mutual funds sales, fixed and variable rate annuities, and tax-exempt and
conventional unit trusts. This activity furthers one of the Company’s strategic goals of increasing revenues from
investment sources to enhance the Company’s profitability.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, the Company and its subsidiaries had 539 full-time equivalent employees
compared to 496 full-time equivalent employees a year ago. The increase is mainly attributable to the acquisition
of Northwest Suburban. Management considers its relationship with its employees to be good.

Available Information

The Company’s internet address is www.midwestbanc.com. The Company is an SEC registrant and posts its
SEC filings, including Forms 10-K, 10-Q, 8-K, and amendments thereto, on its website under Investor Relations
on the day they are filed. The Company will also provide free copies of its filings upon written request to: Investor
Relations, 501 West North Ave., Melrose Park, IL 60160.

The public may read and copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Company is an electronic filer. The SEC maintains
an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers
that file electronically with the SEC at the SEC’s site: http://www.sec.gov.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Bank holding companies and banks are extensively regulated under federal and state law. References under
this heading to applicable statutes or regulations are brief summaries of portions thereof which do not purport to be
complete and which are qualified in their entirety by reference to those statutes and regulations. Any change in
applicable laws or regulations may have a material adverse effect on the business of commercial banks and bank
holding companies, including the Company and the Bank. However, management is not aware of any current
recommendations by any regulatory authority which, if implemented, would have or would be reasonably likely to
have a material effect on the liquidity, capital resources or operations of the Company or the Bank. Finally, please
remember that the supervision, regulation and examination of banks and bank holding companies by bank
regulatory agencies are intended primarily for the protection of depositors rather than stockholders of banks and
bank holding companies.

Bank Holding Company Regulation

The Company is registered as a “bank holding company” with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System, the Federal Reserve, and, accordingly, is subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve
under the Bank Holding Company Act, the Bank Holding Company Act and the regulations issued thereunder are
collectively referred to as the BHC Act. The Company is required to file with the Federal Reserve periodic reports
and such additional information as the Federal Reserve may require pursuant to the BHC Act. The Federal Reserve
examines the Company and the Bank, and may examine the Company’s other subsidiaries.

The BHC Act requires prior Federal Reserve approval for, among other things, the acquisition by a bank
holding company of direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares or substantially
all the assets of any bank, or for a merger or consolidation of a bank holding company with another bank holding
company. With certain exceptions, the BHC Act prohibits a bank holding company from acquiring direct or
indirect ownership or control of voting shares of any company which is not a bank or bank holding company and
from
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engaging directly or indirectly in any activity other than banking or managing or controlling banks or performing
services for its authorized subsidiaries. A bank holding company may, however, engage in or acquire an interest in
a company that engages in activities which the Federal Reserve has determined, by regulation or order, to be so
closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto, such as performing
functions or activities that may be performed by a trust company, or acting as an investment or financial advisor.
The Federal Reserve, however, expects bank holding companies to maintain strong capital positions while
experiencing growth. In addition, the Federal Reserve, as a matter of policy, may require a bank holding company
to be well-capitalized at the time of filing an acquisition application and upon consummation of the acquisition.

Under the BHC Act, the Company and the Bank are prohibited from engaging in certain tie-in arrangements
in connection with an extension of credit, lease, sale of property or furnishing of services. This means that, except
with respect to traditional banking products, the Company may not condition a customer’s purchase of one of its
services on the purchase of another service.

The passage of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act allows bank holding companies to become financial holding
companies. Financial holding companies do not face the same prohibitions against the entry into certain business
transactions that bank holding companies currently face.

Under the Illinois Banking Act, any person who acquires 25% or more of the Company’s stock may be
required to obtain the prior approval of the Illinois Department of Financial and Professional Regulation, the
IDFPR. Under the Change in Bank Control Act, a person may be required to obtain the prior approval of the
Federal Reserve before acquiring the power to directly or indirectly control the management, operations or policies
of the Company or before acquiring 10% or more of any class of its outstanding voting stock.

It is the policy of the Federal Reserve that the Company is expected to act as a source of financial strength to
the Bank and to commit resources to support the Bank. The Federal Reserve takes the position that in
implementing this policy, it may require the Company to provide such support when the Company otherwise
would not consider itself able to do so.

The Federal Reserve has adopted risk-based capital requirements for assessing bank holding company capital
adequacy. These standards define regulatory capital and establish minimum capital ratios in relation to assets, both
on an aggregate basis and as adjusted for credit risks and off-balance-sheet exposures. The Federal Reserve’s
risk-based guidelines apply on a consolidated basis for bank holding companies with consolidated assets of
$150 million or more. Under the Federal Reserve’s risk-based guidelines, capital is classified into two categories.
For bank holding companies, Tier 1, or “core”, capital consists of common stockholders’ equity, qualifying
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock (including related surplus), qualifying cumulative perpetual preferred
stock (including related surplus, subject to certain limitations) and minority interests in the common equity
accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, and is reduced by goodwill, and specified intangible assets (“Tier 1
Capital”). Tier 2 Capital, or “supplementary” capital, consists of the allowance for loan and lease losses, perpetual
preferred stock and related surplus, “hybrid capital instruments,” unrealized holding gains on equity securities,
perpetual debt and mandatory convertible debt securities, and term subordinated debt and intermediate-term
preferred stock, including related surplus.

Under the Federal Reserve’s capital guidelines, bank holding companies are required to maintain a minimum
ratio of qualifying total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8%, of which at least 4% must be in the form of Tier 1
Capital. The Federal Reserve also requires a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital to total assets of 3% for
strong bank holding companies (those rated a composite “1” under the Federal Reserve’s rating system). For all
other bank holding companies, the minimum ratio of Tier | capital to total assets is 4%. In addition, the Federal
Reserve continues to consider the Tier 1 leverage ratio in evaluating proposals for expansion or new activities.

In its capital adequacy guidelines, the Federal Reserve emphasizes that the foregoing standards are
supervisory minimums and that banking organizations generally are expected to operate well above the minimum
ratios. These guidelines also provide that banking organizations experiencing growth, whether internally or by
making acquisitions, are expected to maintain strong capital positions substantially above the minimum levels.
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As of December 31, 2007, the Company had regulatory capital in excess of the Federal Reserve’s minimum
requirements. The Company had a total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of 10.2%, a Tier 1 capital to
risk-weighted assets ratio of 9.2%, and a leverage ratio of 7.3% as of December 31, 2007. See “Capital
Resources.”

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 implemented legislative reforms intended to prevent corporate and
accounting fraud. In addition to the establishment of a new accounting oversight board which enforces auditing,
quality control and independence standards and is funded by fees from all publicly traded companies, the
legislation and the related regulations restrict provision of both auditing and consulting services by accounting
firms. To ensure auditor independence, any non-audit services being provided to an audit client require
pre-approval by the company’s audit committee. In addition, audit partners must be rotated. The legislation and the
related regulations require the principal chief executive officer and the principal chief financial officer to certify to
the accuracy of periodic reports filed with the SEC and subject them to civil and criminal penalties if they
knowingly or willfully violate this certification requirement. In addition, counsel is required to report evidence of a
material violation of the securities laws or a breach of fiduciary duty by a company to its chief executive officer or
its chief legal officer, and, if such officer does not appropriately respond, to report such evidence to the audit
committee or other similar committee of the board of directors or the board itself.

The legislation provides for disgorgement of bonuses issued to top executives prior to restatement of a
company’s financial statements if such restatement was due to corporate misconduct. Executives are also
prohibited from insider trading during pension fund “blackout” periods, and loans to company executives are
restricted. The legislation and the related regulations accelerated the time frame for disclosures by public
companies, as they must immediately disclose any material changes in their financial condition or operations.
Directors and executive officers must also provide information for most changes in ownership in a company’s
securities within two business days of the change.

The legislation and the related regulations also increase the oversight of, and codifies certain requirements
relating to audit committees of public companies and how they interact with the company’s registered public
accounting firm. Audit committee members must be independent and are barred from accepting consulting,
advisory or other compensatory fees from the company. In addition, companies must disclose whether at least one
member of the committee is a “financial expert” as defined by the SEC and if not, why not. The SEC has also
prescribed rules requiring inclusion of an internal control report and assessment by management in the annual
report to shareholders. The registered public accounting firm issues an audit report expressing an opinion on the
fair presentation of the financial statements and on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.
See “Item 9A. Controls and Procedures” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As a bank holding company, the Company is primarily dependent upon dividend distributions from its
operating subsidiaries for its income. Federal and state statutes and regulations impose restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company and the Bank.

Federal Reserve policy provides that a bank holding company should not pay dividends unless (i) the bank
holding company’s net income over the prior year is sufficient to fully fund the dividends and (ii) the prospective
rate of earnings retention appears consistent with the capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition of
the bank holding company and its subsidiaries.

Delaware law also places certain limitations on the ability of the Company to pay dividends. For example, the
Company may not pay dividends to its stockholders if, after giving effect to the dividend, the Company would not
be able to pay its debts as they become due. Because a major source of the Company’s revenues is dividends the
Company receives and expects to receive from the Bank, the Company’s ability to pay dividends is likely to be
dependent on the amount of dividends paid by the Bank. No assurance can be given that the Bank will continue to
pay such dividends to the Company on its stock.

Bank Regulation

Under Illinois law, the Bank is subject to supervision and examination by IDFPR. The Bank is a member of
the Federal Reserve System and as such is also subject to examination by the Federal Reserve. The Federal
Reserve also supervises compliance with the provisions of federal law and regulations, which place restrictions on
loans by
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member banks to their directors, executive officers and other controlling persons. The Bank is also a member of
the FHLB of Chicago and may be subject to examination by the FHLB of Chicago. Any affiliates of the Bank and
the Company are also subject to examination by the Federal Reserve.

The deposits of the Bank are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund, the DIF, under the provisions of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Act, the FDIA, and the Bank is, therefore, also subject to supervision and examination
by the FDIC. The FDIA requires that the appropriate federal regulatory authority approve any merger and/or
consolidation by or with an insured bank, as well as the establishment or relocation of any bank or branch office.
The FDIA also gives the Federal Reserve and other federal bank regulatory agencies power to issue cease and
desist orders against banks, holding companies or persons regarded as “institution affiliated parties.” A cease and
desist order can either prohibit such entities from engaging in certain unsafe and unsound bank activity or can
require them to take certain affirmative action.

Furthermore, banks are affected by the credit policies of the Federal Reserve, which regulates the national
supply of bank credit. Such regulation influences overall growth of bank loans, investments and deposits and may
also affect interest rates charged on loans and paid on deposits. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve have
had a significant effect on the operating results of commercial banks in the past and are expected to continue to do
so in the future.

As discussed above, under Illinois law, the Bank is subject to supervision and examination by IDFPR, and, as
a member of the Federal Reserve System, by the Federal Reverse. Each of these regulatory agencies conducts
routine, periodic examinations of the Bank and the Company.

Financial Institution Regulation

Transactions with Affiliates. Transactions between a bank and its holding company or other affiliates are
subject to various restrictions imposed by state and federal regulatory agencies. Such transactions include loans
and other extensions of credit, purchases of securities and other assets and payments of fees or other distributions.
In general, these restrictions limit the amount of transactions between a bank and an affiliate of such bank, as well
as the aggregate amount of transactions between a bank and all of its affiliates, impose collateral requirements in
some cases and require transactions with affiliates to be on terms comparable to those for transactions with
unaffiliated entities.

Dividend Limitations. As a state member bank, the Bank may not, without the approval of the Federal
Reserve, declare a dividend if the total of all dividends declared in a calendar year exceeds the total of its net
income for that year, combined with its retained net income of the preceding two years, less any required transfers
to the surplus account. Under Illinois law, the Bank may not pay dividends in an amount greater than its net profits
then on hand, after deducting losses and bad debts. For the purpose of determining the amount of dividends that an
Illinois bank may pay, bad debts are defined as debts upon which interest is past due and unpaid for a period of six
months or more, unless such debts are well-secured and in the process of collection.

In addition to the foregoing, the ability of the Company and the Bank to pay dividends may be affected by the
various minimum capital requirements and the capital and noncapital standards established under the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvements Act of 1991, FDICIA, as described below. The right of the
Company, its stockholders and its creditors to participate in any distribution of the assets or earnings of its
subsidiaries is further subject to the prior claims of creditors of the respective subsidiaries.

Capital Requirements. State member banks are required by the Federal Reserve to maintain certain minimum
capital levels. The Federal Reserve’s capital guidelines for state member banks require state member banks to
maintain a minimum ratio of qualifying total capital to risk-weighted assets of 8%, of which at least 4% must be in
the form of Tier 1 Capital. In addition, the Federal Reserve requires a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital to
total assets of 3% for strong banking institutions (those rated a composite “1”” under the Federal Reserve’s rating
system) and a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 Capital to total assets of 4% for all other banks.

At December 31, 2007, the Bank has a Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets ratio and a total capital to
risk-weighted assets ratio which meets the above requirements. The Bank has a Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets ratio of 11.6% and a total capital to risk-weighted assets ratio of 12.6%. See “Capital Resources.”
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Standards for Safety and Soundness. The Federal Reserve and the other federal bank regulatory agencies
have adopted a set of guidelines prescribing safety and soundness standards pursuant to FDICIA. The guidelines
establish general standards relating to internal controls and information systems, internal audit systems, loan
documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth and compensation, fees and benefits. In
general, the guidelines require, among other things, appropriate systems and practices to identify and manage the
risks and exposures specified in the guidelines. The guidelines prohibit excessive compensation as an unsafe and
unsound practice and describe compensation as excessive when the amounts paid are unreasonable or
disproportionate to the services performed by an executive officer, employee, director or principal shareholder. In
addition, the Federal Reserve adopted regulations that authorize, but do not require, the Federal Reserve to order
an institution that has been given notice by the Federal Reserve that it is not satisfying any of such safety and
soundness standards to submit a compliance plan. If, after being so notified, an institution fails to submit an
acceptable compliance plan or fails in any material respect to implement an accepted compliance plan, the Federal
Reserve must issue an order directing action to correct the deficiency and may issue an order directing other
actions of the types to which an undercapitalized association is subject under the “prompt corrective action”
provisions of FDICIA. If an institution fails to comply with such an order, the Federal Reserve may seek to
enforce such order in judicial proceedings and to impose civil money penalties. The Federal Reserve and the other
federal bank regulatory agencies also adopted guidelines for asset quality and earnings standards.

A range of other provisions in FDICIA include requirements applicable to closure of branches; additional
disclosures to depositors with respect to terms and interest rates applicable to deposit accounts; uniform
regulations for extensions of credit secured by real estate; restrictions on activities of and investments by
state-chartered banks; modification of accounting standards to conform to generally accepted accounting
principles including the reporting of off-balance-sheet items and supplemental disclosure of estimated fair market
value of assets and liabilities in financial statements filed with the banking regulators; increased penalties in
making or failing to file assessment reports with the FDIC; greater restrictions on extensions of credit to directors,
officers and principal stockholders; and increased reporting requirements on agricultural loans and loans to small
businesses.

In addition, the federal banking agencies adopted a final rule, which modified the risk-based capital standards
to provide for consideration of interest rate risk when assessing the capital adequacy of a bank. Under this rule, the
Federal Reserve and the FDIC must explicitly include a bank’s exposure to declines in the economic value of its
capital due to changes in interest rates as a factor in evaluating a bank’s capital adequacy. The federal banking
agencies also have adopted a joint agency policy statement providing guidance to banks for managing interest rate
risk. The policy statement emphasizes the importance of adequate oversight by management and a sound risk
management process. The assessment of interest rate risk management made by the bank’s examiners will be
incorporated into the bank’s overall risk management rating and used to determine the effectiveness of
management.

As part of their ongoing supervisory monitoring process, the federal regulatory agencies use certain criteria to
identify institutions that are potentially exposed to significant loan concentration risks. In 2007, the regulatory
agencies issued new guidelines relating to commercial real estate, CRE, lending risks. An institution experiencing
rapid growth in CRE lending, having notable exposure to a specific type of CRE, or approaching or exceeding the
specified CRE supervisory criteria may be subjected to further supervisory analysis. Because these are guidelines,
the supervisory monitoring criteria do not constitute limits on an institution’s lending activity but rather serve as
high-level indicators to identify institutions potentially exposed to CRE concentration risk. The criteria do not
constitute a “safe harbor” for institutions if other risk indicators are present. Existing capital adequacy guidelines
require an institution to hold capital commensurate with the level and nature of the risks to which it is exposed.
Regulatory agencies may consider the level and nature of inherent risk in an institution’s CRE portfolio along with
other factors to determine if an institution is maintaining an adequate capital level to serve as a buffer against
unexpected losses and can require such an institution to develop a plan for reducing its CRE concentrations or for
increasing or maintaining capital appropriate to the level and nature of its lending concentration risk.

Prompt Corrective Action. FDICIA requires the federal banking regulators to take prompt corrective action
with respect to depository institutions that fall below minimum capital standards and prohibits any depository
institution from making any capital distribution that would cause it to be undercapitalized. Institutions that are not
adequately capitalized may be subject to a variety of supervisory actions including, but not limited to, restrictions
on
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growth, investment activities, capital distributions and affiliate transactions and will be required to submit a capital
restoration plan which, to be accepted by the regulators, must be guaranteed in part by any company having
control of the institution (such as the Company). In other respects, FDICIA provides for enhanced supervisory
authority, including greater authority for the appointment of a conservator or receiver for undercapitalized
institutions. The capital-based prompt corrective action provisions of FDICIA and their implementing regulations
apply to FDIC-insured depository institutions. However, federal banking agencies have indicated that, in
regulating bank holding companies, the agencies may take appropriate action at the holding company level based
on their assessment of the effectiveness of supervisory actions imposed upon subsidiary insured depository
institutions pursuant to the prompt corrective action provisions of FDICIA.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. The Bank is required to pay deposit insurance premiums based on the risk it
poses to the DIF. The FDIC has authority to raise or lower assessment rates on insured deposits in order to achieve
statutorily required reserve ratios in the insurance funds and to impose special additional assessments.

On February 8, 2006, President Bush signed into law the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005, the
Reform Act.

The FDIC merged the Bank Insurance Fund, BIF, and the Savings Association Insurance fund, SAIF, to form
the DIF on March 31, 2006 in accordance with the Reform Act. The FDIC maintains the DIF by assessing
depository institutions an insurance premium. The FDIC annually sets the reserve level of the DIF within a
statutory range between 1.15% and 1.50% of insured deposits. The FDIC set the reserve level at 1.25% for 2007
and it will remain at that level for 2008. If the reserve level of the insurance fund falls below 1.15%, or is expected
to do so within six months, the FDIC must adopt a restoration plan that will restore the DIF to a 1.15% ratio
generally within five years. If the reserve level exceeds 1.35%, the FDIC may return some of the excess in the
form of dividends to insured institutions.

The FDIC approved a new risk-based premium system in November 2006 which became effective January 1,
2007. The FDIC’s new regulations for risk-based deposit insurance assessments establish four Risk Categories.
Risk Category I, for well-capitalized institutions that are financially sound with only a few minor weaknesses,
includes approximately 95% of FDIC-insured institutions. Risk Categories II, III, and IV consists of institutions
that present progressively greater risks to the DIF. Effective January 1, 2007, Risk Category I institutions pay
quarterly assessments for deposit insurance at annual rates of five to seven basis points for every $100 of deposit
accounts. The rates for Risk Categories II, III, and IV are seven, 28, and 43 basis points, respectively. Rates are
subject to change with advance notice to insured institutions.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amended by the Reform Act, defines a risk-based system as one based
on an institution’s probability of causing a loss to the deposit insurance fund due to the composition and
concentration of the institution’s assets and liabilities, the amount of loss given failure, and revenue needs of the
DIF. At the same time, the Reform Act also restores to the FDIC’s discretion to price deposit insurance according
to risk for all insured institutions regardless of the level of the fund reserve ratio.

The Reform Act leaves in place the existing statutory provision allowing the FDIC to “establish separate
risk-based assessment systems for large and small members of the DIF. Under the Reform Act, however, no
insured depository institution shall be barred from the lowest-risk category solely because of size. Regulations
implementing the risk-based assessment provision of the Reform Act were effective on January 1, 2007, the Final
Rule.

An institution (or its successor) insured by the FDIC on December 31, 1996 which had previously paid high
premiums in the past to bolster the FDIC’s insurance reserves was assigned assessment credits to initially offset all
of its premiums in 2007. The Bank was assigned a $1.1 million credit to be applied to future insurance premiums
and utilized $1.1 million of the credit towards the full payment of its 2007 insurance premiums. On November 5,
2007, the FDIC announced that it would decide whether to adjust the existing premium levels in March 2008.
During 2007, the Bank was assessed deposit insurance premiums in the aggregate amount of $1.1 million. The
Company expects this credit to be fully utilized by the end of the first quarter of 2008. As a result, the Company
anticipates that the FDIC insurance expense will increase by $1.3 million in 2008.

13

17 of 201 11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

Table of Contents

The Final Rule continues to allow the FDIC Board to adjust rates uniformly from one quarter to the next,
except that no single adjustment can exceed three basis points. In addition, cumulative adjustments cannot exceed
a maximum of three basis points higher or lower than the base rates without further notice-and-comment
rulemaking.

In addition to the FDIC insurance program, the Bank is required to pay a Financing Corporation, FICO,
assessment (on a semi-annual basis) in order to share in the payment of interest due on bonds used to provide
liquidity to the savings and loan industry in the 1980s. During 2007, the Bank’s FICO assessment totaled
$252,000, or 1.16 basis points of its insured deposits for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution, including the Bank, if it
determines after a hearing that the institution has engaged or is engaging in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an
unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law, regulation, order or any
condition imposed by an agreement with the FDIC. It also may suspend deposit insurance temporarily during the
hearing process for the permanent termination of insurance, if the institution has no tangible capital. If insurance of
accounts is terminated, the accounts at the institution at the time of the termination, less subsequent withdrawals,
shall continue to be insured for a period of six months to two years, as determined by the FDIC. There are no
pending proceedings to terminate the deposit insurance of the Bank. The management of the Bank does not know
of any practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Federal Reserve System. The Bank is subject to Federal Reserve regulations requiring depository institutions
to maintain non-interest-earning reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily NOW and regular checking
accounts). The Federal Reserve regulations generally require 3% reserves on the first $48.3 million of transaction
accounts and 10% on the remainder. The first $7.8 million of otherwise reservable balances (subject to
adjustments by the Federal Reserve) are exempted from the reserve requirements. The Bank is in compliance with
the foregoing requirements.

Community Reinvestment. Under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”), a financial institution has a
continuing and affirmative obligation, consistent with the safe and sound operation of such institution, to help
meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low-and moderate-income neighborhoods. The CRA does
not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an institution’s
discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its particular community,
consistent with the CRA. However, institutions are rated on their performance in meeting the needs of their
communities. Performance is judged in three areas: (a) a lending test, to evaluate the institution’s record of making
loans in its assessment areas; (b) an investment test, to evaluate the institution’s record of investing in community
development projects, affordable housing and programs benefiting low or moderate income individuals and
business; and (c) a service test to evaluate the institution’s delivery of services through its branches, ATMs and
other offices. The CRA requires each federal banking agency, in connection with its examination of a financial
institution, to assess and assign one of four ratings to the institution’s record of meeting the credit needs of its
community and to take such record into account in its evaluation of certain applications by the institution,
including applications for charters, branches and other deposit facilities, relocations, mergers, consolidations,
acquisitions of assets or assumptions of liabilities and savings and loan holding company acquisitions. The CRA
also requires that all institutions make public disclosure of their CRA ratings. The Bank received a “satisfactory”
rating on its most recent CRA performance evaluation.

Brokered Deposits. Well-capitalized institutions are not subject to limitations on brokered deposits, while an
adequately capitalized institution is able to accept, renew or rollover brokered deposits only with a waiver from the
FDIC and subject to certain restrictions on the yield paid on such deposits. Undercapitalized institutions are not
permitted to accept brokered deposits.

Enforcement Actions. Federal and state statutes and regulations provide financial institution regulatory
agencies with great flexibility to undertake enforcement action against an institution that fails to comply with
regulatory requirements, particularly capital requirements. Possible enforcement actions range from the imposition
of a capital plan and capital directive to civil money penalties, cease and desist orders, receivership,
conservatorship or the termination of deposit insurance.
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Bank Secrecy Act and USA Patriot Act. In 1970, Congress enacted the Currency and Foreign Transactions
Reporting Act, commonly known as the Bank Secrecy Act, the BSA. The BSA requires financial institutions to
maintain records of certain customers and currency transactions and to report certain domestic and foreign
currency transactions, which may have a high degree of usefulness in criminal, tax, or regulatory investigations or
proceedings. Under this law, financial institutions are required to develop a BSA compliance program. In 2001,
the President signed into law comprehensive anti-terrorism legislation commonly known as the USA Patriot Act.
The USA Patriot Act requires financial institutions to assist in detecting and preventing international money
laundering and the financing of terrorism.

The Department of the Treasury has adopted additional rules and regulations in order to implement the USA
Patriot Act. Under these regulations, law enforcement officials communicate names of suspected terrorists and
money launderers to financial institutions so as to enable financial institutions to promptly locate accounts and
transactions involving those suspects. Financial institutions receiving names of suspects must search their account
and transaction records for potential matches and report positive results to the U.S. Department of the Treasury
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network, FinCEN. Each financial institution must designate a point of contact to
receive information requests. These regulations outline how financial institutions can share information concerning
suspected terrorist and money laundering activity with other financial institutions under the protection of a
statutory safe harbor if each financial institution notifies FinCEN of its intent to share information.

The Department of the Treasury has also adopted regulations intended to prevent money laundering and
terrorist financing through correspondent accounts maintained by U.S. financial institutions on behalf of foreign
banks. Financial institutions are required to take reasonable steps to ensure that they are not providing banking
services directly or indirectly to foreign shell banks. In addition, banks must have procedures in place to verify the
identity of the persons with whom they deal, and financial institutions must undertake additional due diligence
when circumstances warrant and in the case of money service businesses.

Interstate Banking and Branching Legislation. Under the Interstate Banking and Efficiency Act of 1994 (“the
Interstate Banking Act”), bank holding companies are allowed to acquire banks across state lines subject to various
requirements of the Federal Reserve. In addition, under the Interstate Banking Act, banks are permitted, under
some circumstances, to merge with one another across state lines and thereby create a main bank with branches in
separate states. After establishing branches in a state through an interstate merger transaction, a bank may establish
and acquire additional branches at any location in the state where any bank involved in the interstate merger could
have established or acquired branches under applicable federal and state law.

The State of Illinois has adopted legislation “opting in” to interstate bank mergers, and allows out of state
banks to enter the Illinois market through de novo branching or through branch-only acquisitions if Illinois state
banks are afforded reciprocal treatment in the other state. It is anticipated that this interstate merger and branching
ability will increase competition and further consolidate the financial institutions industry.

Insurance Powers. Under state law, a state bank is authorized to act as agent for any fire, life or other
insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Illinois. Similarly, the Illinois Insurance Code was
amended to allow a state bank to form a subsidiary for the purpose of becoming a firm registered to sell insurance.
Such sales of insurance by a state bank may only take place through individuals who have been issued and
maintain an insurance producer’s license pursuant to the Illinois Insurance Code.

State banks are prohibited from assuming or guaranteeing any premium on an insurance policy issued through
the bank. Moreover, state law expressly prohibits tying the provision of any insurance product to the making of
any loan or extension of credit and requires state banks to make disclosures of this fact in some instances. Other
consumer oriented safeguards are also required.

Insurance products are sold through Midwest Financial, a subsidiary of the Bank acquired in 2006 through the
acquisition of Royal American Corporation. Midwest Financial is registered with, and subject to examination by,
the Illinois Department of Insurance.

Securities Brokerage. Midwest Financial, a registered bank-affiliated securities broker-dealer and registered
investment advisor, operates a general securities business as an introducing broker-dealer. It is registered with the
SEC as a broker-dealer and is a member of FINRA.
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Consumer Compliance. The Bank has been examined for consumer compliance on a regular basis. The Bank
is subject to many federal consumer protection statutes and regulations including the Equal Credit Opportunity
Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act and the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act. Among other things, these acts:

* require lenders to disclose credit terms in meaningful and consistent ways;
* prohibit discrimination against an applicant in any consumer or business credit transaction;
* prohibit discrimination in housing-related lending activities;

* require certain lenders to collect and report applicant and borrower data regarding loans for home purchases
or improvement projects;

* require lenders to provide borrowers with information regarding the nature and cost of real estate
settlements;

* prohibit certain lending practices and limit escrow account amounts with respect to real estate
transactions; and

* prescribe possible penalties for violations of the requirements of consumer protection statutes and
regulations.

Federal Fair Lending Laws. The federal fair lending laws prohibit discriminatory lending practices. The
Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibits discrimination against an applicant in any credit transaction, whether for
consumer or business purposes, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, age (except
in limited circumstances), receipt of income from public assistance programs or good faith exercise of any rights
under the Consumer Credit Protection Act. Under the Fair Housing Act, it is unlawful for any lender to
discriminate in its housing-related lending activities against any person because of race, color, religion, national
origin, sex, handicap or familial status. Among other things, these laws prohibit a lender from denying or
discouraging credit on a discriminatory basis, making excessively low appraisals of property based on racial
considerations, or charging excessive rates or imposing more stringent loan terms or conditions on a
discriminatory basis. In addition to private actions by aggrieved borrowers or applicants for actual and punitive
damages, the U.S. Department of Justice and other regulatory agencies can take enforcement action seeking
injunctive and other equitable relief for alleged violations.

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act. The Federal Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, or HMDA, grew out of public
concern over credit shortages in certain urban neighborhoods. One purpose of the HMDA is to provide public
information that will help show whether financial institutions are serving the housing credit needs of the
neighborhoods and communities in which they are located. The HMDA also includes a “fair lending” aspect that
requires the collection and disclosure of data about applicant and borrower characteristics as a way of identifying
possible discriminatory lending patterns and enforcing anti-discrimination statutes. The HMDA requires
institutions to report data regarding applications for loans for the purchase or improvement of one-to four-family
and multi-family dwellings, as well as information concerning originations and purchases of such loans. Federal
bank regulators rely, in part, upon data provided under the HMDA to determine whether depository institutions
engage in discriminatory lending practices.

The appropriate federal banking agency, or in some cases, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, enforces compliance with the HMDA and implements its regulations. Administrative sanctions,
including civil money penalties, may be imposed by supervisory agencies for violations of this act.

Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act. The Federal Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, or RESPA,
requires lenders to provide borrowers with disclosures regarding the nature and cost of real estate settlements.
RESPA also prohibits certain abusive practices, such as kickbacks, and places limitations on the amount of escrow
accounts. Violations of RESPA may result in imposition of penalties, including: (1) civil liability equal to three
times the amount of any charge paid for the settlement services or civil liability of up to $1,000 per claimant,
depending on the violation; (2) awards of court costs and attorneys’ fees; and (3) fines of not more than $10,000 or
imprisonment for not more than one year, or both.
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Truth in Lending Act. The federal Truth in Lending Act is designed to ensure that credit terms are disclosed
in a meaningful way so that consumers may compare credit terms more readily and knowledgeably. As result of
the act, all creditors must use the same credit terminology and expressions of rates, and disclose the annual
percentage rate, the finance charge, the amount financed, the total of payments and the payment schedule for each
proposed loan.

Violations of the Truth in Lending Act may result in regulatory sanctions and in the imposition of both civil
and, in the case of willful violations, criminal penalties. Under certain circumstances, the Truth in Lending Act and
Regulation Z of the Federal Reserve Act also provide a consumer with a right of rescission, which if exercised
would require the creditor to reimburse any amount paid by the consumer to the creditor or to a third party in
connection with the offending transaction, including finance charges, application fees, commitment fees, title
search fees and appraisal fees. Consumers may also seek actual and punitive damages for violations of the Truth in
Lending Act.

Fair Credit Reporting Act
In connection with the passage of the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions (FACT) Act, the Bank’s financial
regulator has issued final rules and guidelines, effective November 1, 2008, requiring the Bank to adopt and
implement a written identity theft prevention program, paying particular attention to 26 identified “red flag”
events. The program must also assess the validity of address change requests for card issuers and for users of
consumer reports to verify the subject of a consumer report in the event of notice of an address discrepancy.

The FACT Act also gives consumers the ability to challenge the Bank with respect to credit reporting
information provided by the Bank. The new rule also prohibits the Bank from using certain information it may
acquire from an affiliate to solicit the consumer for marketing purposes unless the consumer has been give notice
and an opportunity to opt out of such solicitation for a period of five years.

Federal Home Loan Bank System
The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank system, which consists of 12 regional FHLBs. The FHLB
system provides a central credit facility primarily for member institutions. The Bank, as a member of the FHLB of
Chicago, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the respective FHLB in an amount at least equal
to 1% of the aggregate principal amount of its unpaid residential mortgage loans and similar obligations at the
beginning of each year, or 1/20 of its advances (borrowings) from the respective FHLB, whichever is greater. At
December 31, 2007, the Bank had advances from the FHLB of Chicago with aggregate outstanding principal
balances of $323.4 million, and the Bank’s investment in FHLB of Chicago stock of $17.0 million was 4.9% over
its minimum requirement. FHLB advances must be secured by specified types of collateral and are available to
member institutions primarily for funding purposes.

Regulatory directives, capital requirements and net income of the FHLBs affect their ability to pay dividends
to the Bank. In addition, FHLBs are required to provide funds to cover certain obligations and to fund the
resolution of insolvent thrifts and to contribute funds for affordable housing programs. These requirements could
reduce the amount of dividends that the FHLBs pay to their members and could also result in the FHLBs imposing
a higher rate of interest on advances to their members.

In October 2007, the FHLB Chicago announced that it entered into a consensual cease and desist order with
its regulator which prohibits it from redeeming or repurchasing any capital stock from members or declaring
dividends on its capital stock without prior approval. The FHLB Chicago announced that it would not declare a
dividend for the fourth quarter of 2007.

Monetary Policy and Economic Conditions

The earnings of banks and bank holding companies are affected by general economic conditions and by the
fiscal and monetary policies of federal regulatory agencies, including the Federal Reserve. Through open market
transactions, variations in the discount rate and the establishment of reserve requirements, the Federal Reserve
exerts considerable influence over the cost and availability of funds obtainable for lending or investing.

The above monetary and fiscal policies and resulting changes in interest rates have affected the operating
results of all commercial banks in the past and are expected to do so in the future. Banks and their respective
holding company cannot fully predict the nature or the extent of any effects which fiscal or monetary policies may
have on their business and earnings.
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES
LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995

This report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended: Statement under
the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Company and its
representatives may, from time to time, make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking” and provide
information other than historical information, including statements contained in the Form 10-K, the Company’s
other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission or in communications to its stockholders. These
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results to be
materially different from any results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by any
forward-looking statement. These factors include, among other things, the factors listed below.

In some cases, the Company has identified forward-looking statements by such words or phrases as “will
likely result,” “is confident that,” “expects,” “should,” “could,” “may,” “will continue to,” “believes,”
“anticipates,” “predicts,” “forecasts,” “estimates,” “projects,” “potential,” “intends,” or similar expressions
identifying “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995, including the negative of those words and phrases. These forward-looking statements are based on
management’s current views and assumptions regarding future events, future business conditions, and the outlook
for the Company based on currently available information. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by,
these statements. The Company wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date made.

2 < 2 <

2 ¢

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the
Company is hereby identifying important factors that could affect the Company’s financial performance and could
cause the Company’s actual results for future periods to differ materially from any opinions or statements
expressed with respect to future periods in any forward-looking statements.

Among the factors that could have an impact on the Company’s ability to achieve operating results, growth
plan goals, and the beliefs expressed or implied in forward-looking statements are:

» Management’s ability to effectively manage interest rate risk and the impact of interest rates in general on
the volatility of the Company’s net interest income;

¢ Fluctuations in the value of the Company’s investment securities;
* The ability to attract and retain senior management experienced in banking and financial services;

 The sufficiency of the allowance for loan losses to absorb the amount of actual losses inherent in the
existing portfolio of loans;

 The ability to ultimately collect on the Large Problem Credit;

» The Company’s ability to adapt successfully to technological changes to compete effectively in the
marketplace;

* Credit risks and risks from concentrations (by geographic area and by industry) within the Bank’s loan
portfolio and individual large loans;

* The effects of competition from other commercial banks, thrifts, mortgage banking firms, consumer finance
companies, credit unions, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market and other mutual
funds, and other financial institutions operating in the Company’s market or elsewhere or providing similar
services;

* The failure of assumptions underlying the establishment of the allowance for loan losses and estimation of
values of collateral or cash flow projections and various financial assets and liabilities;

* Volatility of rate sensitive deposits;
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* Operational risks, including data processing system failures or fraud;

* Liquidity risks;

* The ability to successfully acquire low cost deposits or funding;

 The ability to successfully execute strategies to increase noninterest income;

* The ability of the Company to fully realize expected cost savings and revenues in connection with
acquisitions, or the ability to realize them on a timely basis;

» The risk of borrower, depositor, and other customer attrition after acquisitions are completed;

» Changes in the economic environment, competition, or other factors that may influence the anticipated
growth rate of loans and deposits, the quality of the loan portfolio and loan and deposit pricing, and the
Company’s ability to successfully pursue acquisition and expansion strategies and integrate any acquired
companies;

* Possible recognition of losses related to the Company’s holdings of Federal National Mortgage Association
and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation preferred stock; if the unrealized losses in these securities
do not demonstrate a clear pattern of substantial recovery in the near future, the Company would be
required to recognize impairment losses;

» The impact from changes in federal and state tax laws relating to certain tax structures of the Company
including an 80/20 company which holds a portion of the Company’s securities portfolio and a real estate
investment trust which holds certain real estate loans previously held by the Bank;

* The impact from liabilities arising from legal or administrative proceedings on the financial condition of the
Company;

* Possible administrative or enforcement actions of banking regulators in connection with any material failure
of the Company or the Bank to comply with banking laws, rules or regulations;

* Possible administrative or enforcement actions of the SEC in connection with the SEC inquiry of the
restatement of the Company’s September 30, 2002 financial statements;

» Governmental monetary and fiscal policies, as well as legislative and regulatory changes, that may result in
the imposition of costs and constraints on the Company through higher FDIC insurance premiums,
significant fluctuations in market interest rates, increases in capital requirements, and operational
limitations;

» Changes in general economic or industry conditions, nationally or in the communities in which the
Company conducts business;
» Changes in accounting principles, policies, or guidelines affecting the business conducted by the Company;

e Acts of war or terrorism; and

* Other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory, and technical factors affecting the Company’s
operations, products, services, and prices.

The Company wishes to caution that the foregoing list of important factors may not be all-inclusive and
specifically declines to undertake any obligation to publicly revise any forward-looking statements that have been
made to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated
or unanticipated events.

With respect to forward-looking statements set forth in the notes to consolidated financial statements,
including those relating to contingent liabilities and legal proceedings, some of the factors that could affect the
ultimate disposition of those contingencies are changes in applicable laws, the development of facts in individual
cases, settlement opportunities, and the actions of plaintiffs, judges, and juries.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Listed below are the executive officers of the Company as of March 14, 2008, except for the information
regarding the incoming chief financial officer.

James J. Giancola (59) was named Director, President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2004. Mr. Giancola has been Chief Executive Officer since 2004 and Vice Chairman since 2006 of the
Bank. In November 2004, Mr. Giancola was named Chairman, Director, President, Chief Executive Officer of
MBTC Investment Company. In February 2005, he was named Director of Midwest Financial. Prior to joining the
Company, he was semi-retired and a private investor. Mr. Giancola has over 30 years experience in the banking
industry. He served as president of Fifth Third Bank, Indiana from 1999 to 2000. He also served as president and
CEO of CNB Bancshares, Inc., a seven billion dollar bank holding company in Evansville, Indiana from 1997 to
1999. Mr. Giancola also served as president of Gainer Bank located in Northwest Indiana.

J. J. Fritz (59) was named Director and Executive Vice President of the Company and Director, President, and
Chief Operating Officer of the Bank in July 2006. Mr. Fritz was also named director, president, and chief
executive officer of Midwest Financial in July 2006. Mr. Fritz and other investors founded Royal American in
1991, where he served as chairman and chief executive officer, after he served as chief executive officer of First
Chicago Bank of Mt. Prospect. His lengthy career in the Chicago metropolitan area also includes positions at
Northern Trust, First National Bank of Libertyville and Continental Illinois National Bank.

JoAnn S. Lilek (51) was named Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the
Bank effective March 17, 2008. Ms. Lilek was Chief Financial Officer for DSC Logistics, a Chicago-based
national supply chain management firm. Before joining DSC, Lilek had a 23 year career at ABNAmro North
American Inc. where her positions included Executive Vice President reporting directly to the Chairman,
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Wholesale Banking North America and Group Senior Vice
President and Corporate Controller.

Mary C. Ceas, SPHR, (50) was named Senior Vice President — Human Resources of the Company in 2000.
Previously, Ms. Ceas was Vice President — Human Resources since 1997 and served as Director — Training and
Development from 1995 to 1997.

Daniel R. Kadolph, CPA, (45) was named Chief Administrative Officer in February 2008 and Executive Vice
President of the Company in 2006. Mr. Kadolph served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company from 2000 to
February 2008. Mr. Kadolph was also named director of Midwest Financial and Investment Services, Inc. in
March 2002 and a director, secretary, and treasurer of MBTC Investment Company in 2002. He has served as
Treasurer of the Company since 1997 and was Comptroller of the Company from 1994 to 2006. Mr. Kadolph has
served in various management capacities at the Company and its subsidiaries since 1988. Mr. Kadolph is a
member of the Illinois CPA Society.

Jan R. Thiry, CPA (55) was named Chief Accounting Officer of the Company effective March 15, 2007.
Mr. Thiry was hired in December 2006 as Senior Vice President and Controller of the Company and the Bank. He
served as senior vice president and controller of CIB Marine Bancshares in Pewaukee, Wisconsin from 1999 to
2006. Mr. Thiry has also held senior positions at M&I Corporation and Security Bank in Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
Additionally, he was a senior auditor at KPMG LLP. Mr. Thiry is a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Financial Managers Society.

Donald L. Wiest II (54) was named Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer of the Company
in October 2006 and a director and executive vice president and chief investment officer of MBTC Investment
Company in November 2006. He has served as executive vice president and chief investment officer for Waypoint
Bank in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. Before joining Waypoint Bank, Wiest was an assistant vice president and trust
and private asset manager at Mellon Bank in Harrisburg.

Sheldon Bernstein (61) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank in January 2005. He previously
served as Senior Vice President of the Company from 2001 to 2005. Mr. Bernstein has served as President of the
Bank, Cook County Region from 2000 to 2004. From 2000 through 2002, he served as Chief Operating Officer of
the Bank. Previously, Mr. Bernstein served as Executive Vice President-Lending of the Bank since 1993. He was
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also served as director of Midwest Financial and Investment Services, Inc. from 2002 to 2005. Mr. Bernstein was a
director of First Midwest Data Corp from 2001 to 2002.

Thomas A. Caravello (59) was named Executive Vice President and Chief Credit Officer of the Bank in
January 2005. Mr. Caravello was named manager, president, and chief executive officer of Midwest Funding,
L.L.C. in May 2006. He has served as Senior Vice President — Credit Administration from 2003 to 2005.
Previously he served as Vice President — Credit Administration from 1998 to 2003.

Bruno P. Costa (47) was named Executive Vice President and Chief Operations and Technology Officer of
the Bank in January 2005. He served as President of the Information Services Division of the Bank from 2002 to
2005. Mr. Costa served as President and Chief Executive Officer of First Midwest Data Corp. from 1995 to 2002.
He held various management positions at the Bank since 1983.

John G. Eilering (62) was named Area President — Northwest of the Bank in October 2007. Mr. Eilering
previously was chairman and chief executive officer of Northwest Suburban Bancorp, Inc. from 1997 to 2007.

Thomas H. Hackett (60) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank in November 2003. Mr. Hackett
was named manager and vice president of Midwest Funding, L.L.C. in May 2006. He previously was division
manager at Banc One, Chicago, Illinois from 2002 to 2003. Prior, he was first vice president of American National
Bank of Chicago from 1997 to 2002. He has also served in similar capacities at First Chicago/NBD, Park Ridge,
IL, NBD of Woodridge and Heritage Bank of Woodridge, Illinois.

Mary M. Henthorn (50) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank in January 2005. She previously
served as Senior Vice President of the Company from 2001 to 2005 and served as President of the Bank, DuPage
County Region from 2002 to 2004. Ms. Henthorn served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Midwest
Bank of Hinsdale from 2000 to 2002. She held various management positions at Midwest Bank of Hinsdale and
the Bank from 1992 until 2000.

Stephan L. Markovits (58) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank in October 2007. Mr. Markovits
previously was president of Northwest Suburban Bancorp, Inc. from 2003 to 2007. He also held various
management positions at Plains Bank of Illinois from 1998 to 2003.

Dennis M. Motyka (57) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank and director of Midwest Financial
in October 2005. He previously was senior vice president and director of banking centers for Cole Taylor Bank in
Rosemont from 2002 to 2005. He served as senior vice president and Illinois regional manager for LaSalle Bank in
Chicago from 1996 to 2002. He also held positions with Comerica Bank and Affiliated Bank, both in Franklin
Park, as well as with Western National Bank in Cicero.

Kelly J. O’Keeffe (47) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank in July 2006. Mr. O’Keeffe was a
founder of Royal American Bank and its president from 1997 to 2006. He served at First Chicago Bank of Mt.
Prospect and Northern Trust, in addition to a public service carcer with the IDFPR.

Brogan M. Ptacin (47) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank in July 2006. Mr. Ptacin was named
manager of Midwest Funding, L.L.C. in September 2006. Mr. Ptacin previously was executive vice president and
senior loan officer at Royal American Bank. Ptacin joined Royal American Bank in 1995 after a twelve year career
with American National Bank leaving as president of its Melrose Park subsidiary.

William H. Stoll (52) was named Executive Vice President of the Bank in January 2005. Mr. Stoll was named
manager of Midwest Funding, L.L.C. in May 2006. In February 2005, he was named director of Midwest
Financial and Investment Services, Inc. He served as senior vice president and chief lending officer of Mercantile
Bank, Hammond, Indiana from 2002 to 2005. He was national bank examiner of the Comptroller of the Currency,
Chicago, IL from 2000 to 2002 and senior vice president — manager — commercial lending of Fifth Third Bank,
Merrillville, Indiana from 1999 to 2000. He has also served in similar capacities at Mercantile National Bank,
Hammond, Indiana and NBD — Gainer Bank, Merrillville, Indiana.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected
by any of these risks.

Changes in economic conditions, in particular an economic slowdown in Chicago, Illinois, could hurt the
Company’s business materially.

The Company’s business is directly affected by factors such as economic, political and market conditions,
broad trends in industry and finance, legislative and regulatory changes, changes in government monetary and
fiscal policies and inflation, all of which are beyond its control. Deterioration in economic conditions, in particular
an economic slowdown in Chicago, Illinois, and surrounding areas, could result in the following consequences,
any of which could hurt the Company’s business materially:

* loan delinquencies may increase;

* problem assets and foreclosures may increase;

* demand for its products and services may decline;

* low cost or noninterest bearing deposits may decrease; and

* collateral for loans made by us, especially real estate, may decline in value, in turn reducing customers’
borrowing power, and reducing the value of assets and collateral associated with the Company’s existing
loans.

A large percentage of the Company’s loans are collateralized by real estate, and an adverse change in the
real estate market may result in losses and adversely affect its profitability.

A majority of the Company’s loan portfolio is comprised of loans at least partially collateralized by real
estate; a substantial portion of this real estate collateral is located in the Chicago market. An adverse change in the
economy affecting real estate values generally or in the Chicago market specifically could significantly impair the
value of the Company’s collateral and its ability to sell the collateral upon foreclosure. In the event of a default
with respect to any of these loans, amounts received upon sale of the collateral may be insufficient to recover
outstanding principal and interest on the loan. As a result, the Company’s profitability could be negatively
impacted by an adverse change in the real estate market.

The Company’s business is subject to interest rate risk and fluctuations in interest rates may adversely
affect its earnings.

The majority of the Company’s assets and liabilities are monetary in nature and subject to risk from changes
in interest rates. Like most financial institutions, the Company’s earnings and profitability depend significantly on
its net interest income, which is the difference between interest income on interest-earning assets, such as loans
and investment securities, and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. The
Company expects that it will periodically experience “gaps” in the interest rate sensitivities of its assets and
liabilities, meaning that either its interest-bearing liabilities will be more sensitive to changes in market interest
rates than its interest-earning assets, or vice versa. However, the actual effect of changing interest rates on the
Company’s earnings may vary due to the speed and magnitude of the changes, the degree to which short-term and
long-term rates are similarly affected, and other factors. The Company’s asset-liability management strategy may
not be able to control its risk from changes in market interest rates, and it may not be able to prevent changes in
interest rates from having a material adverse effect on its results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, the Company is unable to predict or control fluctuations of market interest rates, which are
affected by many factors, including the following:

« inflation;

* recession;
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* changes in unemployment;
* the money supply; and

* international disorder and instability in domestic and foreign financial markets.

Changes in interest rates may also adversely affect the growth rate of the Company’s loans and deposits, the
quality of its loan portfolio, loan and deposit pricing, the volume of loan originations in its mortgage banking
business and the value that it can recognize on the sale of mortgage loans in the secondary market.

The Company’s allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover actual loan losses, including losses
associated with the Large Problem Credit, which could adversely affect its results of operations or its
financial condition.

As a lender, the Company is exposed to the risk that our loan customers may not repay their loans according
to their terms and that the collateral securing the payment of these loans may be insufficient to assure repayment.
The Company may experience significant loan losses which could have a material adverse effect on its operating
results. Management makes various assumptions and judgments about the collectibility of the Company’s loan
portfolio, which are based in part on:

* current economic conditions and their estimated effects on specific borrowers;

+ an evaluation of the existing relationships among loans, potential loan losses and the present level of the
allowance;

+ results of examinations of our loan portfolios by regulatory agencies; and
» management’s internal review of the loan portfolio.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan losses in an attempt to cover probable incurred loan losses
inherent in its loan portfolio. Additional loan losses will likely occur in the future and may occur at a rate greater
than we have experienced historically. In determining the amount of the allowance, we rely on an analysis of the
Company’s loan portfolio, experience, and evaluation of general economic conditions. If the Company’s
assumptions and analysis prove to be incorrect, our current allowance may not be sufficient. In addition,
adjustments may be necessary to allow for unexpected volatility or deterioration in the local or national economy
or other factors such as changes in interest rates that may be beyond its control. Large additions to the allowance
could materially decrease the Company’s net income. In addition, federal and state regulators periodically review
its allowance for loan losses and may require the Company to increase its provision for loan losses or recognize
further loan charge-offs, based on judgments different than those of management. Any increase in the Company’s
loan allowance or loan charge-offs as required by these regulatory agencies could have a material adverse effect on
its results of operations.

In particular, the Company has outstanding loans to one borrower and his related entities, referred to as the
Large Problem Credit, which accounted for 59.0% of its nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2007. At
December 31, 2007, the remaining total loan exposure related to the Large Problem Credit was $29.0 million, all
of which is currently classified as nonaccrual. The Company recorded a $5.0 million provision for loan losses
relating to the Large Problem Credit in the second quarter of 2006. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company
recorded an additional $5.5 million provision and charged off $7.5 million of the principal balance to reflect the
deterioration of the Large Problem Credit. In the third quarter of 2007, the borrower’s corporate entities filed for
protection under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. The Company continues the process of pursuing the
collection of the Large Problem Credit and the liquidation of its collateral. Although the Company has not
recognized any charge-offs relating to this credit during 2007 and management currently believes that the carrying
value of these loans at December 31, 2007 reflects management’s best estimate of net realizable value, there can
be no assurance that additional losses will not be recognized or that such additional losses would not have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations or our financial condition.
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Future impairment losses could be required on the Federal National Mortgage Association, FNMA, and
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, FHLMC, preferred equity securities that the Company owns.

As of December 31, 2007, FNMA and FHLMC preferred equity securities represented $85.1 million or 11.0%
of the total amortized cost of the Company’s portfolio of investment securities and $66.0 million or 8.8% of the
fair value of the Company’s portfolio of investment securities. Since September 30, 2007, FNMA and FHLMC
have announced significant losses related to their respective business activities which are primarily mortgage
related. These announcements have had a significant adverse impact on the fair value of the preferred equity
securities of FNMA and FHLMC that the Company owns. Notwithstanding the announcements, Moody’s
Investors Services and Standard and Poors have maintained their ratings on the preferred equity securities issued
by FNMA and FHLMC, including the securities that the Company owns. The Company cannot provide any
assurance that the rating agencies will continue to maintain their current ratings on the preferred equity securities
that it owns. Both of these government-sponsored entities raised substantial new equity capital through the
issuance of additional preferred stock in late 2007, which the Company believes shows investors’ confidence in
the issuers’ strength, long-term viability and ability to fund dividends. Despite the period of time these securities
have been impaired and the magnitude of the decline in value, the Company believes it is too soon as of
December 31, 2007 to conclude that the unrealized losses are other-than-temporary in nature and further believes
as of December 31, 2007 that the market fluctuations that precipitated the steep drop in values in late 2007 will
reverse over time.

As of December 31, 2007, the difference between the estimated fair value and amortized cost of the FNMA
and FHLMC preferred equity securities was $19.2 million, representing an $11.8 million loss net of tax, which
was included in accumulated other comprehensive loss as a reduction in stockholders’ equity on the Company’s
balance sheet. The Company has not recognized this difference as a charge against net income due to its
determination at December 31, 2007, that the unrealized losses in the preferred equity securities did not constitute
other-than-temporary impairments. Management does not believe that any individual unrealized loss as of
December 31, 2007 represents other-than-temporary impairment at that date. These unrealized losses are primarily
attributable to changes in interest rates as well as turbulent economic conditions impacting the credit markets in the
second half of 2007. If the Company determines in one or more future reporting periods that any difference
between the fair value and the amortized cost of a FNMA or FHLMC preferred equity security that it owns is an
other-than-temporary impairment, it would be required to record an impairment loss against its income in an
amount equal to such difference. If the market values of the Company’s FNMA and FHLMC preferred equity
investment securities do not demonstrate a clear pattern of substantial recovery in the near future, the Company
would be required to recognize impairment losses.

The Company establishes fair value estimates of securities available-for-sale in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. The Company’s estimates can change from reporting period to reporting period
and it cannot provide any assurance that the fair value estimates of the FNMA and FHLMC preferred equity
securities would be the realizable value in the event of a sale of the securities.

A number of factors could cause the Company to conclude in one or more future reporting periods that any
difference between the fair value and the amortized cost of one or more of the FNMA and FHLMC preferred
equity securities that it owns constitutes an other-than-temporary impairment. These factors include, but are not
limited to, an increase in the severity of the unrealized loss on a particular security, an increase in the length of
time unrealized losses continue without an improvement in value, a change in the Company’s intent or ability to
hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for the forecasted recovery, or changes in market
conditions or industry or issuer specific factors that would render it unable to forecast a full recovery in value,
including adverse developments concerning the financial condition of FNMA or FHLMC.

The Company’s effective tax rates may be adversely affected by changes in federal and state tax laws.

The Company’s effective tax rates may be adversely affected by changes in federal or state tax laws,
regulations and agency interpretations. In this regard, recent changes in Illinois laws may adversely affect our
results of operations. Under current tax law, the Company enjoys favorable tax treatment with respect to the
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dividends we receive from Midwest Funding, L.L.C., a captive real estate investment trust, or a REIT. A recent
change in Illinois tax law relating to the deductibility of captive REIT dividends will eliminate this tax benefit
beginning January 1, 2009, and is likely to increase our effective tax rate beginning in that year.

In addition, in connection with the determination of the Company’s provision for income and other taxes and
during the preparation of its tax returns, management makes certain judgments based upon reasonable
interpretations of tax laws, regulations and agency interpretations which are inherently complex. Management’s
interpretations are subject to challenge upon audit by the tax authorities, which have become increasingly
aggressive in challenging tax positions taken by financial institutions, including certain positions that it has taken.
If the Company is not successful in defending the tax positions that it has taken, the Company’s financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected.

The Company may not be able to successfully implement its growth strategy and may encounter difficulties
or unexpected developments in connection with the integration of its acquisitions.

The Company has expanded its business in part through acquisitions and selective branching and cannot
provide any assurances that profitable expansion opportunities will be available in the future. Because
management believes that the Chicago market is saturated, its preferred strategy for continued growth is to expand
its branch network through acquisitions. Accordingly, the Company plans to continue to pursue potential
acquisitions of other community banks. In addition, it will also consider opportunities to acquire money managers,
specialty lenders and related financial services businesses in order to diversify the Company’s business. The
Company expects that competition for acquisition candidates will continue to be significant. The Company
competes with other financial institutions and financial services companies with similar acquisition strategies,
many of which are larger and have greater financial and other resources than the Company does. The Company
cannot provide assurances that it will be able to successfully identify and acquire suitable acquisition targets on
acceptable terms.

If the Company is successful in making acquisitions, acquiring other banks, branches, and other financial
services businesses involves various significant risks, including the following:

* potential exposure to unknown or contingent liabilities or asset quality issues of the target company;
« difficulty and expense of integrating the operations and personnel of the target company;

* potential disruption to our business, including diversion of management’s time and attention;

* the possible loss of key employees and customers of the target company;

« difficulty in estimating the value of the target company; and

* potential changes in the laws and regulations that affect the business of the target company.

Acquisitions typically involve the payment of a premium over book and market values; therefore, some
dilution of the Company’s tangible book value and net income per common share may occur in connection with
any future transaction. Furthermore, failure to realize the expected revenue enhancements, cost savings, increases
in geographic or product presence, and/or
other projected benefits from an acquisition could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations.

The Company’s continued pace of growth may require it to increase its regulatory capital in the future, but
that capital may not be available when it is needed.

The Company is required by federal and state regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to
support its operations and its anticipated growth. To the extent the Company continues to expand its operations,
the Company will be required to support the growth in its operations by increasing its capital. The Company’s
ability to raise capital will depend on its financial performance as well as conditions in the capital markets, which
are outside of its control. If the Company cannot raise additional capital when needed, it will be subject to
increased regulatory supervision and the imposition of restrictions on its growth. These restrictions could
negatively impact the Company’s ability to further expand its operations and may result in significant increases in
its operating expenses or decreases in its revenues.
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An interruption in or breach in security of the Company’s information systems may result in a loss of
customer business.

The Company relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its business. Any failure
or interruptions or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in its customer
relationship management, general ledger, deposits, servicing, or loan origination systems. The occurrence of any
failures or interruptions or breach in security could result in a loss of customer business, costly remedial actions, or
legal liabilities and have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial condition.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends and make payment on its debt securities and on its outstanding
debt is dependent on the earnings of its subsidiaries and is subject to other restrictions.

Most of the Company’s ability to pay dividends and make payments on its debt securities come from amounts
paid to it by the Bank. Under applicable banking law, the total dividends declared in any calendar year by a the
Bank may not, without the approval of the Federal Reserve, or the FDIC, as the case may be, exceed the aggregate
of the Bank’s net profits and retained net profits for the preceding two years. The Bank is also subject to limits on
dividends under the Illinois Banking Act.

If, in the opinion of the federal bank regulatory agency, a depository institution under its jurisdiction is
engaged in or is about to engage in an unsafe or unsound practice (which, depending on the financial condition of
the depository institution, could include the payment of dividends), the agency may require that the bank cease and
desist from the practice. The Federal Reserve has similar authority with respect to bank holding companies. In
addition, the federal bank regulatory agencies have issued policy statements which provide that insured banks and
bank holding companies should generally only pay dividends out of current operating earnings. Finally, these
regulatory authorities have established guidelines with respect to the maintenance of appropriate levels of capital
by a bank, bank holding company or savings association under their jurisdiction. Compliance with the standards
set forth in these guidelines could limit the amount of dividends that the Company and its affiliates may pay in the
future.

Under the terms of junior subordinated debentures the Company has issued, it has agreed not to declare or pay
any dividends or distributions on, or redeem, purchase, acquire or make a liquidation payment with respect to, any
of its common stock or preferred stock if, at that time, there is a default under the junior subordinated debentures
or a related guarantee or it has delayed interest payments on the securities issued under the junior indenture. The
Company also has dividend limitations under its revolving line of credit agreement and term loan agreement.

The Company’s outstanding preferred stock has preference over its common stock with respect to the
payment of dividends and distribution of the Company’s assets in the event of a liquidation or dissolution.

The Company’s business may be adversely affected by the highly regulated environment in which it
operates.

The Company is subject to extensive federal and state legislation, regulation and supervision. The burden of
regulatory compliance has increased under current legislation and banking regulations and is likely to continue to
have a significant impact on the financial services industry. Recent legislative and regulatory changes, as well as
changes in regulatory enforcement policies and capital adequacy guidelines, are increasing the Company’s costs of
doing business and, as a result, may create an advantage for its competitors who may not be subject to similar
legislative and regulatory requirements. In addition, future regulatory changes, including changes to regulatory
capital requirements, could have an adverse impact on the Company’s future results. In addition, the federal and
state bank regulatory authorities who supervise the Company have broad discretionary powers to take enforcement
actions against banks for failure to comply with applicable regulations and laws. If the Company fails to comply
with applicable laws or regulations, it could become subject to enforcement actions that have a material adverse
effect on its future results.
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Provisions in the Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and its amended and
restated by-laws may delay or prevent an acquisition of the Company by a third party.

The Company’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and its amended and restated by-laws
contain provisions that may make it more difficult for a third party to gain control or acquire the Company without
the consent of its board of directors. These provisions also could discourage proxy contests and may make it more
difficult for dissident stockholders to elect representatives as directors and take other corporate actions.

These provisions of the Company’s governing documents may have the effect of delaying, deferring or
preventing a transaction or a change in control that some or many of its stockholders might believe to be in their

best interest.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the Company’s principal office and bank

branches.

Location

Principal Office of the Company and Midwest Bank and Trust

Company Banking Office
501 West North Avenue
Melrose Park, Illinois 60160

Other Midwest Bank and Trust Company Banking Offices

1606 North Harlem Avenue
Elmwood Park, Illinois 60607
245 South Addison Road
Addison, Illinois 60101

2045 East Algonquin Road
Algonquin, Illinois 60102
1000 Tower Lane #125
Bensenville, Illinois 60106
236 West Lake Street
Bloomingdale, Illinois 60108
1001 Johnson Drive

Buffalo Grove, Illinois 60089
300 South Michigan Avenue
Chicago, Illinois 60604

4012 North Pulaski Road
Chicago, Illinois 60641

7227 West Addison Street
Chicago, Illinois 60634

1601 North Milwaukee Avenue
Chicago, Illinois 60647

1545 Ellinwood Ave

Des Plaines, Illinois 60016
927 Curtiss Street

Downers Grove, Illinois 60515
645 Tollgate Road

Elgin, Illinois 60123

9668 Franklin Avenue
Franklin Park, Illinois 60131
1441 Waukegan Road
Glenview, Illinois 60025

500 West Chestnut Street
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521

1604 West Colonial Parkway
Inverness, Illinois 60067

204 E. State Road

Island Lake, Illinois 60042
274444 W. Route 120
Lakemoor, Illinois 60050
585 Ela Road

Lake Zurich, Illinois 60047
1190 Old McHenry Road
Long Grove, Illinois 60047
5555 Bull Valley Road
McHenry, Illinois 60050

50 N. Main Street

Mount Prospect, Illinois 60056
1730 Park Street

Naperville, Illinois 60563
8301 West Lawrence
Norridge, Illinois 60656

444 N. Rand Road

North Barrington, Illinois 60010
505 North Roselle Road
Roselle, Illinois 60172

17622 Depot Street

Union, Illinois 60180

* Land is leased and building is owned.
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Date Net Book Value at Leased or
Acquired December 31, 2007 Owned
(In thousands)
1987 $ 1,167 Owned
1959 1,775 Owned
2002 1,270 Owned
1994 605 Owned
2006 7 Leased
2006 523 Leased
2006 100 Leased
1986 22 Leased
1993 785 Owned
1996 1,026 Owned
2003 3,041 Owned
2007 5,100 Owned
1996 115 Leased
2006 — Leased
2006 207 Leased
2003 638 Leased
1991 1,369 Owned
2006 — Leased
1998 286 Owned
2007 2,247 Leased
2007 20 Leased
2003 — Leased
1998 1,092 Owned
2007 5,948 Owned
2006 548 Owned
2003 103 *
2007 4,680 Owned
1999 2,148 Owned
1987 75 Owned
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Management believes that the facilities are of sound construction, in good operating condition, appropriately
insured, and adequately equipped for carrying on the business of the Company.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are from time to time parties to various legal actions arising in the normal
course of business. Management believes that there is no proceeding pending against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which, if determined adversely, would have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or
results of operations of the Company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s common stock is traded over-the-counter and quoted on the NASDAQ Global Market under
the symbol “MBHI.” As of March 1, 2008, the Company had approximately 3,800 stockholders of record. The
table below sets forth the high and low sale prices of the common stock and the cash dividends declared during the
periods indicated.

Dividends Declared

High Low Per Common Share

2006
First Quarter $ 26.65 $ 21.94 $ 0.12
Second Quarter 25.89 20.99 0.13
Third Quarter 25.18 20.89 0.13
Fourth Quarter 25.17 22.34 0.13

2007
First Quarter $ 2444 $ 1740 $ 0.13
Second Quarter 18.03 14.50 0.13
Third Quarter 15.95 12.78 0.13
Fourth Quarter 15.80 11.45 0.13

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On May 3, 2006, the Company announced a 5.0% stock repurchase program. During 2006, the Company
repurchased 204,188 shares of its common stock at an average price of $23.37. During 2007, the Company
repurchased 661,500 shares of its common stock at an average price of $14.25. These shares were acquired in
private and public transactions as part of the Company’s stock repurchase program. As of December 31, 2007,
there
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were 374,111 shares still authorized to be repurchased under this program. The following table sets forth the
common stock repurchased during the fourth quarter of 2007.

Total
Number
of Shares Maximum Number
Total Purchased as Part of Shares that
Number Average of Publicly May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Purchased Under
Period Purchased per Share or Programs the Plans or Programs
10/1/07 - 10/31/07 83,000 $ 13.58 83,000 631,111
11/1/07 - 11/30/07 257,000 12.92 257,000 374,111
12/1/07 - 12/31/07 — — — 374,111
Total 340,000 $ 13.08 340,000 374,111

Information regarding the equity compensation plan is included in Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters and the information included therein is
incorporated herein by reference.

Holders of common stock are entitled to receive such dividends that may be declared by the Board of
Directors from time to time and paid out of funds legally available therefore. Because the Company’s consolidated
net income consists largely of net income of the Bank, the Company’s ability to pay dividends depends upon its
receipt of dividends from the Bank. The Bank’s ability to pay dividends is regulated by banking statutes. See
“Supervision and Regulation, Financial Institution Regulation — Dividend Limitations.” The declaration of
dividends by the Company is discretionary and depends on the Company’s earnings and financial condition,
regulatory limitations, tax considerations and other factors including limitations imposed by the terms of the
Company’s revolving lines of credit and limitations imposed by the terms of the Company’s outstanding junior
subordinated debentures owed to its unconsolidated trusts. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity.” While the Company expects to continue to pay
dividends quarterly, there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in the future.

Issuance of Preferred Stock — Use of Proceeds

Pursuant to the Registration Statement No. 333-147295 effective November 26, 2007, the Company entered
into an underwriting agreement on December 5, 2007 with various underwriters, including Stifel Nicolaus,
Friedman Billings Ramsey, Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inc., and Howe Barnes Hoefer & Arnett, to offer 1,500,000
depositary shares each representing 1/100th of a share of its Series A noncumulative redeemable convertible
perpetual preferred stock, at $25.00 per depositary share. In addition, pursuant to the underwriting agreement, the
Company granted the underwriters an over-allotment option to purchase up to an additional 225,000 depositary
shares. The Company closed on the public offering of the 1,500,000 depositary shares on December 10, 2007. On
December 12, 2007, the underwriters notified the Company that they were exercising the over-allotment option.
The Company closed on the exercise of the over-allotment option on December 14, 2007 selling 225,000
depositary shares. The depositary shares are convertible into the Company’s common stock, par value $0.01 per
share. The Company raised $41.4 million in new equity capital, net of $1.7 million issuance costs, through this
public offering. The infusion of capital strengthened the Company’s balance sheet as well as allowed it to partially
pay down $5.0 million in balances outstanding on its term note and $15.0 million on its revolving line of credit as
well as contribute $20.0 million in capital to the Bank.
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Performance Graph

The following graph shows a comparison of the cumulative returns for the Company, the S&P 500 Index, and
the NASDAQ Market Bank Stocks Index for the period beginning December 31, 2002 and ending December 31,
2007. The information assumes that $100 was invested at the closing price on December 31, 2002 in the common
stock of the Company and each index and that all dividends were reinvested.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain selected consolidated financial data at or for the periods indicated. In
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the results of operations and gain on sale of Midwest Bank of Western Illinois
are shown in the Company’s statements of income for 2003, 2004, and 2005 as “discontinued operations.” This
information should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements and notes
thereto included herein. See “Item 8, Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Income Data:

Total interest income $ 193,869 $ 159,262 $ 112,244 $ 91,962 $ 98,108
Total interest expense 111,237 83,980 50,797 41,780 43,260
Net interest income 82,632 75,282 61,447 50,182 54,848
Provision for loan losses 4,891 12,050 2,589 3,400 9,455
Noninterest income 15,477 14,551 (6,245) (88) 19,829
Noninterest expenses 71,395 58,615 60,527 46,491 38,099
Income (loss) before income taxes and

discontinued operations 21,823 19,168 (7,914) 203 27,123
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,246 1,422 (6,325) (2,869) 7,779
Income (loss) from continuing

operations 18,577 17,746 (1,589) 3,072 19,344
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations — — 7,533 (696) 3,437
Net income 18,577 17,746 5,944 2,376 22,781
Preferred stock dividends (204) — — — —
Net income available to common

stockholders $ 18,373 $ 17,746 $ 5944 $ 2376 $ 22,781

Per Common Share Data:
Earnings per share (basic) from

continuing operations $ 0.72 $ 076 $ (0.08) §$ 0.17 $  1.09
Earnings per share (basic) from

discontinued operations — — 0.38 (0.04) 0.19
Earnings per share (basic) 0.72 0.76 0.30 0.13 1.28
Earnings per share (diluted) from

continuing operations 0.72 0.75 (0.08) 0.17 1.06
Earnings per share (diluted) from

discontinued operations — — 0.38 (0.04) 0.19
Earnings per share (diluted) 0.72 0.75 0.30 0.13 1.25
Cash dividends declared 0.52 0.51 0.48 0.48 0.44
Book value at end of period 11.94 11.65 9.91 7.66 8.01
Tangible book value at end of period

(non-GAAP measure)(10) 5.56 7.97 9.78 7.49 7.80
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Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Financial Ratios:
Return on average assets
from continuing
operations(1) 0.58% 0.67% (0.07)% 0.13% 0.87%
Return on average equity
from continuing

operations(2) 6.13 7.04 (0.95) 2.17 13.12
Dividend payout ratio 73.04 67.95 162.38 279.59 40.55
Average equity to

average assets 9.53 9.57 7.29 6.12 6.60
Tier 1 risk-based capital 9.21 11.92 16.97 13.27 13.68
Total risk-based capital 10.17 12.97 18.07 14.65 14.74
Net interest margin (tax

equivalent)(3)(4)(5) 3.02 3.32 3.31 2.82 3.19
Loan to deposit ratio(5) 100.66 99.44 88.62 73.07 67.23
Net overhead expense to

average assets(5)(6) 1.76 1.67 2.14 1.58 1.01
Efficiency ratio(5)(7) 68.29 60.55 75.44 72.79 49.56

Loan Quality Ratios(5):
Allowance for loan
losses to total loans at

the end of year 1.08 1.19 1.32 1.48 1.51
Provision for loan losses

to total loans 0.20 0.62 0.19 0.31 0.99
Net loans charged off to

average total loans 0.20 0.59 0.09 0.17 0.82

Nonaccrual loans to total
loans at the end of

year(8) 1.99 2.20 0.59 0.85 1.56
Nonperforming assets to
total assets(9) 1.39 1.55 0.83 0.78 0.96

Allowance for loan
losses to nonaccrual

loans 0.54x 0.54x 2.25x 1.74x 0.97x
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 3,692,782 $ 2,942,046 $ 2,307,608 $ 2,236,813 $ 2,264,149
Total earning assets(5) 3,266,461 2,617,894 2,126,227 1,807,609 1,807,207
Average assets 3,181,990 2,635,138 2,305,086 2,310,594 2,234,293
Loans(5) 2,474,327 1,946,816 1,349,996 1,097,299 955,380
Allowance for loan
losses(5) 26,748 23,229 17,760 16,217 14,459
Deposits(5) 2,458,148 1,957,810 1,523,384 1,501,646 1,421,027
Borrowings(5) 821,063 652,774 538,480 320,636 418,797
Stockholders’ equity 375,164 287,242 216,126 137,423 143,081

Tangible stockholders’
equity(non-GAAP
measure)(5)(10) 197,713 196,481 213,447 134,315 139,400

(1) Net income divided by average assets.
(2) Net income divided by average equity.

(3) Net interest income, on a fully tax-equivalent basis, divided by average earning assets.
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(4) The following table reconciles reported net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis for the periods

presented:
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Net interest income $ 82,632 $ 75,282 $ 61,447 $ 50,182 $ 54,848
Tax-equivalent adjustment to net interest
income 3,612 4,286 2,628 2,399 3,511

Net interest income, fully tax-equivalent basis $ 86,244  § 79,568 $ 64,075 $ 52,581 $ 58,359

(5) Reflects continuing operations due to the sale of bank subsidiary on September 30, 2005.
(6) Noninterest expense less noninterest income, excluding security gains or losses, divided by average assets.

(7) Noninterest expense excluding amortization of intangible assets and foreclosed properties expense divided
by noninterest income, excluding security gains or losses, plus net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent
basis.

(8) Includes total nonaccrual, impaired and all other loans 90 days or more past due.
(9) Includes total nonaccrual, all other loans 90 days or more past due, and other real estate owned.

(10) Stockholders’ equity less goodwill, core deposit intangible and other intangible assets. Management
believes that tangible stockholders’ equity (non-GAAP measure) is a more useful measure since it excludes
the balances of intangible assets. The following table reconciles reported stockholders’ equity to tangible
stockholders’ equity for the periods presented:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Stockholders’ equity $ 375,164  § 287,242 § 216,126 $ 137,423  § 143,081
Core deposit intangible and other
intangibles, net 17,044 11,273 1,788 2,217 2,790
Goodwill 160,407 79,488 891 891 891
Tangible stockholders’ equity $ 197,713 $ 196,481 § 213,447 § 134315 $ 139,400
34
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

The Company’s principal business is conducted by the Bank which provides of a full range of
community-based financial services, including commercial and retail banking. The profitability of the Company’s
operations depends primarily on its net interest income, provision for loan losses, noninterest income, noninterest
expenses, and income taxes. Net interest income is the difference between the income the Company receives on its
loan and securities portfolios and its cost of funds, which consists of interest paid on deposits and borrowings. The
provision for loan losses reflects the cost of credit risk in the Company’s loan portfolio. Noninterest income
consists of service charges on deposit accounts, securities gains or losses, net trading profits or losses, gains on
sales of loans, insurance and brokerage commissions, trust income, increase in cash surrender value of life
insurance, and other noninterest income. Noninterest expenses include salaries and employee benefits, occupancy
and equipment expenses, professional services, and other noninterest expenses. The Company is subject to state
and federal income taxes.

Net interest income is dependent on the amounts of and yields on interest-earning assets as compared to the
amounts of and rates on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income is sensitive to changes in market interest
rates and is dependent on the Company’s asset/liability management procedures to react appropriately to such
changes. The provision for loan losses is based upon management’s assessment of the collectibility of the loan
portfolio under current economic conditions. Noninterest expenses are influenced by the growth of operations,
with additional employees necessary to staff and marketing expenses necessary to promote the Bank branches.
Growth in the number of account relationships directly affects such expenses as data processing costs, supplies,
postage, and other miscellaneous expenses. The provision for income taxes is affected by tax law and regulation,
accounting principles and policies, and income tax strategies. See Note 2 and Note 23 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements for more details.

The following discussion and analysis is intended as a review of significant factors affecting the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company for the periods indicated. The discussion should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto and the Selected Consolidated
Financial Data presented herein. In addition to historical information, the following Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking statements that involve risks
and uncertainties. The Company’s actual results could differ significantly from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors discussed in this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. By their nature,
changes in these assumptions and estimates could significantly affect the Company’s financial position or results
of operations. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Discussed below are those critical accounting
policies that are of particular significance to the Company.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of probable
credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Estimating the amount of the allowance for loan losses requires
significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on
impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience, and
consideration of current economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change.
The loan portfolio also represents the largest asset type on the consolidated balance sheet. Loan losses are charged
off against the allowance, while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance. A
provision for loan losses is charged to operations based on management’s periodic evaluation of the factors
previously mentioned, as well as other pertinent factors.

The Company’s methodology for determining the allowance for loan losses represents an estimation
performed pursuant to SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” and SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors
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for Impairment of a Loan.” The allowance reflects expected losses resulting from analyses developed through
specific credit allocations for individual loans and historical loss experience for each loan category. The specific
credit allocations are based on regular analyses of commercial, commercial real estate and agricultural loans over
$300,000 where the internal credit rating is at or below a predetermined classification. These analyses involve a
high degree of judgment in estimating the amount of loss associated with specific loans, including estimating the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values. The allowance for loan losses also includes
consideration of concentrations and changes in portfolio mix and volume and other qualitative factors. In addition,
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examinations, may require the Company to make additions to the
allowance based on their judgment about information available to them at the time of their examinations.

There are many factors affecting the allowance for loan losses; some are quantitative while others require
qualitative judgment. The process for determining the allowance (which management believes adequately
considers all of the potential factors which potentially result in credit losses) includes subjective elements and,
therefore, may be susceptible to significant change. To the extent actual outcomes differ from management
estimates, additional provisions for credit losses could be required that could adversely affect the Company’s
earnings or financial position in future periods.

A loan is impaired when full payment of all principal and interest under the original loan terms is not
expected. Impairment is evaluated in total for smaller-balance loans of similar nature such as residential mortgage
and consumer loans and on an individual basis for other loans. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is
allocated so that the loan is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s
existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral.

Income Taxes: The Company recognizes expense for federal and state income taxes currently payable as well
as for deferred federal and state taxes for estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the tax
basis of assets and liabilities and amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets, as well as loss carryforwards
and tax credit carryforwards. Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon generating sufficient taxable
income in either the carryforward or carryback periods to cover net operating losses generated by the reversal of
temporary differences. A valuation allowance is provided by way of a charge to income tax expense if it is
determined that it is not more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax asset will be realized. If different
assumptions and conditions were to prevail, the valuation allowance may not be adequate to absorb unrealized
deferred taxes and the amount of income taxes payable may need to be adjusted by way of a charge or credit to
expense. Furthermore, income tax returns are subject to audit by the IRS and state taxing authorities. Income tax
expense for current and prior periods is subject to adjustment based upon the outcome of such audits. The
Company believes it has adequately accrued for all probable income taxes payable. Accrual of income taxes
payable and valuation allowances against deferred tax assets are estimates subject to change based upon the
outcome of future events.

The Company has entered into tax allocation agreements with its subsidiary entities included in the
consolidated US federal and unitary and combined state income tax returns. These agreements govern the timing
and amount of income tax payments required by the various entities.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) released FASB Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48
clarifies the accounting and reporting for uncertainties in the application of income tax laws, providing a
comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of income
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. The Company’s adoption of FIN 48 on
January 1, 2007 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of
operations. See Note 23 — Income Taxes for more details.

Evaluation of Securities for Impairment: Securities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has
the ability and intent to hold those securities to maturity. Accordingly, they are stated at cost adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts. Securities are classified as available-for-sale when the
Company may decide to sell those securities due to changes in market interest rates, liquidity needs, changes in
yields or alternative investments, and for other reasons. They are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and
losses, net of taxes, reported in other comprehensive income (loss). Interest income is reported net of amortization
of premium and accretion of discount. Realized gains and losses on the disposition of securities available-for-sale
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are based on the net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amounts of the securities sold, using the specific
identification method. Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their
cost that are deemed to be other than temporary are recognized in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other
than temporary losses, management considers (1) the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been
less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the
Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery
in fair value.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements where the FASB had previously concluded in those pronouncements that fair value is the relevant
measurement attribute. Accordingly, SFAS No. 157 does not require any new financial assets and liabilities to be
measured at fair value. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for the Company), and interim periods within those fiscal years. The
Company has determined that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a material effect on its results of
operations or financial position.

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, including an amendment of SFAS No. 115,” which creates a fair value option allowing an entity to
irrevocably elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings as they occur. SFAS No. 159 also requires an
entity to report those financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in a manner that separates
those reported fair values from the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities measured using another measurement
attribute on the face of the statement of financial position. Lastly, SFAS No. 159 requires an entity to provide
information that would allow users to understand the effect on earnings due to changes in the fair value on those
instruments selected for the fair value election. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for the Company). The Company has not elected to use the fair value option
under SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” to provide
guidance in the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. SAB No. 108 requires registrants to
quantify an error under two methods: (1) quantify the misstatement based on the amount of the error originating in
the current-year income statement (“Rollover Approach”) and (2) quantify the misstatement based on the effects of
correcting the misstatement existing in the balance sheet at the end of the current-year irrespective of the
misstatement’s year(s) origination (“Iron Curtain Approach”). Consequently, a registrant’s financial statements
would require adjustment when either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that is material, after
considering all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. SAB No. 108 was effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The application of SAB No. 108 as of January 1, 2007 did
not have any impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business Combinations,” which replaces the current
standard on business combinations, modifies the accounting for business combinations and requires, with limited
exceptions, the acquirer in a business combination to recognize all of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and
any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value. SFAS No. 141R also requires certain
contingent assets and liabilities acquired as well as contingent consideration to be recognized at fair value. In
addition, the statement requires payments to third parties for consulting, legal, audit, and similar services
associated with an acquisition to be recognized as expenses when incurred rather than capitalized as part of the
business combination. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and
early adoption is not permitted.

2007 Developments

On October 1, 2007, the Company completed its acquisition of Northwest Suburban in a cash and stock
merger transaction. At acquisition, Northwest Suburban had total assets of $546.2 million. The agreement and plan
of
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merger provided that the Company’s stock comprised up to 45% of the purchase price, at an exchange ratio of
2.4551 shares of Company common stock for each Northwest Suburban common share, and that the remainder be
paid in cash at the rate of $42.75 for each share of Northwest Suburban common stock. The Company issued

3.7 million shares of common stock, paid $81.2 million in cash, and incurred $414,000 in costs that were
capitalized for a total purchase price of $136.7 million. Mr. Dennis M. O’Hara, a director of Northwest Suburban,
joined the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank upon closing. Mr. John G. Eilering, Northwest
Suburban’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer joined the Bank as Area President — Northwest. Mr. Stephan
L. Markovits, President of Northwest Suburban joined the Bank as Executive Vice President — Commercial
Lending. The systems conversions were successfully completed during the weekend of October 27. The Company
used the proceeds from a $75.0 million term note under a borrowing facility it has with a correspondent bank to
pay for a portion of the cash requirement of the acquisition. The term note has an initial rate of one-month LIBOR
plus 140 basis points and matures on September 28, 2010.

This acquisition added five more branches and made the Company, based on deposits, the 17th largest bank in
the Chicago area as well as expanding the Company’s geographic footprint in the northwest suburbs. Northwest
Suburban’s branch locations in Des Plaines, Lakemoor, Lake Zurich, Mount Prospect, and North Barrington
provide a complimentary addition to the Company’s branches in northwest Cook, DuPage, Kane, Lake, and
McHenry counties. In addition, the Company believes that this acquisition will contribute to expansion and
diversification of its loan portfolio, its deposit base, and its noninterest income. All key sales professionals from
Northwest Suburban were retained.

In July 2007, the Company entered into a joint marketing arrangement with the largest privately held
mortgage bank in Chicago. Through this arrangement, approximately fifteen of the Company’s employees became
employees of the mortgage bank, eliminating the fixed costs and regulatory risk associated with this very cyclical
and complex business. The marketing arrangement also enabled the Company to offer its customers an even
broader array of residential mortgage products.

In December 2007, the Company raised $41.4 million in new equity capital, net of issuance costs, through an
offering of 1,725,000 depositary shares, each representing 1/100th of a share of its Series A noncumulative
redeemable convertible perpetual preferred stock, at $25.00 per depositary share. The infusion of capital
strengthened the Company’s balance sheet as well as allowed it to partially pay down balances outstanding on its
term note and revolving line of credit and contribute capital to the Bank.

During 2007, the Company repurchased 661,500 shares of its common stock at an average price of $14.25.
There remains 374,111 of capacity to repurchase shares on the Company’s existing authorized repurchase program
at December 31, 2007. See Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
for details on the common stock repurchased during 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, FNMA and FHLMC preferred equity securities represented $85.1 million or 11.0%
of the total amortized cost of the Company’s portfolio of investment securities and $66.0 million or 8.8% of the
fair value of the Company’s portfolio of investment securities. Management does not believe the unrealized loss
on these equity securities of $19.2 million as of December 31, 2007 represents other-than-temporary impairment
as of that date. These unrealized losses are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates as well as turbulent
economic conditions impacting the credit markets in the second half of 2007. See Note 5 — Securities to the
consolidated financial statements for more details on the Company’s securities portfolio.

2006 Developments

On July 1, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of Royal American. At acquisition, Royal American
had total assets of $561.2 million. The Company issued 2.9 million common shares, paid $64.6 million in cash,
and incurred $795,000 in costs that were capitalized for a total purchase price of $129.2 million.

During the second half of 2006, the Company repurchased 204,188 shares of its common stock at an average
price of $23.37. These shares were acquired in private and public transactions as part of the Company’s 5% stock
repurchase program.
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Earnings for 2006 were reduced by provisions for loan losses recorded to reflect the deterioration of one large
lending relationship, the Large Problem Credit. Developments in this customer’s operations, relating to uncertainty
of the customer’s ability to collect a large account receivable, prompted the Company to record a $5.5 million
provision for loan losses and charge off $7.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2006. The Company also recorded a
loan loss provision of $5.0 million relating to this problem relationship in the second quarter of 2006.

The Company reduced its loan concentrations in 2006. The balance outstanding for borrowing relationships of
$30.0 million or more decreased by $124.0 million, or 56.7% compared to 2005.

2005 Developments

In June 2005, the Company completed its balance sheet repositioning which included the sale of low-yielding,
long duration U.S. government-sponsored entity notes, prepayment of long-term high cost FHLB advances, and
redemption of 10% trust preferred securities, which resulted in pre-tax charges of $30.8 million from continuing
operations.

On August 16, 2005, the Company issued 3,450,000 shares of its common stock at $21.00 per share in a
secondary public offering. This offering, which included 450,000 shares to cover over-allotments, increased equity
by $67.9 million, after issuance costs.

The Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Western Illinois Bancshares, Inc., pursuant to
which WIB acquired Midwest Bank of Western Illinois, Monmouth, Illinois (“MBWTI”), formerly one of the
Company’s bank subsidiaries. The sale of MBWI closed on September 30, 2005. The sale price was $32.0 million.
MBWI made a dividend distribution to the Company, prior to the sale closing, in the amount of $3.9 million. The
after-tax gain on the sale of MBWI of $6.9 million is shown in the income statement as discontinued operations
for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Consolidated Results of Operations
2007 Compared to 2006
Set forth below are some highlights of 2007 results compared to 2006.

* Net income was $18.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $17.7 million for the
prior year.

* Core income (defined as income excluding merger-related expense as reconciled below in “Supplemental
Information”) was $19.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, or 3.6% higher compared to core
income of $18.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

* Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2007 were both $0.72 compared to
$0.76 and $0.75 for basic and diluted, respectively, for 2006.

* The return on average assets was 0.58% for 2007 compared to a 0.67% for 2006, core return on average
assets (as reconciled below) was 0.61% for 2007 compared to 0.71% for 2006.

* The return on average equity was 6.13% in 2007 compared to a 7.04% in 2006; core return on average
equity (as reconciled below) was 6.39% for 2007 compared to 7.42% for 2006.

 Top line revenue (net interest income plus noninterest income) increased by $8.3 million, or 9.2%, to
$98.1 million for 2007 compared to $89.8 million in the prior year.

* The carrying cost of the previously disclosed Large Problem Credit continues to have a substantial negative
impact on earnings, reducing net income by approximately $0.10 per diluted share in 2007. The Large
Problem Credit accounted for $29.0 million of nonaccrual loans at year end 2007.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis increased $6.7 million, or 8.4%, to
$86.2 million in 2007 from $79.6 million in 2006. The Northwest Suburban acquisition contributed to the increase
in the net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 along with loan growth, but interest expense
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increased to a greater extent. The Company’s net interest margin (tax equivalent net interest income as a
percentage of earning assets) decreased to 3.02% for 2007 compared to 3.32% for 2006.

Trends in fully tax equivalent interest income and average earning assets include:

Interest income increased $33.9 million to $197.5 million in 2007 compared to $163.5 million in 2006.
Average earning assets increased by $464.1 million ($498.3 million of earning assets were acquired through
the Northwest Suburban acquisition on October 1, 2007) and average yields increased by 8 basis points.

Interest income on loans increased $31.2 million to $155.3 million in 2007 from $124.1 million in 2006 due
to an increase of $429.8 million in average loans; $439.2 million in loans were acquired in the Northwest
Suburban acquisition on October 1, 2007.

Interest income on securities increased $2.3 million to $40.4 million in 2007 from $38.1 million in 2006 as
a result of an increase in yields on securities from 5.39% in 2006 to 5.55% while average securities
increased $21.2 million, or 3.0%.

Trends in interest expense and average interest-bearing liabilities include:
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Interest expense increased $27.3 million to $111.2 million in 2007 from $84.0 million in 2006. Average
balances on interest-bearing liabilities increased by $436.4 million in 2007 to $2.6 billion compared to
$2.1 billion in the prior year while rates paid increased 39 basis points to 4.34% during 2007 compared to
3.95% in 2006.

Interest expense on deposits increased by $19.2 million to $76.7 million in 2007 from $57.5 million in
2006. Average interest-bearing deposits increased $273.0 million to $1.9 billion in 2007 compared to
$1.6 billion in the prior year; $405.4 million in interest-bearing deposits were acquired in the Northwest
Suburban acquisition on October 1, 2007. Average rates paid on interest-bearing deposits increased by
50 basis points to 4.13% in 2007 compared to 3.63% in the prior year.

» Average interest-bearing core deposits (interest-bearing demand deposit, money market, and savings
accounts) increased $71.6 million in 2007 compared to 2006 and average rates paid increased 46 basis
points.

 Average certificates of deposit less than $100,000 increased by $14.0 million while average rates paid
increased by 67 basis points. Average certificates of deposit greater than $100,000 increased
$187.4 million in 2007 and average rates paid increased 3 basis points. Average brokered deposits
increased by $129.4 million in 2007 compared to the prior year.

Interest expense on borrowings increased by $8.1 million to $34.5 million in 2007 from $26.5 million in
2006. Average borrowings increased by $163.4 million to $708.8 million in 2007 compared to

$545.4 million in the prior year, primarily a result of the Company’s asset growth exceeding deposit growth
and $81.2 million cash used for the Northwest Suburban acquisition.

Interest expense on Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase increased
by $1.2 million in 2007 as a result of the increases in average balances of $48.4 million.

Interest expense on FHLB advances increased by $5.0 million in 2007 compared to the prior year while
average balances increased by $88.4 million during the same period. Average rates paid on FHLB advances
rose by 37 basis points in 2007 to 4.66% compared to 4.29% in 2006.

Average junior subordinated debentures decreased by $5.3 million in 2007 compared to the prior year while
rates paid increased by 18 basis points. The Company acquired $10.3 million in junior subordinated
debentures at LIBOR plus 2.70% through the Northwest Suburban acquisition, and redeemed $15.5 million
at LIBOR plus 3.45% in November 2007.

Average notes payable increased by $21.2 million in 2007 compared to the prior year. The Company used
the proceeds from a $75.0 million term note it has with a correspondent bank to pay the cash portion of the
Northwest Suburban acquisition. The term note has an initial rate of one-month LIBOR plus 140 basis
points.
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* Short-term LIBOR rates, which most of the Company’s borrowings are indexed to, have been declining and
are anticipated to continue its decline in the near term.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses decreased by $7.2 million to $4.9 million in 2007
from $12.1 million in 2006; the 2006 provision reflects the deterioration in the credit quality of the Large Problem
Credit.

The Company recorded a $5.5 million provision for loan losses and charged off $7.5 million of Large
Problem Credit loans in the fourth quarter of 2006. The Company recorded a loan loss provision of $5.0 million
relating to this problem relationship in the second quarter of 2006. Net outstandings for the Large Problem Credit
have increased by $3.2 million since December 31, 2006 to $29.0 million representing 59.0% of total nonaccrual
loans at December 31, 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, the allowance for loan losses totaled $26.7 million, or 1.08% of total loans, and
was equal to 54.4% of nonaccrual loans compared to $23.2 million, or 1.19% of total loans, and 54.2% of
nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2006. The allowance was increased by $2.8 million as a result of the Northwest
Suburban acquisition.

Noninterest Income. The Company’s total noninterest income was $15.5 million in 2007 compared to
$14.6 million in 2006. Noninterest income as a percentage of average assets was 0.49% for 2007 compared to
0.55% for the prior year. The changes in noninterest income are noted below:

* $964,000 increase in service charges on deposits as a result of an increased deposit base;

* $669,000 increase in the cash surrender value of life insurance reflecting an addition of $12.9 million of
such insurance acquired from Northwest Suburban;

+ $938,000 increase in trust income reflecting an entire year’s earnings from the trust assets under
management previously acquired from Royal American on July 1, 2006;

* $297,000 increase in insurance and brokerage commissions mostly as a result of increased annuity sales;

* $317,000 decrease in gains on sale of loans resulting from the outsourcing of residential mortgage
origination operations;

* $1.3 million gain on extinguishment of debt in 2006; and
* $624,000 decrease in trading profits.

As part of its strategic plan, the Company has introduced an enhanced sales initiative aimed at increasing
cross-selling to both new and existing customers. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company launched a
marketing campaign aimed at our community bank brand and risk-based pricing for consumer loans.

Noninterest Expense. The Company’s total noninterest expense increased by $12.8 million, or 21.8%, to
$71.4 million in 2007 from $58.6 million in 2006. Noninterest expense as a percentage of average assets was
2.24% for 2007 compared to 2.22% for 2006. The increase in total noninterest expenses in 2007 was primarily due
to the following factors:

» Salaries and employee benefits increased $7.7 million reflecting the additions to management and
employees from the Royal American and Northwest Suburban acquisitions;

» Non-capitalized merger related expense was $1.3 million in 2007 compared to $1.6 million in 2006;

* Occupancy and equipment increased $2.4 million in 2007 compared to the prior year reflecting the
additional branches acquired in the Royal American and Northwest Suburban acquisitions;

» Marketing expenses increased by $260,000 in 2007 compared to the prior year due to increased marketing
activity;
» Amortization of intangible assets increased by $695,000; and
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* Professional services increased $499,000 in 2007 due to an increase in loan workout legal fees and
consulting expense.

The efficiency ratio was 68.29% for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to 60.55% in 2006. The
core efficiency ratio (which excludes the merger related charges as reconciled below in “Supplemental
Information”) was 67.00% for 2007 and 58.86% for 2006 mostly due to the net interest margin compression.

Federal and State Income Tax. The Company’s consolidated income tax rate varies from statutory rates. The
Company recorded income tax expense of $3.2 million in 2007 compared to $1.4 million in 2006. Set forth below
is a reconciliation of the effective tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 to statutory rates.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

Income taxes computed at the statutory rate § 7,638 35.0% $ 6,709 35.0%
Tax-exempt interest income on securities and loans (771) 3.5 (1,171) 6.1)
General business credits (643) (2.9) (665) (3.5)
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit due to state

operating loss (1,027) 4.7 (676) (3.9
Income tax reserve reversal — — (591) 3.1)
Life insurance cash surrender value increase, net of premiums (1,072) 4.9 (838) 4.4)
Dividends received deduction (1,214) (5.6) (1,106) (5.8)
Nondeductible meals and entertainment 45 0.2 27 0.2
Annuity proceeds 267 1.2 —
Merger related expenses — — (278) (1.5)
Stock based compensation, net — — 56 0.3
Other 23 0.1 (45) (0.2)

Total provision for income taxes $§ 3,246 149% § 1,422 7.4%

Recent Developments.

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System which allows it to borrow, and it has
borrowed, funds from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago (“FHLB Chicago™). As a result, it is required to
hold capital stock of the FHLB Chicago. In October 2007, the FHLB Chicago announced that it entered into a
consensual cease and desist order with its regulator which prohibits it from redeeming or repurchasing any capital
stock from members or declaring dividends on its capital stock without prior approval. The FHLB Chicago did not
pay a dividend for the fourth quarter of 2007. During the first nine months of 2007, the Company held
$16.0 million in FHLB Chicago stock which earned 2.8% on average. As a result of the acquisition of Northwest
Suburban, the Company held $17.0 million in FHLB Chicago stock beginning October 1, 2007. The Company’s
future earnings will be negatively impacted if the FHLB Chicago decides not to declare dividends in future
quarters.

Prior to September 30, 2007, the Company was granted a one-time credit to offset FDIC premiums as a result
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (“Reform Act”). This one-time credit has maintained the
Company’s 2007 FDIC insurance expense close to its 2006 level. The Company expects this credit to be fully
utilized by the end of the first quarter of 2008. As a result, the Company anticipates that the FDIC insurance
expense will increase by $1.3 million in 2008.

In May 2007, the State of Illinois enacted new legislation that, among other changes, will change the Illinois
apportionment rules for financial organizations and disallow the dividends paid deduction for “captive” real estate
investment trusts (“REITs”). The Company has certain tax structures in place which reduce its income tax expense
including an 80/20 company which holds a portion of the Company’s securities portfolio and a REIT which holds
certain real estate loans previously held by the Bank. Based on the new legislation, the Company expects an
increase in its Illinois income tax liability starting in 2008.
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On January 1, 2008, the Company granted 15,000 shares of restricted stock, with a grant-date fair value of
$12.42, to the new Chairman of the Board of Directors. These shares will vest as follows: 5,000 shares on
January 1, 2008; 5,000 shares on January 1, 2009 and 5,000 shares on January 1, 2010, provided he is serving as
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company as of each such date. On January 28, 2008, the Company
granted 203,324 shares of restricted stock, with a grant-date fair value of $11.05, to officers and key employees.
These shares will vest on the fifth anniversary of issuance unless certain performance goals are achieved prior to
the fifth anniversary. If the Compensation Committee determines that the performance goals have been met, the
restricted stock will vest at that time. The Company’s newly appointed executive vice president and chief financial
officer effective March 17, 2008 will receive an award of 5,000 shares of restricted stock which will vest on
March 17, 2009, provided she is still employed by the Company.

As of December 31, 2007, FNMA and FHLMC preferred equity securities represented $85.1 million or 11.0%
of the total amortized cost of the Company’s portfolio of investment securities and $66.0 million or 8.8% of the
fair value of the Company’s portfolio of investment securities. Management does not believe the unrealized loss
on these equity securities of $19.2 million as of December 31, 2007 represents other-than-temporary impairment
as of that date. These unrealized losses are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates as well as turbulent
economic conditions impacting the credit markets in the second half of 2007. See Note 5 — Securities to the
consolidated financial statements for more details on the Company’s securities portfolio.

2006 Compared to 2005

Set forth below are some highlights of 2006 results compared to 2005 for continuing operations. In
accordance with SFAS No. 144, the results of operations for MBWI, which was sold in 2005, are shown in the
Company’s statement of income as “discontinued operations” and are not included below.

¢ Income was $17.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to a loss of $1.6 million for the
prior year.

* Core income (defined as income excluding the merger related and balance sheet repositioning charges as
reconciled below in “Supplemental Information™) was $18.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
or 7.4% higher compared to core income of $17.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

* Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $0.76 and $0.75,
respectively, compared to a loss of $0.08 per share for both basic and diluted for 2005.

* 2006 earnings were reduced by provisions for loan losses recorded to reflect the deterioration of the Large
Problem Credit. The Company recorded a loan loss provision of $5.0 million relating to this problem
relationship in the second quarter of 2006. In the fourth quarter, the Company recorded a $5.5 million
provision for loan losses and charged off $7.5 million of these loans to reflect the deterioration of the
relationship with this borrower.

* The return on average assets was 0.67% for 2006 compared to a negative 0.07% for 2005; core return on
average assets (as reconciled below) was 0.71% for 2006 compared to 0.76% for 2005.

* The return on average equity was 7.04% in 2006 compared to a negative 0.95% in 2005; core return on
average equity (as reconciled below) was 7.42% for 2006 compared to 10.37% for 2005.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis increased $15.5 million, or 24.2%, to
$79.6 million in 2006 from $64.1 million in 2005. The Royal American acquisition contributed to the increase in
the net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 along with organic loan growth and an increase in
rates, while interest expense increased to a lesser extent. The Company’s net interest margin (tax equivalent net
interest income as a percentage of earning assets) slightly increased to 3.32% for 2006 compared to 3.31% for
2005.

Trends in fully tax equivalent interest income and average earning assets include:

* Interest income increased $48.7 million to $163.5 million in 2006 compared to $114.9 million in 2005.
Average earning assets increased by $457.7 million (approximately $262.2 million of this increase was
attributable to the Royal American acquisition) and average yields increased by 90 basis points.
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* Interest income on loans increased $43.9 million to $124.1 million in 2006 from $80.2 million in 2005 due
to an increase in average rates paid on loans from 6.63% to 7.48% and an increase of $448.0 million in
average loans; $261.8 million of the increase in average loans was from the Royal American acquisition.

* Interest income on securities increased $4.7 million to $38.1 million in 2006 from $33.4 million in 2005 as
a result of an increase in yields on securities from 4.81% in 2005 to 5.39% in 2006 while average securities
increased $12.9 million, or 1.9%.

Trends in interest expense and average interest-bearing liabilities include:

+ Interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities increased $33.2 million to $84.0 million in 2006 from
$50.8 million in 2005. Average balances on interest-bearing liabilities increased by $360.3 million in 2006
to $2.1 billion compared to $1.8 billion in the prior year while rates paid increased 108 basis points to
3.95% during 2006 compared to 2.87% in 2005.

* Interest expense on interest-bearing deposits increased by $23.5 million to $57.5 million in 2006 from
$34.1 million in 2005. Average interest-bearing deposits increased $237.2 million to $1.6 billion in 2006
compared to $1.3 billion in the prior year; $188.0 million of the increase was attributable to the Royal
American acquisition. Average rates paid on interest-bearing deposits increased by 110 basis points to
3.63% in 2006 compared to 2.53% in the prior year.

» The migration of demand deposit, interest-bearing demand deposit, money market, and savings accounts
into certificates of deposit and the reliance on more expensive wholesale funds contributed to the increase
in the cost of funds.

» Average interest-bearing core deposits (interest-bearing demand deposit, money market, and savings
accounts) decreased $26.7 million in 2006 compared to 2005 and rates paid increased 38 basis points.

» Average certificates of deposit less than $100,000 remained flat while rates paid increased by 101 basis
points. Average certificates of deposit greater than $100,000 increased $266.1 million in 2006 and rates
paid increased by 176 basis points. Average brokered deposits increased by $136.5 million in 2006
compared to the prior year.

* Interest expense on borrowings increased by $9.7 million to $26.5 million in 2006 from $16.7 million in
2005. Average borrowings increased by $123.0 million to $545.4 million in 2006 compared to
$422.4 million in the prior year mainly due to the increase in FHLB advances; $15.0 million of the increase
in borrowings was from the Royal American acquisition. This increase in borrowings was a result of the
Company’s difficulty in raising lower cost deposits.

* Interest expense on Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase increased
by $4.7 million in 2006 as a result of the increases in rates of 155 basis points and average balances of
$23.5 million.

* Interest expense on FHLB advances increased by $4.1 million in 2006 compared to the prior year while
average balances increased by $94.6 million during the same period; a $5.0 million FHLB advance was
acquired in the Royal American acquisition. Average rates paid on FHLB advances rose by only 4 basis
points in 2006 to 4.29% compared to 4.25% in 2005.

» The Company used $64.6 million of the cash raised through a secondary public offering to pay for the
Royal American acquisition. Funding costs increased as a result of replacing these funds with more
expensive borrowings, which were offset by the increase in net interest income resulting from the Royal
American acquisition.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses increased by $9.5 million to $12.1 million in 2006
from $2.6 million in 2005 due primarily to the deterioration in the credit quality of a large lending relationship.
Developments in this customer’s operations, relating to uncertainty of the customer’s ability to collect a large
account receivable, prompted the Company to record a $5.5 million provision for loan losses and charge off
$7.5 million of these loans in the fourth quarter of 2006. The Company recorded a loan loss provision of
$5.0 million relating to this problem relationship in the second quarter of 2006. As of December 31, 2006, the
allowance for loan
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losses totaled $23.2 million, or 1.19% of total loans, and was equal to 54.2% of nonaccrual loans compared to
$17.8 million, or 1.32% of total loans, and 224.7% of nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2005.

Noninterest Income. The Company’s total noninterest income was $14.6 million in 2006 compared to the loss
of $6.2 million in 2005. The loss in 2005 was primarily due to the losses on securities transactions of
$17.4 million, mainly as a result of a balance sheet repositioning. Other changes in noninterest income are noted
below:

* $1.3 million 2006 gain on extinguishment of debt. The Company, as part of its program of repositioning the
maturities of its borrowings, recognized a gain on the extinguishment of debt of $625,000 in the first
quarter of 2006 as a result of the prepayment of a $28.0 million repurchase agreement and recognized
$625,000 gain in the second quarter of 2006 as a result of the assignment of a $50.0 million FHLB advance;

» $629,000 increase in the cash surrender value of life insurance reflecting an additional purchase of bank
owned life insurance of $6.0 million in 2006 and $12.5 million of such insurance acquired with Royal
American;

* $616,000 increase in trust income primarily as a result of the trust operations acquired from Royal
American;

+ $594,000 increase in service charges on deposits mainly due to the increase in noninterest-bearing demand
deposit service charges of $1.1 million which was partially offset by the decrease in overdraft fees of
$514,000;

*+ $471,000 increase in insurance and brokerage commissions as a result of increased staff and brokerage
activity;

+ $403,000 increase in gains on sale of loans due to a 134.5% increase in loans sold as a result of a higher
level of mortgage refinancing volume; and

» $211,000 increase in trading profits.

As part of its strategic plan, the Company is focusing on opportunities to increase noninterest income
especially in the areas of corporate cash management, insurance and investment services, trust services, and
secondary-market mortgage lending.

Noninterest Expense. The Company’s total noninterest expense decreased by $1.9 million, or 3.2%, to
$58.6 million in 2006 from $60.5 million in 2005; 2005 reflects approximately $13.6 million in charges taken in
connection with the balance sheet repositioning. Noninterest expense as a percentage of average assets was 2.22%
for 2006 compared to 2.63% for 2005. The decrease in total noninterest expense in 2006 was primarily due to the
following factors:

* The loss on extinguishment of debt of $13.1 million in 2005, which did not occur in 2006;

* Other real estate expense decreased by $2.2 million in 2006 compared to 2005 as a result of a $2.4 million
write down of other real estate owned in the second quarter of 2005;

» Salaries and employee benefits increased $7.8 million reflecting additions to management and the
50 full-time equivalent employees from the Royal American acquisition;

* Non-capitalized merger related expense was $1.6 million in 2006;

* Occupancy and equipment increased $1.5 million in 2006 compared to the prior year reflecting the
additional branches acquired in the Royal American acquisition;

» Marketing expenses increased by $294,000 in 2006 compared to the prior year due to increased marketing
activity; and

* Professional services increased $248,000 in 2006 due to an increase in consulting expense.
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The efficiency ratio was 60.55% for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 75.44% in 2005. The
core efficiency ratio (which excludes the merger related and balance sheet repositioning charges as reconciled
below in “Supplemental Information”) was 58.86% for 2006 and 58.00% for 2005.

Federal and State Income Tax. The Company’s consolidated income tax rate varies from statutory rates. The
Company recorded income tax expense of $1.4 million in 2006 compared to the income tax benefit of $6.3 million
in 2005. Set forth below is a reconciliation of the effective tax rate from continuing operations for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 to statutory rates.

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Income taxes computed at the statutory rate $ 6,709 35.0% § (2,770) (35.00%
Tax-exempt interest income on securities and loans (1,171) 6.1) (563) (7.1)
General business credits (665) 3.5) (255) 3.2)
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit due to state

operating loss (676) (3.5 (952) (12.0)
Income tax reserve reversal (591) 3.1) — —
Life insurance cash surrender value increase, net of premiums (838) 4.4) (615) (7.8)
Life insurance death benefit — — (276) (3.5
Dividends received deduction (1,106) (5.8) (868) (11.0)
Nondeductible meals and entertainment 27 0.2 13 0.2
Merger related expenses (278) (1.5) — —
Stock based compensation, net 56 0.3 — —
Other (45) (0.2) (39) (0.5)

Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 1,422 7.4% § (6,325) (79.9)%

Supplemental Information. Core income from continuing operations is income from continuing operations
excluding merger related charges and balance sheet repositioning charges. Management believes that core income
from continuing operations is a more useful measure of operating performance since it excludes items that are not
recurring in nature. In addition, management believes core income is more reflective of current trends. The
following table reconciles reported income from continuing operations to core income from continuing operations
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 18,577 $ 17,746  $ (1,589)
Merger related charges, net of tax 806 961 —
Loss on sale of U.S. government-sponsored entity notes, net of tax — — 10,595
Charge from prepayment of FHLB advances, net of tax — — 5,886
Charge from unwinding of swaps, net of tax — — 2,206
Charge from redemption of trust preferred securities, net of tax — — 318
Core income from continuing operations (non-GAAP measure) $ 19,383  $ 18,707 $ 17,416

Core return on average assets
is core income from continuing operations, reconciled above, divided by average assets for that period. Core
return on average equity
is core income from continuing operations, reconciled above, divided by average equity for that period.
Management believes that core return on average assets and average equity are more useful measures of operating
performance since it excludes items that are not recurring in nature and are more reflective of current trends.
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The efficiency ratio is noninterest expense less amortization of intangible assets and foreclosed properties
expenses divided by the sum of net interest income (tax equivalent) plus noninterest income. Core efficiency ratio
excludes charges from the balance sheet repositioning and retirement benefit obligation as well as the merger
related charges. Management believes that the core efficiency ratio is a more useful measure since it excludes
items that are not recurring in nature and is more reflective of current trends. The following table reconciles
reported noninterest expense to core noninterest expense for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Noninterest expense $ 71,395 $ 58,615 $ 60,527
Merger related charges (1,312) (1,595) —
Charge from prepayment of FHLB advances — — (9,547)
Charge from unwinding of swaps — — (3,578)
Charge from redemption of trust preferred securities — — (516)
Core noninterest expense (non-GAAP measure) $ 70,083 $ 57,020 $ 46,886
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The following table sets forth the average balances, net interest income and expense and average yields and

rates for the Company’s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities for the indicated periods on a
tax-equivalent basis assuming a 35.0% tax rate.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-Earning Assets:
Federal funds sold and
interest-bearing deposits due from
banks $ 17,124 $ 839 490% $ 10,009 $ 506 5.06% $ 18,576  $ 505 2.72%
Securities:
Taxable(1) 669,154 36,901 5.51 613,485 32,593 5.31 662,100 31,448 4.75
Exempt from federal income
taxes(1) 58,844 3,491 5.93 93,347 5,492 5.88 31,801 1,920 6.04
Total securities 727,998 40,392 5.55 706,832 38,085 5.39 693,901 33,368 4.81
FRB and FHLB stock 24,697 839 3.40 18,105 693 3.83 14,081 727 5.16
Loans held for sale 1,450 89 6.14 2,028 125 6.16 805 47 5.84
Loans:
Commercial loans(1)(3)(4) 452,438 34,105 7.54 296,533 23,219 7.83 183,553 12,194 6.64
Commercial real estate
loans(1)(3)(4)(6) 1,336,421 100,954 7.55 1,110,828 83,891 7.55 842,889 57,130 6.78
Agricultural loans(1)(3)(4) 3,406 268 7.87 2,456 191 7.78 1,615 116 7.18
Consumer real estate
loans(3)(4)(6) 285,999 19,207 6.72 240,601 16,207 6.74 178,982 10,492 5.86
Consumer installment loans(3)(4) 10,432 788 7.55 8,502 631 7.42 3,834 293 7.64
Total loans 2,088,696 155,322 7.44 1,658,920 124,139 7.48 1,210,873 80,225 6.63
Total interest-earning assets $ 2,859,965 $ 197,481 6.91% $ 2,395,894 § 163,548 6.83% $ 1,938,236 § 114,872 5.93%
Noninterest-Earning Assets:
Cash $ 57,185 $ 61,519 $ 47,201
Premises and equipment, net 27,093 21,706 22,706
Allowance for loan losses (24,977) (22,115) (17,562)
Other assets 262,724 178,134 314,505
Total noninterest-earning assets 322,025 239,244 366,850
Total assets $ 3,181,990 $ 2,635,138 $ 2,305,086
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Deposits:
Interest-bearing demand deposits $ 182276 $ 3,366 1.85% $ 150,503 $ 1,759 1.17% $ 176,355 $ 2,147 1.22%
Money-market demand accounts and
savings accounts 386,722 9,949 2.57 346,933 7,571 2.18 347,792 5,718 1.64
Time deposits less than $100,000 761,698 37,114 4.87 747,676 31,370 4.20 747,611 23,814 3.19
Time deposits of $100,000 or more 525,649 26,263 5.00 326,516 16,287 4.99 60,405 1,950 3.23
Public funds — — — 11,703 531 4.54 13,943 438 3.14
Total interest-bearing deposits 1,856,345 76,692 4.13 1,583,331 57,518 3.63 1,346,106 34,067 2.53
Borrowings:
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements 304,269 13,131 432 255,843 11,913 4.66 232,326 7,229 3.11
FHLB advance 317,232 14,769 4.66 228,811 9,808 4.29 134,194 5,701 4.25
Junior subordinated debt 66,114 5,275 7.98 60,776 4,741 7.80 55,672 3,791 6.81
Notes payable 21,212 1,370 6.46 — — — 202 9 4.46
Total borrowings 708,827 34,545 4.87 545,430 26,462 4.85 422,394 16,730 3.96
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 2,565,172 $ 111,237 434% $ 2,128,761 $ 83,980 3.95% $ 1,768,500 $ 50,797 2.87%
Noninterest-Bearing Liabilities:
Demand deposits $ 274,819 $ 220,706 $ 154,180
Other liabilities 38,804 33,495 214,381
Total noninterest-bearing liabilities 313,623 254,201 368,561
Stockholders’ equity 303,195 252,176 168,025
Total liabilities and stockholders’
equity $ 3,181,990 $ 2,635,138 $ 2,305,086
Net interest income (tax
equivalent)(1)(5) $ 86,244 2.57% $ 79,568 2.88% $ 64,075 3.05%
Net interest margin (tax
equivalent)(1) 3.02% 3.32% 3.31%
Net interest income(2)(5) $ 82,632 $ 75,282 $ 61,447
Net interest margin(2) 2.89% 3.14% 3.17%

(1) Adjusted for 35% tax rate and adjusted for the dividends-received deduction where applicable.

(2) Not adjusted for 35% tax rate or for the dividends-received deduction.

(3) Nonaccrual loans are included in the average balance; however, these loans are not earning any interest.
(4) Includes loan fees (in thousands) of $2,747, $3,113, and $2,610 for 2007, 20 06, and 2005, respectively.
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(5) The following table reconciles reported net interest income on a tax equivalent basis for the periods
presented (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Net interest income $ 82,632 $ 75,282 $ 61,447
Tax-equivalent adjustment to net interest income 3,612 4,286 2,628
Net interest income, fully tax-equivalent basis $ 86,244 $ 79,568 $ 64,075

(6) Includes construction loans.

Changes in Interest Income and Expense

The changes in net interest income from period to period are reflective of changes in the interest rate
environment, changes in the composition of assets and liabilities as to type and maturity (and the inherent interest
rate differences related thereto), and volume changes. Later sections of this discussion and analysis address the
changes in maturity composition of loans and investments and in the asset and liability repricing gaps associated
with interest rate risk, all of which contribute to changes in net interest margin.
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The following table sets forth an analysis of volume and rate changes in interest income and interest expense
of the Company’s average interest-earning assets and average interest-bearing liabilities for the indicated periods
on a tax-equivalent basis assuming a 35.0% tax rate. The table distinguishes between the changes related to
average outstanding balances (changes in volume holding the interest rate constant) and the changes related to
average interest rates (changes in average rate holding the outstanding balance constant). The change in interest
due to both volume and rate has been allocated to volume and rate changes in proportion to the relationship of the

absolute dollar amounts of the change in each.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 Compared to 2006 2006 Compared to 2005
Change Due to Change Due to
Net Volume Rate Net Volume Rate
(In thousands)
Interest-Earning Assets:
Federal funds sold and interest-
bearing due from banks $ 333 $ 349 § (16) $ 1 $§ @03 $ 304
Securities taxable 4,308 3,037 1,271 1,145 (2,414) 3,559
Securities exempt from federal
income taxes (2,001) (2,047) 46 3,572 3,622 (50)
FRB and FHLB stock 146 231 (85) (34) 180 (214)
Loans held for sale (36) (35) (1) 78 75 3
Commercial loans 10,886 11,782 (896) 11,025 8,545 2,480
Commercial real estate loans 17,063 17,041 22 26,761 19,687 7,074
Agricultural loans 77 75 2 75 65 10
Consumer real estate loans 3,000 3,049 (49) 5,715 3,988 1,727
Consumer installment loans 157 146 11 338 347 9)
Total interest-earning assets $ 33,933 $33,628 $§ 305 $ 48,676 § 33,792 § 14,884
Interest-Bearing Liabilities:
Interest-bearing demand
deposits $ 1,607 $ 429 $ 1,178 $ (388) $ (305 $ (83)
Money market demand accounts
and savings accounts 2,378 929 1,449 1,853 (14) 1,867
Time deposits of less than
$100,000 5,744 598 5,146 7,556 2 7,554
Time deposits of $100,000 or
more 9,976 9,949 27 14,337 12,758 1,579
Public funds (531) (531) — 93 (79) 172
Federal funds purchased and
repurchase agreements 1,218 2,136 918) 4,684 793 3,891
FHLB advances 4,961 4,057 904 4,107 4,055 52
Junior subordinated debentures 534 424 110 950 367 583
Notes payable 1,370 1,370 — 9) 9) —
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 27,257 $ 19,361 $ 7,896 § 33,183 $ 17,568 $ 15,615
Net interest $ 6,676 $ 14267 § (7,591) §$ 15493 § 16,224 § (731)
50
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Financial Condition

The following table sets forth the changes in the balance sheet at December 31, 2007 compared to

December 31, 2006 excluding the Northwest Suburban acquisition on October 1, 2007.
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Excluding Excluding
Northwest Northwest
Northwest Suburban Suburban
December 31, Suburban Acquisition Acquisition
2007 2006 $ Change Acquisition(1) $ Change % Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents(2) $ 84,499 § 100,532 $ (16,033) § 3,342 $ (19,375) (19.3)%
Securities available-for-sale, at
fair value 710,881 589,981 120,900 57,597 63,303 10.7
Securities held-to-maturity, at
amortized cost 37,601 45,931 (8,330) — (8,330) (18.1)
Total securities 748,482 635,912 112,570 57,597 54,973 8.6
Federal Reserve and Federal
Home Loan Bank stock 29,264 23,592 5,672 1,503 4,169 17.7
Loans held for sale — 2,672 (2,672) — (2,672) (100.0)
Loans 2,474,327 1,946,816 527,511 439,249 88,262 4.5
Allowance for loan loss (26,748) (23,229) (3,519) (2,767) (752) 3.2
Net loans 2,447,579 1,923,587 523,992 436,482 87,510 4.5
Cash surrender value of life
insurance 81,166 65,220 15,946 12,884 3,062 4.7
Premises and equipment, net 41,821 21,960 19,861 19,279 582 2.7
Other real estate 2,220 2,640 (420) — (420) (15.9)
Core deposit and other
intangibles, net 17,044 11,273 5,771 8,061 (2,290) (20.3)
Goodwill 160,407 79,488 80,919 80,550 369 0.5
Other assets 80,300 75,170 5,130 7,914 (2,784) (3.7
Total assets $ 3,692,782 $ 2,942,046 $ 750,736 $ 627,612 $ 123,124 4.2%
Liabilities and stockholders’
equity:
Noninterest-bearing $ 321,317 $ 276381 § 44936 $ 65299 $ (20,363) (7.4)%
Interest-bearing 2,136,831 1,681,429 455,402 405,361 50,041 3.0
Total deposits 2,458,148 1,957,810 500,338 470,660 29,678 1.5
Federal funds purchased 81,000 66,000 15,000 6,170 8,830 134
Securities sold under agreements
to repurchase 283,400 201,079 82,321 — 82,321 40.9
Advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank 323,439 319,883 3,556 3,500 56 0.0
Junior subordinated debentures 60,724 65,812 (5,088) 10,310 (15,398) (23.4)
Notes payable 72,500 — 72,500 75,000 (2,500) (100.0)
Due to broker 1,539 — 1,539 — 1,539 100.0
Other liabilities 36,868 44,220 (7,352) 6,982 (14,334) (32.4)
Total liabilities 3,317,618 2,654,804 662,814 572,622 90,192 34
Total stockholders’ equity 375,164 287,242 87,922 54,990 32,932 11.5
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity $ 3,692,782 $ 2,942,046 $ 750,736 $ 627,612 $ 123,124 4.2%

(1) Includes fair value adjustments.

(2) Northwest Suburban Acquisition column includes cash and cash equivalents acquired through Northwest
Suburban of $10,066 less cash paid for acquisition of $81,163, capitalized costs of $414, costs relating to

registration statement of $147, and $75,000 borrowing.
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Set forth below are some balance sheet highlights at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006
excluding changes from the Northwest Suburban acquisition.
* Total assets increased $123.1 million, or 4.2%.
* Loans increased $88.3 million, or 4.5%.
* Securities increased by $55.0 million, or 8.6%.
* Deposits increased by $29.7 million, or 1.5%.
Set forth below are some asset quality highlights at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006.

* The allowance for loan losses was 1.08% of total loans at December 31, 2007 versus 1.19% at
December 31, 2006. The allowance for loan losses increased by $2.8 million due to the Northwest
Suburban acquisition.

* Nonaccrual loans decreased to 1.99% of total loans at December 31, 2007 from 2.20% at December 31,
2006. The Large Problem Credit accounted for $29.0 million, or 59.0%, of the $49.2 million in nonaccrual
loans at December 31, 2007.

+ Allowance to nonaccrual loans coverage 0.54x for 2007 and 2006.

» Net loans charged off to average total loans were 0.20% for 2007 compared to 0.59% for 2006. The prior
year includes the $7.5 million charge off in the fourth quarter to reflect deterioration of the Large Problem
Credit.

Loans
The following table sets forth the composition of the Company’s loan portfolio as of the indicated dates.

December 31,

2007(1) 2006(2) 2005(2) 2004(2) 2003(2)
(In thousands)
Commercial $ 1,015,799 $§ 376944 $ 201,284 $§ 184,558 $ 182,344
Construction 444,613 424,181 358,785 270,836 253,951
Commercial real estate 600,451 761,742 496,819 411,535 359,047
Home equity 157,987 147,366 115,429 100,322 77,772
Other consumer 10,968 9,373 4,273 4,377 5,062
Residential mortgage 244 874 227,762 174,184 126,047 77,916
Total loans, gross 2,474,692 1,947,368 1,350,774 1,097,675 956,092
Net deferred fees (365) (552) (778) (376) (712)
Total loans 2,474,327 1,946,816 1,349,996 1,097,299 955,380
Allowance for loan losses (26,748) (23,229) (17,760) (16,217) (14,459)
Net loans $ 2,447,579 $ 1,923,587 $ 1,332,236 $ 1,081,082 $ 940,921
Loans held for sale:
Consumer real estate $ — 3 2,672 % 1912 $ 693 § 1,571

(1) Source of repayment classification.

(2) Collateral-based classification.

During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company revised its classification of commercial loans and commercial
real estate loans, changing its prior practice of classifying as commercial real estate loans all loans to a business
that included real estate as collateral (“collateral-based” classification). The classification of construction, home
equity, and residential mortgages were also reviewed. The new method of presentation (“source of repayment”
classification) recognizes that loans to owner-occupied businesses engaged in manufacturing, sales and/or services
are commercial loans, regardless of whether real estate is taken as collateral. These loans generally have a lower
risk
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profile than traditional commercial real estate loans. They are primarily dependent on the borrower’s
business-generated cash flows for repayment, not on the conversion of real estate that may be pledged as
collateral. Loans related to rental income producing properties and properties intended to be sold will continue to
be classified as commercial real estate loans. Completing this change in methodology involved a loan-by-loan
review of the Company’s commercial and commercial real estate loans. The new presentation methodology is
being implemented only as of December 31, 2007 and prospectively, as it is impracticable to apply it to prior
years’ data. The Company’s loan portfolio composition at December 31, 2007 under the new “source of
repayment” and prior “collateral-based” methodologies was as follows:

Source of Repayment Collateral-Based
% of Gross % of Gross
Amount Loans Amount Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial $ 1,015,799 41.0% $§ 464,902 18.8%
Construction 444,613 18.0 451,103 18.2
Commercial real estate 600,451 24.3 1,087,876 44.0
Home equity 157,987 6.4 193,506 7.8
Other consumer 10,968 04 10,968 0.4
Residential mortgage 244,874 9.9 266,337 10.8
Total loans, gross 2,474,692 100.0% 2,474,692 100.0%
Net deferred fees (365) (365)
Total loans, net $ 2,474,327 $ 2,474,327

The following table sets forth the changes in composition of the Company’s loan portfolio (collateral-based
classification) as of December 31, 2007 excluding the loans acquired through the Northwest Suburban acquisition
compared to December 31, 2006. The collateral-based classification was used for comparability purposes.

Excluding Excluding
Northwest Northwest
Northwest Suburban Suburban
December 31, Suburban Acquisition Acquisition
2007 2006 $ Change Acquisition(1) $ Change % Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial $ 464902 § 376944 § 87958 § 94510 $ (6,552) (1.7)%
Construction 451,103 424,181 26,922 55,060 (28,138) (6.6)
Commercial real estate 1,087,876 761,742 326,134 211,929 114,205 15.0
Home equity 193,506 147,366 46,140 45,698 442 0.3
Other consumer 10,968 9,373 1,595 4,238 (2,643) (28.2)
Residential mortgage 266,337 227,762 38,575 27,814 10,761 4.7
Total loans, gross 2,474,692 1,947,368 527,324 439,249 88,075 4.5
Net deferred fees (365) (552) 187 — 187 (33.9)
Total loans 2,474,327 1,946,816 527,511 439,249 88,262 45
Allowance for loan
losses (26,748) (23,229) (3,519) (2,767) (752) 3.2
Net loans $ 2,447,579 $ 1,923,587 $ 523,992 $ 436,482 $ 87,510 4.5%

(1) Based on Northwest Suburban’s FRY-9C September 30, 2007 data with acquisition fair value adjustments.

Set forth below are other highlights of changes in the loan portfolio excluding changes from the Northwest
Suburban acquisition.

* Total loans increased $88.3 million, or 4.5%.

» Commercial loans decreased $6.6 million, or 1.7%.
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* Construction loans decreased by $28.1 million or 6.6%.

» Commercial real estate loans rose by $114.2 million or 15.0%.
 Consumer loans decreased $2.2 million or 1.4%.
 Residential mortgage loans increased $10.8 million or 4.7%.

There were no loans held for sale at December 31, 2007 compared to $2.7 million at December 31, 2006 In
July 2007, the Company entered into a joint marketing arrangement with a leading privately held mortgage bank in
Chicago and exited the mortgage banking business resulting in no loans held for sale at year-end 2007.
Management believes that this arrangement will enable the Company to provide better pricing to its customers
while also providing the Company with a high quality source of additional loan volume.

The Company attempts to balance the types of loans in its portfolio with the objective of managing risk. Some
of the risks the Company evaluates in its lending business include:

* The primary risks associated with commercial loans are the quality of the borrower’s management, financial
strength and cash flow resources, and the impact of local economic factors.

* Risks associated with real estate loans include concentrations of loans in a certain loan type, such as
commercial or residential, and fluctuating land and property values.

» Consumer loans also have risks associated with concentrations of loans in a single type of loan, as well as
the risk a borrower may become unemployed as a result of deteriorating economic conditions.

The Company does not hold any sub-prime loans in its portfolio.

Loan Maturities

The following table sets forth the remaining maturities, based upon contractual dates, for selected loan
categories (source of repayment classification) as of December 31, 2007.

One Year 1-5 Years Over 5 Years
Or Less Fixed Variable Fixed Variable Total
(In thousands)

Commercial $ 491960 $ 380,517 $ 70972 $ 59,169 $ 13,181 $ 1,015,799

Construction 396,858 25,427 20,572 1,756 — 444,613

Commercial real estate 190,069 355,928 39,633 13,406 1,415 600,451

Home equity 16,450 14,349 66,248 180 60,760 157,987

Other consumer 6,203 4,082 683 — — 10,968

Residential mortgage 51,688 57,993 11,925 63,321 59,947 244,874

Total loans, gross 1,153,228 838,296 210,033 137,832 135,303 2,474,692
Net deferred fees (365)

Total loans $ 2,474,327

Nonaccrual Loans

The Company’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, including the recognition
of interest income on its loan portfolio. The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time a loan is
90 days past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Past due status is based on
contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier date if
collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are
placed on nonaccrual or charged off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted
for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. A loan is returned to accrual
status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are
reasonably assured.
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Under SFAS No. 114 and No. 118, the Company currently defines loans that are individually evaluated for
impairment to include commercial, commercial real estate and agricultural loans over $300,000 where the internal
credit rating is at or below a predetermined classification. All other smaller balance loans with similar attributes
are evaluated for impairment in total.

The classification of a loan as impaired or nonaccrual does not necessarily indicate that the principal is
uncollectible, in whole or in part. Subject to the de minimus level noted above, the Company makes a
determination as to the collectibility on a case-by-case basis based upon the specific facts of each situation. The
Company considers both the adequacy of the collateral and the other resources of the borrower in determining the
steps to be taken to collect impaired or nonaccrual loans. Alternatives that are typically considered to collect
impaired or nonaccrual loans are foreclosure, collection under guarantees, loan restructuring, or judicial collection
actions.

Loans that are considered to be impaired are reduced to the present value of expected future cash flows or to
the fair value of the related collateral by allocating a portion of the allowance to such loans. If these allocations
require an increase to be made to the allowance for loan losses, such increases are included in the provision for
loan losses charged to expense.

The following table sets forth information on the Company’s nonaccrual loans and nonperforming assets as of
the indicated dates.

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Impaired and other loans 90 days past due

and accruing $ — $ 34 $ 4 $ 21 $ 11
Nonaccrual and impaired loans not

accruing $ 49,173 $ 42,826 $ 7,905 $ 9,296 $ 14,916
Foreclosed properties 2,220 2,640 11,154 8,064 6,712
Total nonperforming assets $ 51,393 $ 45,466 $ 19,059 $ 17,360 $ 21,628
Total nonaccrual loans to total loans 1.99% 2.20% 0.59% 0.85% 1.56%
Total nonperforming assets to total loans

and foreclosed properties 2.08 2.33 1.40 1.57 2.25
Total nonperforming assets to total assets 1.39 1.55 0.83 0.78 0.96

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Company recognized interest income on impaired loans of $1.4 million,
$2.9 million, and $2.4 million, respectively.

Nonaccrual loans increased $6.3 million to $49.2 million at December 31, 2007 from $42.8 million at
December 31, 2006. The Company previously announced the downgrading of a large loan relationship linked to a
single long-standing customer (Large Problem Credit) to substandard in the second quarter of 2006. On
December 31, 2007, total nonaccrual loans related to the Large Problem Credit were $29.0 million, representing
59.0% of total nonaccrual loans. The borrower’s corporate entities have filed for protection under chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code. The Company continues to aggressively pursue collection through the court system and the
liquidation of collateral to pay down these loans. While the current carrying value of these loans at December 31,
2007 reflects management’s best current estimate of net realizable value, there can be no assurance that additional
losses may not be incurred.

Foreclosed properties decreased to $2.2 million in 2007 from $2.6 million in 2006. There were no additions to
foreclosed properties in 2007. Foreclosed properties are carried at their estimated net realizable value.

Total nonperforming assets increased by $5.9 million from $45.5 million in 2006 to $51.4 million in 2007.
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The following table sets forth information on the impact of the Large Problem Credit on the Company’s
nonaccrual loans and nonperforming assets as of the indicated dates.

December 31,

2007 2006
Nonaccrual loans
Large Problem Credit $ 28,989 $ 25,825
Remainder of portfolio 20,184 17,001
Total nonaccrual loans $ 49,173 $ 42,826
Nonperforming assets
Large Problem Credit $ 28,989 $ 25,825
Remainder of portfolio 22,404 19,641
Total nonperforming assets $§ 51,393 $ 45466
Loans
Large Problem Credit $ 28,989 $ 27,902
Remainder of portfolio 2,445,338 1,918,914
Total loans $ 2,474,327 $ 1,946,816
Loan-related assets(1)
Large Problem Credit $ 28,989 $ 27,902
Remainder of portfolio 2,447,558 1,921,554
Total loan-related assets $ 2,476,547 $ 1,949,456
Nonaccrual loans to loans
Total 1.99% 2.20%
Without Large Problem Credit 0.83 0.89
Nonperforming assets to loan-related assets
Total 2.08% 2.33%
Without Large Problem Credit 0.92 1.02

(1) Includes loans and foreclosed properties.

Analysis of Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company recognizes that credit losses will be experienced and the risk of loss will vary with, among
other things; general economic conditions; the type of loan being made; the creditworthiness of the borrower over
the term of the loan; and in the case of a collateralized loan, the quality of the collateral. The allowance for loan
losses represents the Company’s estimate of the amount deemed necessary to provide for probable incurred losses
in the portfolio. In making this determination, the Company analyzes the ultimate collectibility of the loans in its
portfolio by incorporating feedback provided by internal loan staff. The Company makes an ongoing evaluation as
to the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

On a quarterly basis, management of the Bank meets to review the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.
Each loan officer grades his or her individual commercial credits and the Company’s independent loan review
personnel review the officers’ grades. In the event that the loan is downgraded during this review, the loan is
included in the allowance analysis at the lower grade. The grading system is in compliance with the regulatory
classifications, and the allowance is allocated to the loans based on the regulatory grading, except in instances
where there are known differences (e.g., collateral value is nominal).

Estimating the amount of the allowance for loan losses requires significant judgment and the use of estimates
related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of
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homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience, and consideration of current economic trends and
conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change. The loan portfolio also represents the largest
asset type on the consolidated balance sheet. Loan losses are charged off against the allowance, while recoveries of
amounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance. A provision for loan losses is charged to operations
based on management’s periodic evaluation of the factors previously mentioned, as well as other pertinent factors.

The Company’s methodology for determining the allowance for loan losses represents an estimation
performed pursuant to SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” and SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by
Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.” The allowance reflects expected losses resulting from analyses developed
through specific credit allocations for individual loans and historical loss experience for each loan category. The
specific credit allocations are based on regular analyses of commercial, commercial real estate and agricultural
loans over $300,000 where the internal credit rating is at or below a predetermined classification. These analyses
involve a high degree of judgment in estimating the amount of loss associated with specific loans, including
estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values. The allowance for loan losses also
includes consideration of concentrations and changes in portfolio mix and volume and other qualitative factors. In
addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examinations, may require the Company to make
additions to the allowance based on their judgment about information available to them at the time of their
examinations.

There are many factors affecting the allowance for loan losses; some are quantitative while others require
qualitative judgment. The process for determining the allowance (which management believes adequately
considers all of the potential factors which potentially result in credit losses) includes subjective elements and,
therefore, may be susceptible to significant change. To the extent actual outcomes differ from management
estimates, additional provisions for credit losses could be required that could adversely affect the Company’s
earnings or financial position in future periods.
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The following table sets forth loans charged off and recovered by type of loan and an analysis of the
allowance for loan losses for the indicated periods.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
Average total loans $ 2,088,696 $ 1,658,920 $ 1,210,873 $ 984,976 $ 995,078
Total loans at end of year $ 2,474,327 $ 1,946,816 $ 1,349,996 $ 1,097,299 $ 955,380
Total nonaccrual loans $ 49,173 $ 42,826 $ 7,905 $ 9,296 $ 14916
Allowance at beginning of
year $ 23,229 $ 17,760 $ 16,217 $ 14,459 $ 19,540
Addition resulting from
acquisition 2,767 3,244 — — 300
Allowance adjustment for
loan sale by related
parties(1) — — — — (6,685)
Charge-offs:
Commercial loans 5,092 5,912 1,668 819 7,645
Consumer real estate loans 458 360 15 37 48
Commercial real estate
loans 336 4,401 772 1,162 1,500
Agricultural loans — — — — —
Consumer installment
loans 89 136 64 130 77
Total charge-offs 5,975 10,809 2,519 2,148 9,270
Recoveries:
Commercial loans 885 616 1,448 163 1,072
Consumer real estate loans 9 4 5 32 2
Commercial real estate
loans 927 339 6 261 10
Agricultural loans — — — — —
Consumer installment
loans 15 25 14 50 35
Total recoveries 1,836 984 1,473 506 1,119
Net charge-offs 4,139 9,825 1,046 1,642 8,151
Provision for loan losses 4,891 12,050 2,589 3,400 9,455

Allowance at end of the year $ 26,748 $ 23,229 $ 17,760 $ 16,217 $ 14,459

Net charge-offs to average

total loans 0.20% 0.59% 0.09% 0.17% 0.82%
Allowance to total loans at

end of year 1.08 1.19 1.32 1.48 1.51
Allowance to nonaccrual

loans 0.54x 0.54x 2.25x 1.74x 0.97x

(1) Adjustment made following the Bank’s receipt of $13.3 million of proceeds from an entity indirectly owned
by certain directors and family members of directors relating to the sale of previously classified loans, of
which $12.5 million was applied to outstanding principal, $750,000 to fund a letter of credit, and $67,000
applied to accrued interest income and late charges on March 26, 2003. As a consequence, the Bank
recognized a $4.0 million after-tax capital contribution as a result of the sale of these loans to the related
parties.

The provision for loan losses decreased $7.2 million to $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
from $12.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006; the prior year expense reflects the deterioration of the
Large Problem Credit. The Company charged off $7.5 million of these loans to reflect the deterioration of the
Large Problem Credit in 2006. The allowance for loan losses was $26.7 million at December 31, 2007 and
$23.2 million at December 31, 2006. Total recoveries on loans previously charged off were $1.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007 and $984,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Net charge-offs decreased $5.7 million to $4.1 million, or 0.20% of average loans, in 2007 compared to
$9.8 million, or 0.59% of average loans in 2006; the prior year reflects the impact of the $7.5 million charge-off
discussed above. Allowance for loan losses to nonaccrual loans ratio was 0.54x at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

The following table sets forth the Company’s allocation of the allowance for loan losses by types of loans
(collateral based classification) as of the indicated dates.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Loan Loan Loan Loan Loan
Category Category Category Category Category
To To To To To
Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial $ 6,369 21.52% $ 6,156 19.87% $ 7,727 14.54% $ 8,124 16.72% $ 6,479 18.57%
Commercial real estate 19,336 65.15 16,166 65.35 7,807 69.24 6,837 68.92 7,101 72.04
Agricultural 2 0.20 3 0.13 3 0.15 — 0.11 — 0.09
Consumer real estate 603 12.64 352 14.10 864 15.76 385 13.90 257 8.81
Consumer installment 81 0.49 90 0.55 46 0.31 438 0.35 360 0.49
Unallocated 357 — 462 — 1,313 — 44 — 262 —
Total allowance for
loan losses $ 26,748 100.00% $ 23,229 100.00% $ 17,760 100.00% $ 16,217 100.00% $ 14,459 100.00%

As of December 31, 2007, approximately 23.8% of the allowance was allocated to commercial loans, while
26.5% was allocated in the prior year. During March 2003, $13.3 million of classified nonperforming loans were
sold to an insider group. See footnote (1) to the table on the previous page.

The Company had a reserve for losses on unfunded commitments of $233,000 at December 31, 2007 and
2006.

The Company utilizes an internal asset classification system as a means of reporting problem and potential
problem assets. At each scheduled Bank Board of Directors meeting, a watch list is presented, showing significant
loan relationships listed by internal risk rating as Special Mention, Substandard, and Doubtful. Set forth below is a
discussion of each of these classifications.

Special Mention: A special mention extension of credit is defined as having potential weaknesses that
deserve management’s close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may, at some future date,
result in the deterioration of the repayment prospects for the credit or the institution’s credit position. Special
mention credits are not considered as part of the classified extensions of credit category and do not expose an
institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification. They are currently protected but are potentially weak. They
constitute an undue and unwarranted credit risk.

Loans in this category have some identifiable problem but, in management’s opinion, offer no immediate risk
of loss. An extension of credit that is not delinquent also may be identified as special mention. These loans are
classified due to Bank management’s actions or the servicing of the loan. The lending officer may be unable to
properly supervise the credit because of an inadequate loan or credit agreement. There may be questions regarding
the condition of and/or
control over collateral. Economic or market conditions may unfavorably affect the obligor in the future. A
declining trend in the obligor’s operations or an imbalanced position in the balance sheet may exist, although it is
not to the point that repayment is jeopardized. Another example of a special mention credit is one that has other
deviations from prudent lending practices.

If the Bank may have to consider relying on a secondary or alternative source of repayment, then collection
may not yet be in jeopardy, but the loan may be considered special mention. Other trends that indicate that the loan
may deteriorate further include such “red flags™ as continuous overdrafts, negative trends on a financial statement,
such as a deficit net worth, a delay in the receipt of financial statements, accounts receivable ageings, etc. These
loans on a regular basis can be 30 days or more past due. Judgments, tax liens, delinquent real estate taxes,
cancellation of insurance policies and exceptions to Bank policies are other “red flags.”

Substandard: A substandard extension of credit is one inadequately protected by the current sound net worth
and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Extensions of credit so classified must have
a
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well-defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the
distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. In other words, there is
more than a normal risk of loss. Loss potential, while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard credits, does
not have to exist in individual extensions of credit classified substandard.

The likelihood that a substandard loan will be paid from the primary source of repayment may also be
uncertain. Financial deterioration is underway and very close attention is warranted to insure that the loan is
collected without a loss. The Bank may be relying on a secondary source of repayment, such as liquidating
collateral, or collecting on guarantees. The borrower cannot keep up with either the interest or principal payments.
If the Bank is forced into a subordinated or unsecured position due to flaws in documentation, the loan may also
be substandard. If the loan must be restructured, or interest rate concessions made, it should be classified as such.
If the bank is contemplating foreclosure or legal action, the credit is likely substandard.

Doubtful: An extension of credit classified doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified
substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of
currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable. The possibility of loss is
extremely high; however, because of certain important and reasonably specific pending factors that may work to
the advantage of and strengthen the credit, its classification as an estimated loss is deferred until its more exact
status may be determined. Pending factors may include a proposed merger or acquisition, liquidation proceedings,
capital injection, perfecting liens on additional collateral, or refinancing plans.

If the primary source of repayment is gone, and there is doubt as to the quality of the secondary source, then
the loan will be considered doubtful. If a court suit is pending, and is the only means of collection, a loan is
generally doubtful. As stated above, the loss amount in this category is often undeterminable, and the loan is
classified doubtful until said loss can be determined.

The Company’s determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation allowances
is subject to review by the Bank’s primary regulators in the course of its regulatory examinations, which can order
the establishment of additional general or specific loss allowances. There can be no assurance that regulators, in
reviewing the Company’s loan portfolio, will not request the Company to materially increase its allowance for
loan losses. Although management believes that adequate specific and general loan loss allowances have been
established, actual losses are dependent upon future events and, as such, further additions to the level of specific
and general loan loss allowances may become necessary. The Company’s allowance for loan losses at
December 31, 2007 is considered by management to be adequate.

The Company holds certain loans that are accounted for under Statement of Position 03-3, “Accounting for
Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer” (“SOP 03-3), which addresses accounting for
differences between contractual cash flows and cash flows expected to be collected from an investor’s initial
investment in loans or debt securities acquired in a transfer if those differences are attributable, at least in part, to
credit quality. It includes loans acquired in purchase business combinations and applies to all nongovernmental
entities. SOP 03-3
does not apply to loans originated by the Company. The Company’s assessment identified $5.9 million in acquired
loans to which the application of the provisions of SOP 03-3 was required. As a result of the application of
SOP 03-3,
the Company recorded purchase accounting adjustments reflecting a reduction in loans of $2.0 million related to
acquired impaired loans, thus reducing the carrying value of these loans to $3.9 million as of December 31, 2007.
See Note 3 — Business Combinations to the consolidated financials statements.

Securities

The Company manages its securities portfolio to provide a source of both liquidity and earnings. The
Company has an asset/liability committee which develops current investment policies based upon its operating
needs and market circumstances. The investment policy of the Bank is reviewed by senior financial management
of the Company in terms of its objectives, investment guidelines and consistency with overall Company
performance and risk management goals. The Bank’s investment policy is formally reviewed and approved
annually by its Board of Directors. The asset/liability committee of the Bank is responsible for reporting and
monitoring compliance with the investment policy. Reports are provided to the Bank’s Board of Directors and the
Board of Directors of the Company on a regular basis.
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The following tables set forth the composition of the Company’s securities portfolio by major category as of
the indicated dates. The securities portfolio as of December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 has been categorized as
either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity in accordance with SFAS No. 115.

U.S. Treasury and
obligations of U.S.
government-sponsored
entities

Obligations of states and
political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Equity securities

Other bonds

Total

U.S. Treasury and
obligations of U.S.
government-sponsored
entities

Obligations of states and
political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Equity securities

Other bonds

Total

U.S. Treasury and
obligations of U.S.
government-sponsored
entities

Obligations of states and
political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed securities

Equity securities

Other bonds

Total

December 31, 2007

Held-to-Maturity Available-for-Sale Total
% of
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
$ — $ — $ 181,983 $ 183,613 $ 181,983 $ 183,613 23.59%
1,254 1,268 60,985 61,400 62,239 62,668 8.07
36,347 35,644 383,633 379,040 419,980 414,684 54.44
— — 85,139 65,979 85,139 65,979 11.04
— — 22,095 20,849 22,095 20,849 2.86
$ 37,601 $ 36,912 $§ 733,835 § 710,881 $ 771,436 § 747,793 100.00%
December 31, 2006
Held-to-Maturity Auvailable-for-Sale Total
% of
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
$ — S — $ 6958 §$§ 6958 $ 6958 § 6,958 1.08%
1,686 1,697 97,167 96,987 98,853 98,684 15.29
44,245 42,990 444,392 434,108 488,637 477,098 75.56
— — 41,131 41,521 41,131 41,521 6.36
— — 11,034 10,407 11,034 10,407 1.71
$ 45,931 $ 44,687 $ 600,682 § 589,981 $ 646,613 § 634,668 100.00%
December 31, 2005
Held-to-Maturity Auvailable-for-Sale Total
% of
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value Cost
(Dollars in thousands)
$ — S — $ 24866 § 24,719 § 24866 $ 24,719 3.27%
6,138 6,182 79,463 78,350 85,601 84,532 11.26
53,313 52,150 521,896 511,312 575,209 563,462 75.66
— — 63,574 62,930 63,574 62,930 8.36
— — 11,054 10,626 11,054 10,626 1.45
$ 59,451 $ 58332 $ 700,853 $ 687,937 $ 760,304 $ 746,269 100.00%

As of December 31, 2007, the Company held no securities of a single issuer with a book value exceeding 10%
of stockholders’ equity other than those of the U.S. Treasury or other U.S. government or government-sponsored

entities.
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The total fair value of the securities portfolio was $747.8 million as of December 31, 2007, or 96.9% of
amortized cost. The total fair value of the securities portfolio was $634.7 million and $746.3 million as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Securities available-for-sale
are carried at fair value, with related unrealized net gains or losses, net of deferred income taxes, recorded as an
adjustment to equity capital. At December 31, 2007, unrealized losses on securities available-for-sale were
$23.0 million, or $13.9 million net of taxes, compared to $10.7 million, or $6.3 million net of taxes, at
December 31, 2006 due to the change in the interest rate environment as well as turbulent economic conditions
impacting the credit markets in the second half of 2007. Of the $23.0 million, $19.2 million was related to
perpetual preferred equity securities issued by FNMA and FHLMC which were rated AA- or better by either
Moody’s or S&P at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and carry tax-equivalent yields averaging 8.22%. The
unrealized losses on these securities increased significantly in late 2007, peaking in mid-November as a result of
unfavorable economic news, mostly related to declines in the sub-prime mortgage market, the housing slump, and
a series of major corrections in the marketplace. Both of these government-sponsored entities raised substantial
new equity capital through the issuance of additional preferred stock in late 2007, which the Company believes
shows investors’ confidence in the issuers’ strength, long-term viability and ability to fund dividends. Despite the
period of time these securities have been impaired and the magnitude of the decline in value, the Company
believes it is too soon as of December 31, 2007 to conclude that the unrealized losses are other-than-temporary in
nature and further believes as of December 31, 2007 that the market fluctuations that precipitated the steep drop in
values in late 2007 will reverse over time. The price performance of these securities subsequent to year-end 2007
has, however, been choppy. If a pattern of recovery does not appear in the near future, the Company would be
required to recognize impairment losses. See Note 5 — Securities to the consolidated financial statements for more
details on the Company’s securities portfolio. The securities portfolio has a low degree of inherent credit risk and
does not contain any sub-prime or Alt-A mortgage-backed securities.

The Company’s securities available-for-sale portfolio increased $120.9 million, or 20.5%, in 2007 compared
to 2006; $56.7 million in securities available-for-sale were acquired through the Northwest Suburban acquisition.
Excluding those acquired, securities available-for-sale increased by $63.3 million in 2007 as cash from the sales of
equity securities during the fourth quarter of 2006 was re-deployed. The Company also changed the mix of its
securities portfolio through the sale of certain municipal bonds and mortgage-backed securities and the investment
in higher-yielding U.S. government-sponsored entities during 2007. Set forth below is a summary of the change in
the available-for-sale securities:

» U.S. Treasury and obligations of U.S. government-sponsored entities increased by $176.7 million to
$183.6 million, or 23.6% of the securities portfolio, at December 31, 2007 compared to $7.0 million at year
end 2006.

» U.S. government agency and government-sponsored entity mortgage-backed securities decreased 12.7%, or
$55.1 million, from $434.1 million at December 31, 2006 to $379.0 million at December 31, 2007.

* Equity securities increased $24.5 million to $66.0 million at December 31, 2007 from $41.5 million at
December 31, 2006. Equity securities included capital securities of U.S. government-sponsored entities.

* Obligations of state and political subdivisions decreased $35.6 million to $61.4 million at December 31,
2007 from $97.0 million at December 31, 2006.

* Other bonds doubled to $20.8 million at December 31, 2007 compared to $10.4 million at December 31,
2006. Other bonds include high grade corporate bonds primarily issued by financial institutions.

Securities held-to-maturity
decreased $8.3 million, or 18.1%, from $45.9 million at December 31, 2006 to $37.6 million at December 31,
2007, mainly due to paydowns on mortgage-backed securities.

There were no trading securities held at December 31, 2007 or December 31, 2006. When acquired, the
Company holds trading securities and derivatives on a short-term basis based on market and liquidity conditions.
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Investment Maturities and Yields

The following tables set forth the contractual or estimated maturities of the components of the Company’s
securities portfolio as of December 31, 2007 and the weighted average yields. The table assumes estimated fair
values for available-for-sale securities and amortized cost for held-to-maturity securities:

Maturing
After One But After Five But
Within One Within Within After
Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Total
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(Dollars in thousands)

Available- for-Sale-Securities:
U.S. Treasury and obligations

of U.S.

government-sponsored

entities $ 2,003 503% $ — —% §$ 181,610 5.76% $ — —% § 183,613  5.75
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 142 3.59 1,867  3.79 43,556  3.74 15,835  4.07 61,400 3.83
Mortgage-backed securities — — 352,953 5.61 26,087 5.96 — — 379,040 4.87
Equity securities(1) — — — — — — 65,979  5.71 65,979  5.71
Other bonds — — — — 10,370  4.46 10479  6.49 20,849  5.50

Total $ 2,145 493% $ 354,820 5.60% $ 261,623  5.39% § 92,293  552% § 710,881  5.10'

Held-to-Maturity Securities:
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions $ — —% $ 452 431% $ 802 3.84% $ — —% $ 1,254  4.01'
Mortgage-backed securities — — 5,682 5.37 30,665 498 — — 36,347 5.04
Total $ — —% $ 6,134  530% $ 31,467 495% $ — —% $ 37,601 5.00"

(1) Equity securities, although they do not have a maturity date, are included in the after ten years column.

Deposits

The Company competes for core deposits in the heavily-banked Chicago Metropolitan Statistical Area.
Competitive pricing has made it difficult to maintain and grow these types of deposits. The level of pressure for
core deposits is not expected to ease in the near term. To overcome this challenge, the Company has changed and
expanded staffing and management at its banking centers and initiated a number of customer outreach initiatives to
expand deposits. In addition, the Company is in the process of creating a performance-driven sales environment
and increasing activity in its branches. Deposit growth is expected in the future as new customers are added due to
the addition of new small business and commercial and industrial loans and a commitment to relationship banking.
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The following table sets forth the changes in deposits as of December 31, 2007 compared to December 31,
2006 with and excluding the deposits acquired through the Northwest Suburban acquisition.

Excluding Excluding
Northwest Northwest
Northwest Suburban Suburban
December 31, Suburban Acquisition Acquisition
2007 2006 $ Change Acquisition(1)  $ Change % Change
(Dollars in thousands)
Noninterest-bearing demand $ 321,317 § 276,381 $ 44936 $ 65299 $ (20,363) (7.4)%
Interest-bearing demand 226,225 161,585 64,640 28,403 36,237 22.4
Money market 291,501 272,577 18,924 46,325 (27,401) (10.1)
Savings 129,476 105,378 24,098 31,387 (7,289) (6.9)
Certificates of deposit less
than $100,000 866,770 721,578 145,192 80,967 64,225 8.9
Certificates of deposit
over $100,000 622,859 420,311 202,548 218,279 (15,731) 3.7
Total interest-bearing
deposits 2,136,831 1,681,429 455,402 405,361 50,041 3.0
Total deposits $ 2,458,148 $ 1,957,810 $ 500,338 § 470,660 $ 29,678 1.5%

(1) Includes fair value adjustments.

Set forth below is a summary of the change in the Company’s deposits excluding those acquired through
Northwest Suburban:

* Deposits increased by $29.7 million, or 1.5%; noninterest-bearing deposits decreased by $20.4 million
while interest-bearing deposits increased by $50.0 million.

* Core deposits, which include noninterest-bearing demand, interest-bearing demand, money market, and
savings deposits, decreased $18.8 million.

* Certificates of deposits less than $100,000 increased 8.9% or $64.2 million.
» Certificates of deposit over $100,000 decreased $15.7 million.

The following table sets forth the average amount of and the average rate paid on deposits by category for the
indicated periods.

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Percent of Average Percent of Average Percent of
Balance Deposits Rate Balance Deposits Rate Balance Deposits Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest-bearing
demand deposits $ 274,819 12.90% 0.00% $ 220,706 12.23% 0.00% $ 154,180 10.28%  0.00%
Interest-bearing

demand deposits 182,276 8.55 1.85 150,503 8.34 1.17 176,355 11.75 1.22
Savings and money
market accounts 386,722 18.15 2.57 346,933 19.23 2.18 347,792 23.18 1.64

Time Deposits:
Certificates of
deposit, less
than
$100,000(1) 761,698 35.74 4.87 747,676 41.44 4.20 747,611 49.83 3.19
Certificates of
deposit, over

$100,000(1) 525,649 24.66 5.00 326,516 18.10 4.99 60,405 4.03 3.23

Public funds — — — 11,703 0.65 4.54 13,943 0.93 3.14
Total time

deposits 1,287,347 60.40 4.92 1,085,895 60.19 4.44 821,960 54.79 3.19

Total deposits § 2,131,164 100.00%  3.60% $ 1,804,037 100.00%  3.19% $ 1,500,286 100.00%  2.27%
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The following table summarizes the maturity distribution of certificates of deposit in amounts of $100,000 or
more as of the dates indicated. These deposits have been made by individuals, businesses, and public and other
not-for-profit entities, most of which are located within the Company’s market area.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Three months or less $ 308,259 $ 271,994 $ 131,607
Over three months through six months 241,765 63,168 29,278
Over six months through twelve months 230,985 160,478 74,054
Over twelve months 75,598 58,020 11,848
Total $ 856,607 $ 553,660 $ 246,787

Borrowings
The following table summarizes the Company’s borrowings as of the dates indicated.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Federal funds purchased $ 81,000 $ 66,000 $ 68,000
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 283,400 201,079 264,808
Notes payable 72,500 — —
Junior subordinated debentures 60,724 65,812 55,672
FHLB advances 323,439 319,883 150,000
Total $ 821,063 $ 652,774 $ 538,480

The increase in borrowings at December 31, 2007 reflects the funding needs the Company experienced during
the year to fund asset growth as well as to fund the cash requirement for the Northwest Suburban acquisition.

The Company’s borrowings include overnight federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to
repurchase, FHLB advances, junior subordinated debentures, and commercial bank notes payable. The following
tables set forth categories and the balances of the Company’s borrowings for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Federal funds purchased:

Balance at end of year $ 81,000 $ 66,000 $ 68,000
Weighted average interest rate at end of year 4.15% 5.30% 4.26%
Maximum amount outstanding(1) $ 109,000 $ 95,000 $ 73,000
Average amount outstanding 35,630 29,474 27,888
Weighted average interest rate during year(2) 5.13% 5.18% 3.64%

(1) Based on amounts outstanding at each month end during the year.

(2) During 2006 and 2005, there were four and eight increases, respectively, in the federal funds target rate.
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Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Securities sold under repurchase agreements:

Balance at end of year $ 283,400 $ 201,079 $ 264,808
Weighted average interest rate at end of year 4.21% 4.40% 3.83%
Maximum amount outstanding(1) $ 317,118 $ 294,599 $ 264,808
Average amount outstanding 268,639 226,369 204,438
Weighted average interest rate during year 4.21% 4.59% 3.04%

(1) Based on amount outstanding at month end during each year.

The Bank is a member of the FHLB. Membership requirements include common stock ownership in the
FHLB. At December 31, 2007, the FHLB advances have various call provisions ranging from three months to one
year. The Company acquired $3.5 million in FHLB advances in the Northwest Suburban acquisition. The Bank is
currently in compliance with the FHLB’s membership requirements.

The following table sets forth categories and the balances of the Company’s FHLB advances as of the
indicated dates or for the indicated periods.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

FHLB advances:

Balance at end of year $ 323,439 $ 319,883 $ 150,000
Weighted average interest rate at end of year 4.49% 4.54% 3.48%
Maximum amount outstanding(1) $ 323,439 § 319,883 $ 150,000
Average amount outstanding 317,232 228,811 134,194
Weighted average interest rate during year 4.66% 4.29% 4.25%

(1) Based on amount outstanding at month end during each year.

The following table sets forth categories and balances of the Company’s notes payable from correspondent
banks as of the indicated dates or for the indicated periods.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Notes payable:
Balance at end of year $ 72,500 $ — § —
Weighted average interest rate at end of year 6.63% —% —%
Maximum amount outstanding(1) § 92,500 $ — $ 2,000
Average amount outstanding 21,212 — 202
Weighted average interest rate during year 6.46% —% 4.33%

(1) Based on amount outstanding at month end during each year.

The Company has credit agreements with a correspondent bank, which provides the Company with a
revolving line of credit with a maximum availability of $25.0 million and a term note of $75.0 million. The
revolving line of credit has an initial rate of one-month LIBOR plus 115 basis points and matures on April 3, 2008.
During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company utilized the proceeds from the $75.0 million term note to pay for
the cash requirements of the Northwest Suburban acquisition. The term note has an initial rate of one-month
LIBOR plus 140 basis points and matures on September 28, 2010.
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At December 31, 2007, the Company had $60.7 million in junior subordinated debentures owed to
unconsolidated trusts that were formed to issue trust preferred securities.

The following table details the unconsolidated trusts and their common and trust preferred securities:

December 31,

2007 2006 Mandatory Optional
Issuer Issue Date Amount  Amount Rate Redemption Date Redemption Date
(In thousands)
MBHI Capital Trust II October 29,2002 $ — $ 15464 LIBOR+3.45% November 7,2032 November 7, 2007
MBHI Capital Trust I1I December 19, 9,279 9,279 LIBOR+3.00% December 30, December 30,
2003 2033 2008
MBHI Capital Trust IV December 19, 10,310 10,310 LIBOR+2.85% January 23, 2034 January 23, 2009
2003
MBHI Capital Trust V June 7, 2005 20,619 20,619 LIBOR+1.77% June 15, 2035 June 15,2010
Royal Capital Trust I April 30, 2004 10,206 10,140  6.62% until July 23, July 23, 2034 July 23, 2009
2009;
then LIBOR+2.75%
Northwest Suburban Capital May 18, 2004 10,310 — LIBOR+2.70% July 23, 2034 July 23, 2009
Trust I
Total $ 60,724 § 65,812

During 2007, the Company acquired $10.3 million in junior subordinated debentures at LIBOR plus 2.70%
through the acquisition of Northwest Suburban effective October 1, 2007 and redeemed $15.5 million in junior
subordinated debentures at LIBOR plus 3.45% on November 7, 2007.

Capital Resources

The Company monitors compliance with bank and bank-holding company regulatory capital requirements,
focusing primarily on risk-based capital guidelines. Under the risk-based capital method of capital measurement,
the ratio computed is dependent upon the amount and composition of assets recorded on the balance sheet and the
amount and composition of off-balance-sheet items, in addition to the level of capital. Included in the risk-based
capital method are two measures of capital adequacy: Tier 1, or core capital, and total capital, which consists of
Tier 1 plus Tier 2 capital. See “Business — Supervision and Regulation — Bank Holding Company Regulation”
for definitions of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.

The following tables set forth the Company’s capital ratios as of the indicated dates.

Risk-Based Capital Ratios December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
(Dollars in thousands)

Tier 1 capital to

risk-weighted assets $ 258,862 921% $ 266,753 11.92% § 274,408 16.97%
Tier 1 capital minimum
requirement 112,457 4.00 89,492 4.00 64,691 4.00

Total capital to
risk-weighted assets

Total capital minimum
requirements

Total risk-weighted assets

285,843 10.17 290,158 12.97 292,168 18.07
224,914 8.00 178,984 8.00 129,381 8.00

2,811,423 2,237,305 1,617,267

In October 2007, the Company issued 3.7 million shares of common stock as a result of the Northwest
Suburban acquisition increasing capital by $55.1 million. In December 2007, the Company issued 1,725,000
depositary shares each representing 1/100th of a share of its Series A noncumulative redeemable convertible
perpetual preferred stock at $25.00 per share through a public offering raising net new equity capital of
$41.4 million.

In July 2006, the Company issued 2.9 million shares of common stock as a result of the Royal American
acquisition increasing capital by $63.8 million. In August 2005, the Company issued 3.5 million new common
shares through a public offering raising a net amount of new capital of $67.9 million.
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The Company includes $59.0 million for 2007, $64.0 million for 2006, and $54.0 million for 2005 of trust
preferred securities in Tier I capital based on regulatory limitations. During 2007, the Company acquired
$10.3 million in junior subordinated debentures at LIBOR plus 2.70% through the acquisition of Northwest
Suburban effective October 1, 2007 and redeemed $15.5 million in junior subordinated debentures at LIBOR plus
3.45% on November 7, 2007.

Liquidity

The Company manages its liquidity position with the objective of maintaining access to sufficient funds to
respond to the needs of depositors and borrowers and to take advantage of earnings enhancement opportunities. At
December 31, 2007, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $84.5 million. In addition to the normal inflow
of funds from its securities portfolio, and repayments and maturities of loans and securities, the Company utilizes

other short-term, intermediate-term and long-term funding sources such as securities sold under agreements to
repurchase, overnight funds purchased from correspondent banks.

The FHLB provides an additional source of liquidity which has been used by the Bank extensively since
1999. The Bank also has various funding arrangements with commercial and investment banks in the form of
Federal funds lines, repurchase agreements, and brokered and public funds certificate of deposit programs. The
Bank maintains these funding arrangements to achieve favorable costs of funds, manage interest rate risk, and
enhance liquidity in the event of deposit withdrawals. The repurchase agreements and public funds certificate of
deposit are subject to the availability of collateral. The Company believes it has sufficient liquidity to meet its
current and future liquidity needs.

The Company monitors and manages its liquidity position on several levels, which vary depending upon the
time period. As the time period is expanded, other data is factored in, including estimated loan funding
requirements, estimated loan payoffs, securities portfolio maturities or calls, and anticipated depository buildups or
runoffs.

The Company classifies the majority of its securities as available-for-sale, thereby maintaining significant
liquidity. Certain available-for-sale
securities were temporarily impaired at December 31, 2007, primarily due to changes in interest rates as well as
current economic conditions that appear to be cyclical in nature. The Company has both the intent and ability to
hold each of the temporarily impaired securities for the time necessary to recover its amortized cost. See the
“Securities” section and “Risk Factors”
for more details. The Company’s liquidity position is further enhanced by the structuring of a majority of its loan
portfolio interest payments as monthly and also by the representation of residential mortgage loans in the
Company’s loan portfolio.

The Company’s cash flows are composed of three classifications: cash flows from operating activities, cash
flows from investing activities, and cash flows from financing activities. See Statement of Cash Flows in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Contractual Obligations, Commitments, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

December 31, 2007
Payments Due By Period
Within After
1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Other(1) Total
(In thousands)

Deposits without a stated

maturity $ 968,519 $ — 3 — 3 — $ — $ 968,519
Consumer and brokered

certificates of deposits 1,372,625 93,470 23,534 — — 1,489,629
Securities sold under

agreements to repurchase — — — 283,400 — 283,400
FHLB advances 3,500 104,939 25,000 190,000 — 323,439
Junior subordinated

debentures — — — 60,724 — 60,724
Notes payable 2,500 70,000 — — — 72,500
Operating leases 1,206 1,706 1,024 3,204 — 7,140
FIN 48 liability — — — — 769 769
Total contractual cash

obligations $ 2,348,350 $ 270,115 $ 49,558 $ 537,328 $§ 769 $ 3,206,120

(1) Duration of liability in not determinable.

The following table details the amounts and expected maturities of significant commitments as of
December 31, 2007.

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Within After
1 Year 2-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Total
(In thousands)

Lines of Credit:

Commercial real estate $ 172355 $ 33,859 $ 11907 $ 307 $ 218428
Consumer real estate 42,943 30,395 42,725 49,444 165,507
Consumer — — — 2,213 2,213
Commercial 259,149 6,120 1,467 2,867 269,603
Letters of credit 39,873 23,496 2,602 — 65,971
Commitments to extend credit 97,365 — — — 97,365
Total commitments $ 611,685 $ 93870 $ 58,701 $ 54,831 $ 819,087

Asset/Liability Management

The business of the Company and the composition of its consolidated balance sheet consist of investments in
interest-earning assets (primarily loans, mortgage-backed securities, and other securities) that are primarily funded
by interest-bearing liabilities (deposits and borrowings). All of the financial instruments of the Company as of
December 31, 2007 were held for other-than-trading purposes. Such financial instruments have varying levels of
sensitivity to changes in market rates of interest. The Company’s net interest income is dependent on the amounts
of and yields on its interest-earning assets as compared to the amounts of and rates on its interest-bearing
liabilities. Net interest income is therefore sensitive to changes in market rates of interest.

The Company’s asset/liability management strategy is to maximize net interest income while limiting
exposure to risks associated with changes in interest rates. This strategy is implemented by the Company’s
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ongoing analysis and management of its interest rate risk. A principal function of asset/liability management is to
coordinate the levels of interest-sensitive assets and liabilities to manage net interest income fluctuations within
limits in times of fluctuating market interest rates.

Interest rate risk results when the maturity or repricing intervals and interest rate indices of the
interest-earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities, and off-balance-sheet financial instruments are different, thus
creating a risk that will result in disproportionate changes in the value of and the net earnings generated from the
Company’s interest-earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities, and off-balance-sheet financial instruments. The
Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is managed primarily through the Company’s strategy of selecting the
types and terms of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities that generate favorable earnings while
limiting the potential negative effects of changes in market interest rates. Because the Company’s primary source
of interest-bearing liabilities is customer deposits, the Company’s ability to manage the types and terms of such
deposits may be somewhat limited by customer maturity preferences in the market areas in which the Company
operates. Over the past few years, several hundred new bank branches have opened in the Company’s
marketplace. Deposit pricing is competitive with promotional rates frequently offered by competitors. Ongoing
competition for core and time deposits are driving up yields paid. Borrowings, which include FHLB advances,
short-term borrowings, and long-term borrowings, are generally structured with specific terms which, in
management’s judgment, when aggregated with the terms for outstanding deposits and matched with
interest-earning assets, reduce the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk. The rates, terms, and interest rate
indices of the Company’s interest-earning assets result primarily from the Company’s strategy of investing in
securities and loans (a substantial portion of which have adjustable rates). This permits the Company to limit its
exposure to interest rate risk, together with credit risk, while at the same time achieving a positive interest rate
spread from the difference between the income earned on interest-earning assets and the cost of interest-bearing
liabilities.

Management uses a duration model for the Bank’s internal asset/liability management. The model uses cash
flows and repricing information from loans and certificates of deposit, plus repricing assumptions on products
without specific repricing dates (e.g., savings and interest-bearing demand deposits), to calculate the durations of
the Bank’s assets and liabilities. Securities are stress tested, and the theoretical changes in cash flow are key
elements of the Company’s model. The model also projects the effect on the Company’s earnings and theoretical
value for a change in interest rates. The model computes the duration of the Bank’s rate sensitive assets and
liabilities, a theoretical market value of the Bank’s rate sensitive assets and liabilities and the effects of rate
changes on the Bank’s earnings and market value. The Bank’s exposure to interest rates is reviewed on a monthly
basis by senior management and the Company’s Board of Directors.

Effects of Inflation

Interest rates are significantly affected by inflation, but it is difficult to assess the impact, since neither the
timing nor the magnitude of the changes in the various inflation indices coincide with changes in interest rates.
Inflation does impact the economic value of longer term, interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, but
the Company attempts to limit its long-term assets and liabilities, as indicated in the tables set forth under
“Financial Condition” and “Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.”
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company performs a net interest income analysis as part of its asset/liability management practices. Net
interest income analysis measures the change in net interest income in the event of hypothetical changes in interest
rates. This analysis assesses the risk of change in net interest income in the event of sudden and sustained 1.0%
and 2.0% increases and decreases in market interest rates. The tables below present the Company’s projected
changes in net interest income for the various rate shock levels at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006,

respectively.
Change in Net Interest Income Over One Year Horizon
Guideline
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 Maximum
Dollar % Dollar % %
Change Change Change Change Change
(Dollars in thousands)
+200 bp $ (2.161)  (236)% $ (3,172)  (4.00)% (10.0)%
+100 bp 694 0.76 (1,683) (2.12) (10.0)
—100 bp (225) (0.25) 1,410 1.78 (10.0)
—200 bp (3,507) (3.83) (1,511) (1.90) (10.0)

As shown above, at December 31, 2007, the effect of an immediate 200 basis point increase in interest rates
would decrease the Company’s net interest income by 2.36%, or $2.2 million. The effect of an immediate
200 basis point reduction in rates would decrease the Company’s net interest income by 3.83%, or $3.5 million.
Overall net interest income sensitivity remains within the Company’s and recommended regulatory guidelines.

The changes in the Company’s net interest income sensitivity were due, in large part, to the prudent addition
of optionality on both sides of the balance sheet. The changes in net interest income over the one year horizon for
December 31, 2007 under the 1.0% and 2.0% increases and decreases in market interest rates scenarios are
reflective of this optionality. In a rising rate environment, the callable U.S. government-sponsored entity
debentures in the securities portfolio would remain at a fixed-rate of return as fundings costs rise. Conversely, if
interest rates decline, these securities would be called and the proceeds would be re-invested at lower levels.
Similarly, a managed amount of structured borrowings has been added to the wholesale funding position, which
added volatility to net interest income. The Company believes it manages such volatility to acceptable levels and is
being appropriately compensated for the additional risk. During much of 2006 and 2007, the competitive
landscape of banking in Chicago resulted in certificate of deposit pricing that management believed to be
significantly above-market. Rather than compete for higher-cost retail certificates of deposit, management chose to
pursue funding opportunities in the wholesale markets. These opportunities were not only lower in cost, but
allowed the Company to more precisely manage the rate and term structure of its funding liabilities. Throughout
2007, the Company continued to selectively offer special promotions to attract retail deposits as needed.

The Company does not have any sub-prime or Alt-A mortgage-backed securities in its securities portfolio nor
does it have any sub-prime loans.

“Gap” analysis is used to determine the repricing characteristics of the Company’s assets and liabilities. The
following table sets forth the interest rate sensitivity of the Company’s assets and liabilities as of December 31,
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2007, and provides the repricing dates of the Company’s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities as
of that date, as well as the Company’s interest rate sensitivity gap percentages for the periods presented.

0-3 4-12 Over
Months Months 1-5 Years 5 Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)

INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:
Federal funds sold and other short-term

investments $ 14,388  $ — 3 — 3 — 3 14,388
Securities available-for-sale, at fair

value 169,773 316,093 92,880 132,135 710,881
Securities held-to-maturity, at

amortized cost 11,168 16,809 8,859 765 37,601
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal

Home Loan Bank stock — — — 29,264 29,264
Loans 1,228,939 321,179 761,162 163,047 2,474,327
Total interest-earning assets $ 1,424268 § 654,081 $ 862,901 $ 325211 $ 3,266,461
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES:
Interest-bearing demand deposits $ 20,360 $ 61,081 $ 144,784 $ — $§ 226,225
Money market deposits 26,235 78,705 186,561 — 291,501
Savings deposits 11,653 34,959 82,864 — 129,476
Time deposits 510,367 863,362 115,900 — 1,489,629
Total interest-bearing deposits 568,615 1,038,107 530,109 — 2,136,831
Federal funds purchased 81,000 — — — 81,000
Securities sold under agreements to

repurchase 35,000 — — 248,400 283,400
Advances from the Federal Home Loan

Bank 3,500 50,000 129,939 140,000 323,439
Junior subordinated debentures 50,518 — 10,206 — 60,724
Notes payable 72,500 — — — 72,500
Total borrowings 242,518 50,000 140,145 388,400 821,063
Total interest-bearing liabilities $ 811,133 $ 1,088,107 $ 670,254 $ 388,400 $ 2,957,894
Interest sensitivity gap $ 613,135 § (434,026) $ 192,647 $ (63,189) $ 308,567
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap $ 613,135 §$ 179,109 $ 371,756 $ 308,567
Interest sensitivity gap to total assets 16.60% (11.75)% 5.22% (1.71)%
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap to

total assets 16.60% 4.85% 10.07% 8.36%

This chart shows that the Company is mismatched over the zero-to-12 month time horizon. That is, there were
more liabilities repricing or maturing within these periods than assets repricing or maturing. The “Gap” position
does not necessarily indicate the Company’s interest rate sensitivity or the impact to net interest income because
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities are repricing off of different indices.

Mortgage-backed securities, including adjustable rate mortgage pools, are included in the above table based
on their estimated principal paydowns obtained from outside analytical sources. Loans are included in the above
table based on contractual maturity or contractual repricing dates. Deposits are based on management’s analysis of

industry trends and customer behavior.
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Computations of the prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous
assumptions, including relative levels of market interest rates, loan prepayments and deposit decay rates. These
computations should not be relied upon as indicative of actual results. Actual values may differ from those
projections set forth above, should market conditions vary from assumptions used in preparing the analyses.
Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the Company may undertake in response to changes in
interest rates. The “Gap” analysis is based upon assumptions as to when assets and liabilities will reprice in a
changing interest rate environment. Because such assumptions can be no more than estimates, certain assets and
liabilities indicated as maturing or otherwise repricing within a stated period may, in fact, mature or reprice at
different times and at different volumes than those estimated. Also, the renewal or repricing of certain assets and
liabilities can be discretionary and subject to competitive and other pressures. Therefore, the gap table included
above does not and cannot necessarily indicate the actual future impact of general interest rate movements on the
Company’s net interest income. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations — Asset/Liability Management.”

Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See “Consolidated Financial Statements” beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Independent Accountants On Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and
with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting Officer of the effectiveness
of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)). Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Accounting Officer have concluded that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2007 are effective to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms and such information is accumulated and communicated to management as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting was designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with GAAP. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any control
system. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework.
Based on management’s assessment, it determined that, as of December 31, 2007, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, has
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm who also audited
the Company’s consolidated financial statements, as stated in their report included under Item 8.
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information regarding directors of the Company is included in the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”) under the heading “Election of Directors” and the
information included therein is incorporated herein by reference. Information regarding the executive officers of
the Company is included in Item 1. Business of this report.

Information regarding compliance with the reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 by the Company’s directors and certain officers, and certain other owners of the Company’s common
stock is included in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance” and
the information included therein is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding the Company’s director nomination procedures is included in the Proxy Statement
under the heading “Director Nomination Procedures” and the information included therein is incorporated herein
by reference.

Information regarding the Company’s audit committee is included in the Proxy Statement under the heading
“Audit Committee” and the information included therein is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding the Company’s Code of Business and Conduct and Ethics is included in the Proxy
Statement under the heading “Code of Business and Conduct and Ethics” and the information included therein is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding compensation of executive officers and directors, compensation committee, and
compensation committee interlocks, are included in the Proxy Statement under the headings “Directors’
Compensation,” “Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Report,” and “Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and the information included therein is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information regarding the equity compensation plan and security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management are included in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners,” and the information included therein is incorporated herein
by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions and the independence of the Company’s
directors under its director independence standards are included in the Proxy Statement under the heading
“Transactions with Certain Related Persons” and “Director Independence,” and the information included therein is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services is included in the Proxy Statement under the
heading “Independent Accountant,” and the information included therein is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) (1) Index to Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as required by Item 8 of Form 10-K
are filed as a part of this document. See “Contents of Consolidated Financial Statements” on page F-1.

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules as required by Item 8 and Item 15 of Form 10-K have been omitted because
the information requested is either not applicable or has been included in the consolidated financial statements or
notes thereto.

(a) (3) Exhibits
The following exhibits are either filed as part of this report or are incorporated herein by reference:

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 22, 2007, by and between Midwest Banc
Holdings, Inc. and Northwest Suburban Bancorp., Inc. (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Report on Form 8-K filed March 23, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

3.1.1 Certificate of Designation for the Series A Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed December 7, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

3.1.2 Deposit Agreement, dated December 5, 2007, among the Registrant, Illinois Stock Transfer
Company and the holders from time to time of the Depositary Receipts issued pursuant to the
Deposit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed
December 7, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws, filed September 27, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed December 14, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-42827).

4.1.1 Form of Certificate for the Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Report on
Form 8-K filed December 7, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

4.1.2 Form of Depositary Receipt for the Depositary Shares (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Report on Form 8-K filed December 7, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

4.2 Certain instruments defining the rights of the holders of long-term debt of the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries, none of which authorize a total amount of indebtedness in excess of 10% of the
total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, have not been filed as
Exhibits. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any of these agreements to the SEC upon
request.

*10.1 Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc. Stock and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

*10.4 Form of Transitional Employment Agreements (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-42827).

10.5 Lease dated as of December 24, 1958, between Western National Bank of Cicero and Midwest Bank
and Trust Company, as amended (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-42827).

10.6 Britannica Centre Lease, dated as of May 1, 1994, between Chicago Title and Trust Company, as
Trustee under Trust Agreement dated November 2, 1977 and known as Trust No. 1070932 and
Midwest Bank and Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-42827).

10.7 Lease dated as of March 20, 1996 between Grove Lodge No. 824 Ancient Free and Accepted
Masons and Midwest Bank of Hinsdale (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 333-42827).
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Office Lease, undated, between Grove Lodge No. 824 Ancient Free and Accepted Masons and
Midwest Bank of Hinsdale (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, Registration No. 333-42827).

Form of 2001 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, File No. 001-13735).

Form of Transitional Employment Agreement (Executive Officer Group) (incorporated by reference
to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, File No. 001-13735).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Officers, Restricted Stock Grant Notice for Officers,
Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Options Award Agreements, and Stock Option Grant Notice for
Officers (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed August 29, 2005, File
No. 001-13735).

Form of 2005 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed October 28, 2005, File No. 001-13735).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Non-employee Directors and Restricted Stock Grant
Notice for Non-employee Directors (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K
filed October 28, 2005, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated as of April 29, 1976, between Joseph C. and Grace Ann Sanfilippo and Fairfield
Savings and Loan Association, as amended (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2003, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated as of August 28, 2002 between Glen Oak Plaza and Midwest Bank and Trust Company
(incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, File
No. 001-13735).

Loan Agreement as of April 4, 2007, between the Company and M&I Marshall & Ilsley Bank
(incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed April 6, 2007, File

No. 001-13735).

Employment Agreement as of September 28, 2004 between the Company and the Chief Executive
Officer (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2004, File No. 001-13735).

Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc. Severance Policy as of June 28, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Form 8-K dated June 28, 2005, File No. 001-13735).

Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc. Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2005, File No. 001-13735).

Amendment to Employment Agreement as of September 28, 2004 between the Company and the
Chief Executive Officer (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed

March 24, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated February 8, 2006 by and between Royal
American Bank and Jay Fritz, assumed by the Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed July 7, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated April 1, 1993, by and between Royal American Bank and LaSalle National Trust, N.A.,
as amended, assumed by the Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated April 19, 1993 by and between Royal American Bank and Hamilton Forsythe 1000
Tower Lane LLC, successor-in-interest to Bensenville Office Venture, as amended, assumed by the
Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

Sublease dated January 31, 2006 by and between Royal American Bank and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
National Association, assumed by the Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated January 20, 2006 by and between Royal American Bank and MEG Associates Limited
Partnership, assumed by the Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).
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Lease dated October 28, 1996 by and between Royal American Bank and Tiffany Pointe,
Inc./Marquette Bank, as amended, assumed by the Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).
Lease dated September 24, 1999, by and between Royal American Bank and Moats Office
Properties, Inc., as amended, assumed by the Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference
to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated July 14, 2006 by and between Midwest Bank and Trust Company and William C. Moran
(incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File
No. 001-13735).

First Amendment to the Form of 2001 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement (incorporated
by reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed October 28, 2005, File No. 001-13735).
Second Amendment to the Form of 2001 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File
No. 001-13735).

Form of 2006 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

First Amendment to the Form of 2005 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement (incorporated
by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, File

No. 001-13735).

Lease dated November 9, 2005 by and between Midwest Bank and Trust Company and Crossings
Commercial, LLC (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2006, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated August 17, 2005 by and between Royal American Bank and L.F.A.J.J. Partners, LLC,
assumed by the Company as of July 1, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended March 31, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

Loan Agreement dated as of September 28, 2007 and amendment of loan agreement dated April 4,
2007, between the Company and M&I Marshall & Ilsley Bank (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed October 1, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

Form of 2007 Transitional Employment Agreement (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s
Report on Form 8-K filed October 1, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

Form of 2007 Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed October 1, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

First Amendment to the Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc. Stock and Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed October 1, 2007, File No. 001-13735).

Lease dated December 27, 2007 by and between Midwest Bank and Trust Company and George
Garner and Barbara Garner.

Mutual Agreement RE Severance and Retirement dated January 14, 2008 between the Company and
John Eilering.

Subsidiaries.

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer.

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, from the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Accounting
Officer.

* Indicates management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as an exhibit.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.

BY: /s/ JAMES J. GIANCOLA

James J. Giancola
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 14, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints James J. Giancola and Jan R. Thiry his
true and law attorneys-in-fact and agents, each acting alone, with full powers of substitution and resubstitution, for
him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any or all amendments to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K,
and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority
to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in order to effectuate the filing
of such report, as fully for all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, thereby ratifying and
confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, or his substitutes, may lawfully do or cause
to be done by virtue hereof.

Signature Title Date

/s/ HOMER J. LIVINGSTON, JR. Chairman of the Board, Director March 14, 2008
Homer J. Livingston, Jr.

/s/ JAMES J. GIANCOLA President, Chief Executive Officer, and March 14, 2008
James J. Giancola Director
/s/ ANGELO A. DIPAOLO Director March 14, 2008

Angelo A. DiPaolo

/s/ BARRY I. FORRESTER Director March 14, 2008
Barry I. Forrester

/s/ ROBERT J. GENETSKI Director March 14, 2008
Robert J. Genetski

/s/ GERALD F. HARTLEY Director March 14, 2008
Gerald F. Hartley

/s/ 1. ]. FRITZ Executive Vice President and Director March 14, 2008
J. J. Fritz
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Signature

/s/ DENNIS M. O’HARA

Dennis M. O’Hara

/s/ JOSEPH Ri1zzA

Joseph Rizza

/s/ THOMAS A. ROSENQUIST

Thomas A. Rosenquist

/s/ E.V. SILVERI

E.V. Silveri

/s/ KENNETH VELO

Kenneth Velo

/s/ LEON WOLIN

Leon Wolin

/s/ JAN R. THIRY

Jan R. Thiry

Title

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Senior Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer
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March 14, 2008

March 14, 2008

March 14, 2008

March 14, 2008

March 14, 2008

March 14, 2008
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Cash
Federal funds sold and other short-term investments

Total cash and cash equivalents

Securities available-for-sale, at fair value

Securities held-to-maturity, at amortized cost (fair value: $36,912 at December 31, 2007 and
$44,687 at December 31, 2006).
Total securities

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost

Loans held for sale

Loans

Allowance for loan losses

Net loans
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Premises and equipment, net
Foreclosed properties
Core deposit and other intangibles, net
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing

Total deposits
Federal funds purchased
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
Junior subordinated debentures
Notes payable
Due to broker
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (see note 19)
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, $2,500 liquidation preference, 1,000,000 shares
authorized; 17,250 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2007 and none issued
at December 31, 2006
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 64,000,000 shares authorized; 29,275,687 shares issued
and 27,803,794 outstanding at December 31, 2007 and 25,504,095 shares issued and
24,663,417 outstanding at December 31, 2006
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, at cost (1,471,893 shares at December 31, 2007 and 840,678 shares at
December 31, 2006)

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands, except share and
per share data)

$ 70,111 $ 91,630
14,388 8,902
84,499 100,532

710,881 589,981
37,601 45,931
748,482 635,912
29,264 23,592
— 2,672
2,474,327 1,946,816
(26,748) (23,229)
2,447,579 1,923,587
81,166 65,220
41,821 21,960
2,220 2,640
17,044 11,273
160,407 79,488
80,300 75,170

$ 3,692,782  $ 2,942,046
$ 321317 $ 276,381
2,136,831 1,681,429
2,458,148 1,957,810
81,000 66,000
283,400 201,079
323,439 319,883
60,724 65,812
72,500 —
1,539 —
36,868 44,220
3,317,618 2,654,804
293 255
300,762 200,797
102,762 97,807
(13,917) (6,273)
(14,736) (5,344)
375,164 287,242
$ 3,692,782  $ 2,942,046

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)

Interest income

Loans $ 155,044 $ 123,854 $ 79,900
Loans held for sale 89 125 47
Securities
Taxable 34,787 30,325 29,429
Exempt from federal income taxes 2,269 3,570 1,248
Trading securities 2 189 388
Dividend income from Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock 839 693 727
Federal funds sold and other short-term investments 839 506 505
Total interest income 193,869 159,262 112,244
Interest expense
Deposits 76,692 57,518 34,067
Federal funds purchased 1,829 1,526 1,016
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 11,302 10,387 6,213
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 14,769 9,808 5,701
Junior subordinated debentures 5,275 4,741 3,791
Notes payable 1,370 9
Total interest expense 111,237 83,980 50,797
Net interest income 82,632 75,282 61,447
Provision for loan losses 4,891 12,050 2,589
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 77,741 63,232 58,858
Noninterest income
Service charges on deposit accounts 6,697 5,733 5,139
Net gains (losses) on securities transactions 32 (153) (17,440)
Net trading profits — 624 413
Gains on sale of loans 443 760 357
Insurance and brokerage commissions 2,287 1,990 1,519
Trust 1,857 919 303
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 3,063 2,394 1,765
Life insurance benefit — 789
Gain on extinguishment of debt — 1,250 —
Other 1,098 1,034 910
Total noninterest income 15,477 14,551 (6,245)
Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits 42215 34,476 26,693
Occupancy and equipment 9,482 7,076 5,584
Professional services 5,470 4,971 4,723
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 13,125
Marketing 2,309 2,049 1,755
Foreclosed properties 34 311 2,551
Amortization of intangible assets 1,918 1,223 1,193
Merger related 1,312 1,595 —
Other 8,655 6,914 4,903
Total noninterest expense 71,395 58,615 60,527
Income (loss) before income taxes and discontinued operations 21,823 19,168 (7,914)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,246 1,422 (6,325)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 18,577 17,746 (1,589)
Discontinued operations
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes — 9,236
Provision for income taxes — 1,703
Income from discontinued operations — 7,533
Net income 18,577 17,746 5,944
Preferred stock dividends (204) —
Net income available to common stockholders $ 18,373 $ 17,746 $ 5944
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations $ 0.72 $ 0.76 $  (0.08)
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations — 0.38
Basic earnings per share 0.72 0.76 0.30
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 0.72 0.75 (0.08)
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations — 0.38
Diluted earnings per share 0.72 0.75 0.30
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.52 0.51 0.48

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Other Total
Preferred Common Retained  Restricted Comprehensive  Treasury  Stockholders’
Stock Stock Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Stock Equity
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
Balance, December 31, 2004 $ — $ 187 $§ 65781 $§ 95829 § (2,642) § (16,457) $ (5,275) $ 137,423
Cash dividends declared ($0.48 per share) — — — (9,652) — — — (9,652)
Issuance of 3,450,000 shares of stock, net
of issuance costs — 34 67,901 — — — — 67,935
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
397,051 stock options, net of tax benefits — — 606 — — — 4,146 4,752
Issuance of 63,700 shares of restricted
stock, net of forfeiture — 569 — (1,244) — 675 —
Stock-based compensation expense — — — — 873 — — 873
Comprehensive income
Net income — — — 5,944 — — — 5,944
Net increase in fair value of securities
classified as available-for-sale, net
of income taxes and reclassification
adjustments — — — — — 8,851 — 8,851
Total comprehensive income 14,795
Balance, December 31, 2005 — 221 134,857 92,121 (3,013) (7,606) (454) 216,126
Cash dividends declared ($0.51 per share) — — — (12,060) — — — (12,060)
Issuance of 2,865,933 shares of stock upon
acquisition — 29 63,738 — — — — 63,767
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
151,894 stock options, net of tax benefits — 2 2,551 — — — — 2,553
Purchase of 204,188 treasury shares — — — — — — (4,770) (4,770)
Reclassification of restricted stock in
conjunction with the adoption of
FAS 123(R) — — (3,013) — 3,013 — — —
Issuance of 347,179 shares of restricted
stock — 3 3) — — — — —
Forfeiture of 9,250 shares of restricted stock — — 120 — — — (120) —
Stock-based compensation expense — — 2,547 — — — — 2,547
Comprehensive income
Net income — — — 17,746 — — — 17,746
Net increase in fair value of securities
classified as available-for-sale, net
of income taxes and reclassification
adjustments — — — — — 1,333 — 1,333
Total comprehensive income 19,079
Balance, December 31, 2006 — 255 200,797 97,807 — (6,273) (5,344) 287,242
Cash dividends declared ($0.52 per share)
on common stock — — — (13,418) — — — (13,418)
Cash dividends declared ($11.84 per share)
on preferred stock — — — (204) — — — (204)
Issuance of 17,250 shares of preferred
stock, net of issuance costs — — 41,441 — — — — 41,441
Issuance of 3,680,725 shares of stock upon
acquisition — 37 54,953 — — — — 54,990
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
36,443 stock options, net of tax benefits — — 429 — — — — 429
Purchase of 661,500 treasury shares — — — — — — (9,392) (9,392)
Issuance of 59,700 shares of restricted stock — 1 (1) — — — — —
Stock-based compensation expense — — 3,143 — — — — 3,143
Comprehensive income
Net income — — — 18,577 — — — 18,577
Net decrease in fair value of securities
classified as available-for-sale, net
of income taxes and reclassification
adjustments — — — — — (7,644) — (7,644)
Total comprehensive income 10,933
Balance, December 31, 2007 $ — $ 293 $ 300,762 $ 102,762 $ — 3 (13,917) $ (14,736) $ 375,164

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Cash flows from continuing operating activities
Net income $ 18577 $§ 17,746 $ 5,944
(Income) loss from discontinued operations — — (7,533)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 3,288 2,546 2,324
Provision for loan losses 4,891 12,050 2,589
Amortization of other intangibles 912 933 429
Proceeds from sales of trading securities, net — 624 597
Amortization of premiums and discounts on securities, net 819 832 1,967
Realized (gain) loss on sales of available-for-sale securities (32) 153 17,440
Net gain on sales of trading securities — (624) (413)
Net gain on sales of mortgage loans (443) (760) (357)
Originations of loans held for sale (40,800) (61,163) (27,302)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 43915 61,163 26,083
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance (3,063) (2,394) (1,765)
Life insurance benefit — — (789)
Deferred income taxes (323) 5,373 2,685
Loss (gain) on sale of other real estate, net 12 — (89)
Amortization of unearned stock based compensation 3,085 2,501 873
Change in other assets 7,602 (15,943) (25,927)
Change in other liabilities (14,569) 10,978 3,780
Net cash provided by continuing operating activities 23,871 34,015 536
Cash flows from continuing investing activities
Sales of securities available-for-sale 189,495 101,730 357,303
Redemption of Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock 499 1,427 148
Sales of securities held-to maturity 2,039 — —
Maturities of securities available-for-sale 93,571 16,500 123,070
Principal payments on securities available-for-sale 69,254 77,164 56,122
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (428,468) (80,771) (793,034)
Purchases of Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock (3,128) (8,931) 979)
Purchases of securities held-to-maturity — — (1,010)
Maturities of securities held-to-maturity 430 4,435 3,635
Principal payments on securities held-to-maturity 5,665 8,829 26,081
Purchase of mortgage loans (5,776) (10,014) —
Loan originations and principal collections, net (85,378) (98,312) (257,360)
Proceeds from sale/leaseback of branch property — 4,403 —
Disposition of subsidiary, net — — 35,621
Cash paid, net of cash and cash equivalents in acquisition (71,658) (41,044) —
Proceeds from sale of other real estate 225 8,779 1,350
Return of life insurance premium and benefit — — 1,351
Investment in life insurance — (5,926) —
Additions to property and equipment (3,869) (5,178) (1,083)
Net cash used in continuing investing activities (237,099) (26,909) (448,785)
Cash flows from continuing financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 29,324 (32,218) 21,738
Issuance of junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts, net of debt issuance
costs — — 20,619
Payments of junior subordinated debt owed to unconsolidated trusts (15,000) — (20,619)
Proceeds from borrowings 192,500 365,000 152,000
Repayments on borrowings (120,000) (200,000) (123,500)
Common cash dividends paid (13,004) (11,439) 9,164)
Preferred cash dividends paid (204) — —
Change in federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase 91,151 (95,729) 185,923
Issuance of common stock — — 68,453
Issuance of preferred stock 41,441 — —

11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

Repurchase of common stock (9,392) (4,770) —

Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock under stock option plan 378 1,983 4,374

Net cash provided by (used in) continuing financing activities 197,194 22,827 299,824
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)

Cash flows from discontinued operations
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations
Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations
Net cash provided by financing activities of discontinued operations

Net cash used in discontinued operations

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year(1)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(1) Includes following balances from discontinued operations
Supplemental disclosures
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest
Income taxes
Dividends declared not paid
Acquisition
Noncash assets acquired
Liabilities assumed

Net noncash assets acquired

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

— — 4,641
— — (29,161)
— — 113
— — (24,407)
(16,034) 29,933 (172,832)
100,532 70,599 243,431
84,499 $ 100,532 $§ 70,599
— 8 — $ 24407
$ 109,483 § 80,191 $§ 54,494
10,100 2,811 3,219
$§ 3,672 $§ 3258 § 2,638
$ 624,270 § 619,835 § —
497,622 § 515,024 § —
§ 126,648 § 104,811 § —
$§ 10,066 $§ 24363 § —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 —Nature of Operations

Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) is a bank holding company organized under the laws of the
State of Delaware. Through its commercial bank and non-bank subsidiaries, the Company provides a full line of
financial services to corporate and individual customers located in the greater Chicago metropolitan area. These
services include demand, time, and savings deposits; lending; brokerage and insurance products; and trust services.
While the Company’s management monitors the revenue streams of the various products and services, operations
are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis. The Company operates in one
business segment, community banking, providing a full range of services to individual and corporate customers.
The following disclosures are all related to continuing operations. The Company acquired Northwest Suburban
Bancorp., Inc. and Royal American Corporation effective October 1, 2007 and July 1, 2006, respectively. See
Note 3 — Business Combinations for more details. The Company sold Midwest Bank of Western Illinois, one of
its wholly owned subsidiaries, on September 30, 2005. This divestiture is accounted for in the accompanying
financial statements as discontinued operations. See Note 4 — Discontinued Operations for more details.

Note 2 —Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation: The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Midwest Bank and Trust Company (the “Bank”™). Included in the Bank
are its wholly owned subsidiaries MBTC Investment Company, Midwest Funding, L.L.C., and Midwest Financial
and Investment Services, Inc. (formerly known as Royal American Investment Services, Inc.). Significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly
susceptible to change are the allowance for loan losses, income taxes, and the fair value of financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, deposits with other financial institutions
under 90 days, and federal funds sold. The Bank is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or on deposit with
the Federal Reserve Bank, based on a percentage of deposits. The total of those reserve balances was $5.7 million
at December 31, 2007.

Securities: Securities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has the ability and the positive
intent to hold those securities to maturity. Accordingly, they are stated at cost adjusted for amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts. Securities are classified as available-for-sale when the Company may decide
to sell those securities due to changes in market interest rates, liquidity needs, changes in yields or alternative
investments, and for other reasons. They are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes,
reported in other comprehensive income. Interest income is reported net of amortization of premium and accretion
of discount. Realized gains and losses on disposition of securities available-for-sale are based on the net proceeds
and the adjusted carrying amounts of the securities sold, using the specific identification method. Trading
securities are carried at fair value. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on trading securities are recognized in
the statement of income as they occur. No trading securities were held at December 31, 2007 or 2006. Declines in
the fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than
temporary, if any, are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary losses,
management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the
financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its
investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Loans: Loans are reported net of the allowance for loan losses and deferred fees. Impaired loans are carried at
the present value of expected future cash flows or the fair value of the related collateral, if the loan is considered to
be collateral dependent. Interest on loans is included in interest income over the term of the loan based upon the
principal balance outstanding. The accrual of interest on loans is discontinued at the time the loan becomes
90 days past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection. Past due status is based on
contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier date if
collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are
placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the
cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual
status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are
reasonably assured.

Deferred Loan Fees and Costs: Loan origination fees and origination costs are deferred and amortized over
the life of the loan as an adjustment to yield.

Allowance for Loan Losses: The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of probable
credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Estimating the amount of the allowance for loan losses requires
significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on
impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience, and
consideration of current economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance, while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are credited
to the allowance. A provision for loan losses is charged to operations based on management’s periodic evaluation
of the factors previously mentioned, as well as other pertinent factors.

The Company’s methodology for determining the allowance for loan losses represents an estimation pursuant
to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” and
SFAS No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan.” The allowance reflects expected losses
resulting from analyses developed through specific credit allocations for individual loans and historical loss
experience for each loan category. The specific credit allocations are based on regular analyses of commercial,
commercial real estate and agricultural loans over $300,000 where the internal credit rating is at or below a
predetermined classification. These analyses involve a high degree of judgment in estimating the amount of loss
associated with specific loans, including estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values. The allowance for loan losses also includes consideration of concentrations and changes in portfolio mix
and volume, and other qualitative factors. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examinations, may require the Company to make additions to the allowance based on their judgment about
information available to them at the time of their examinations.

There are many factors affecting the allowance for loan losses; some are quantitative while others require
qualitative judgment. The process for determining the allowance includes subjective elements and, therefore, may
be susceptible to significant change. To the extent actual outcomes differ from management estimates, additional
provision for loan losses could be required that could adversely affect earnings or financial position in future
periods.

A loan is impaired when full payment under the loan terms is not expected. Impairment is evaluated in total
for smaller-balance loans of a similar nature such as residential mortgage and consumer loans and on an individual
basis for other loans that exceed a set threshold. If a loan is impaired, a portion of the allowance is allocated so that
the loan is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing rate or at the
fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance: The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain
executive and other officers. Life insurance is recorded at its cash surrender value or the amount that can be
realized.

Premises and Equipment: Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Provisions for depreciation and amortization, included in operating expenses, are computed on the
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from three to thirty-nine years. The cost
of maintenance and repairs is charged to income as incurred; significant improvements are capitalized.

Foreclosed Properties: Real estate acquired in settlement of loans is recorded at fair value when acquired,
establishing a new cost basis. Expenditures that increase the fair value of properties are capitalized as an
adjustment to the cost basis. If fair value declines below the cost basis, a valuation allowance is recorded through
expense.

Core Deposit and Other Intangibles: Other intangible assets consist of core deposit and acquired customer
relationship intangible assets arising from whole bank, branch, and non-bank acquisitions. They are initially
measured at fair value and then are amortized on an accelerated method over their estimated useful lives.

Goodwill: Goodwill results from business acquisitions and represents the excess of the purchase price over
the fair value of acquired net tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but
assessed at least annually for impairment, and any such impairment is recognized in the period it is identified.
There was no goodwill impairment as of December 31, 2007.

Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the
financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company’s assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are recognized
for the estimated taxes ultimately payable or recoverable based on enacted tax laws. Changes in enacted tax rates
and laws are reflected in the financial statements in the periods they occur. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a
valuation allowance when, in the judgment of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase: All securities sold under agreements to repurchase
represent amounts advanced by various primary dealers. Securities are pledged to secure these liabilities.

Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales only when control over
the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets
have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from
taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not
maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their
maturity.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Derivatives: Fair values of financial instruments, including
derivatives, are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions. Fair value estimates involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other
factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items. There is no readily available market for a
significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments. Accordingly, fair values are based on various factors
relative to expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics, and other factors. The
assumptions and estimates used in the fair value determination process are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and significant judgment. As a consequence, fair values cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect these estimates.

Stock Compensation: Employee compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions, including
grants of employee stock options and restricted stock awards, are measured at fair value and recognized in the
financial statements as prescribed by SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” The Company adopted
SFAS No. 123(R) in 2006 using the modified prospective method. Employee compensation expense for stock
options and restricted stock granted is recorded in the consolidated income statement based on the grant’s vesting
schedule. Forfeitures of stock options and restricted stock grants are estimated for those grants where the requisite
service is not expected to be rendered. The grant-date fair value for each stock options grant is calculated using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income includes both net income and other comprehensive income
elements, including the change in unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale, net of tax.
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MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Earnings Per Common Share: Basic earnings per common share is net income available to common
stockholders divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per common share includes the dilutive effect of additional potential common shares issuable under stock
options and restricted stock awards as well as under the “if converted” method for the noncumulative redeemable
convertible perpetual preferred stock. Earnings and dividends per share are restated for all stock splits and
dividends through the date of issue of the financial statements.

Dividend Restriction: Banking regulations require the Company and the Bank to maintain certain capital
levels and may limit the dividends paid by the Bank to the Company or by the Company to stockholders.

Reclassifications: Certain items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the
current year’s presentation. Such reclassifications had no effect on net income.

Accounting Pronouncements:

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) released FASB Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48”). FIN 48
clarifies the accounting and reporting for uncertainties in the application of income tax laws, providing a
comprehensive model for the financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of income
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns. The Company’s adoption of FIN 48 on
January 1, 2007 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of
operations. See Note 23 — Income Taxes for more details.

In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements where FASB had previously concluded in those pronouncements that fair value is the relevant
measurement attribute. Accordingly, SFAS No. 157 does not require any new financial assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for the Company), and interim periods within those fiscal years. The
Company has determined that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a material effect on its results of
operations or financial position.

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, including an amendment of SFAS No. 115,” which creates a fair value option allowing an entity to
irrevocably elect fair value as the initial and subsequent measurement attribute for certain financial assets and
financial liabilities, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings as they occur. SFAS No. 159 also requires an
entity to report those financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in a manner that separates
those reported fair values from the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities measured using another measurement
attribute on the face of the statement of financial position. Lastly, SFAS No. 159 requires an entity to provide
information that would allow users to understand the effect on earnings due to changes in the fair value on those
instruments selected for the fair value election. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for the Company). The Company has not elected to use the fair value option
under SFAS No. 159.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” to provide
guidance in the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. SAB No. 108 requires registrants to
quantify an error under two methods: (1) quantify the misstatement based on the amount of the error originating in
the current-year income statement (“Rollover Approach”) and (2) quantify the misstatement based on the effects of
correcting the misstatement existing in the balance sheet at the end of the current-year irrespective of the
misstatement’s year(s) origination (“Iron Curtain Approach”). Consequently, a registrant’s financial statements
would require adjustment when either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that is material, after
considering all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors. SAB No. 108 was effective for financial statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

issued for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The application of SAB No. 108 as of January 1, 2007 did
not have any impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position.

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business Combinations,” which replaces the current
standard on business combinations, modifies the accounting for business combinations and requires, with limited
exceptions, the acquirer in a business combination to recognize all of the assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and
any noncontrolling interests in the acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value. SFAS No. 141R also requires certain
contingent assets and liabilities acquired as well as contingent consideration to be recognized at fair value. In
addition, the statement requires payments to third parties for consulting, legal, audit, and similar services
associated with an acquisition to be recognized as expenses when incurred rather than capitalized as part of the
business combination. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008 and
early adoption is not permitted.

Note 3 —Business Combinations
Northwest Suburban Bancorp, Inc.

On October 1, 2007, the Company acquired Northwest Suburban Bancorp, Inc. (“Northwest Suburban”), in a
cash and stock merger transaction. The agreement and plan of merger provided that the Company’s stock comprise
up to 45% of the purchase price, at an exchange ratio of 2.4551 shares of Company common stock for each
Northwest Suburban common share, and that the remainder be paid in cash at the rate of $42.75 for each share of
Northwest Suburban common stock. The Company issued 3.7 million shares of common stock, paid $81.2 million
in cash, and incurred $414,000 in acquisition costs which were capitalized for a total purchase price of
$136.7 million at the closing on October 1, 2007. The Company used the proceeds from a $75.0 million term note
it has under a borrowing facility with a correspondent bank to pay for a portion of the cash requirement of the
acquisition. The term note has an initial rate of one-month LIBOR plus 140 basis points and matures on
September 28, 2010. Northwest Suburban was merged into the Company, thus canceling 100% of Northwest
Suburban’s voting shares outstanding.

The acquisition of Northwest Suburban constituted a business combination under SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” and was accounted for using the purchase method. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated
to the respective assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values on the date of
acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill,
which is not deductible for tax purposes. The purchase price allocation, as of December 31, 2007, is subject to
revision in future periods, including adjustments that may be necessary upon the filing of final tax returns for
Northwest Suburban. The results of operations of Northwest Suburban have been included in the Company’s
results of operations since October 1, 2007, the date of acquisition.
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The following are the adjustments made to record the transaction and to adjust Northwest Suburban’s assets
and liabilities to their estimated fair values at acquisition.

(In thousands)

Purchase price of Northwest Suburban:

Market value of the Company’s stock issued $§ 55137
Cash paid 81,163
Total consideration 136,300
Capitalized costs 414
Total cost $ 136,714
Historical net assets of Northwest Suburban $ 52,388
Fair market value adjustments:
Securities available-for-sale (323)
Loans (970)
Goodwill 80,550
Core deposit intangible 8,061
Premises and equipment 1,726
Deposits (2,140)
Severance (88)
Deferred taxes on purchase accounting adjustment (2,490)
Total adjustments to record the transaction $§ 136,714
F-12

107 of 201 11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents

Table of Contents

MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

The following are the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Northwest Suburban at October 1, 2007

Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities available-for-sale

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Loans, net

Cash value of life insurance

Premises and equipment, net

Core deposit intangible, net

Goodwill

Other assets

Total assets acquired

Liabilities assumed:

Deposits

Federal funds purchased

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
Junior subordinated debentures

Other liabilities (including severance)

Total liabilities assumed
Assets acquired less liabilities assumed

including the adjustments made to record the transaction and to adjust the assets and liabilities to their estimated
fair values.

Fair Market

Northwest Value As

Suburban Adjustment Adjusted
(In thousands)

$ 10,066 $ — $ 10,066
57,920 (323) 57,597
1,503 — 1,503
437,452 (970) 436,482
12,884 — 12,884
17,553 1,726 19,279
— 8,061 8,061
— 80,550 80,550
7,914 — 7,914
545,292 89,044 634,336
468,520 2,140 470,660
6,170 — 6,170
3,500 — 3,500
10,310 — 10,310
4,404 2,578 6,982
492,904 4,718 497,622
$ 52388 $ 84326 $ 136,714

Statement of Position 03-3, “Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer”

(“SOP 03-37)
addresses accounting for differences between contractual cash flows and cash flows expected to be collected from

an investor’s initial investment in loans or debt securities acquired in a transfer if those differences are attributable,
at least in part, to credit quality. It includes loans acquired in purchase business combinations and applies to all

nongovernmental entities. SOP 03-3

does not apply to loans originated by the Company. The Company’s assessment identified $5.9 million in acquired
loans to which the application of the provisions of SOP 03-3 was required. As a result of the application of

SOP 03-3,

the Company recorded purchase accounting adjustments reflecting a reduction in loans of $2.0 million related to

acquired impaired loans, thus reducing the carrying value of these loans to $3.9 million as of December 31, 2007.
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The following is the carrying value by category as of December 31, 2007:

(In thousands)

Commercial $ 726
Construction 211
Commercial real estate 2,736
Home equity —
Residential mortgage 260

Total carrying value $ 3,933

The following is a summary of changes in the accretable yield as of December 31, 2007:

(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $ —
Additions 393
Accretion (144)
Balance at end of year $ 249

The following are the loans acquired during 2007 for which it is probable at acquisition that all contractually
required payments would not be collected:

(In thousands)

Contractually required payments receivable at acquisition:

Commercial $ 1,299
Construction 296
Commercial real estate 4,293
Home equity 102
Residential mortgage 430
Total $ 6,420
Cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition $ 4,504
Basis in acquired loans at acquisition 3,933

Royal American Corporation

Effective July 1, 2006, the Company acquired Royal American Corporation (“Royal American”), a bank
holding company, in a cash and stock merger transaction. At acquisition, Royal American had total assets of
$561.2 million. The Company’s stock comprised approximately 50% of the purchase price, at an exchange ratio of
3.58429 shares of Company common stock for each Royal American common share, and the remainder was paid
in cash at the rate of $80 for each share of Royal American common stock. The Company issued 2.9 million
common shares, paid $64.6 million in cash, and incurred $795,000 in costs which were capitalized for a total
purchase price of $129.2 million. Royal American was merged into the Company, thus canceling 100% of Royal
American’s voting shares outstanding.

The acquisition of Royal American constituted a business combination under SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations,” and was accounted for using the purchase method. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated
to the respective assets acquired and liabilities assumed, based on their estimated fair values on the date of
acquisition. The excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill,
which is not deductible for tax purposes. The purchase price allocation was finalized in the first quarter of 2007.
The results of
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operations of Royal American have been included in the Company’s results of operations since July 1, 2006, the
date of acquisition.

The following are the adjustments made to record the transaction and to adjust Royal American’s assets and
liabilities to their estimated fair values at July 1, 2006.

(In thousands)

Purchase price of Royal American:

Market value of the Company’s stock issued $§ 63,767
Cash paid 64,612
Total consideration 128,379
Capitalized costs 795
Total cost $ 129,174
Historical net assets of Royal American $ 44,606
Fair market value adjustments:

Loans (2,837)
Goodwill 78,597
Core deposit intangible 10,488
Premises and equipment 41
Deposits 1,867
Federal Home Loan Bank Advance 146
Junior subordinated debenture 204

Deferred taxes on purchase accounting adjustment (3,938)
Total adjustments to record the transaction $§ 129,174
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The following are the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Royal American at July 1, 2006, including
the adjustments made to record the transaction and to adjust the assets and liabilities to their estimated fair values.

Fair Market
Royal Value As
American Adjustment Adjusted

(In thousands)

Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,363 $ — $ 24,363
Securities available-for-sale 16,487 — 16,487
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,427 — 1,427
Loans, net 497,376 (2,837) 494,539
Cash value of life insurance 12,467 — 12,467
Premises and equipment, net 1,254 41 1,295
Core deposit intangible, net — 10,488 10,488
Goodwill — 78,597 78,597
Other assets 4,535 — 4,535

Total assets acquired 557,909 86,289 644,198

Liabilities assumed:

Deposits 467,378 (1,867) 466,011
Federal funds purchased 30,000 — 30,000
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 5,000 (146) 4,854
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310 (204) 10,106
Other liabilities 115 3,938 4,053

Total liabilities assumed 513,303 1,721 515,024

Assets acquired less liabilities assumed $ 44,606 $ 84,568 $ 129,174

The following are the unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations of the Company for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 as though Northwest Suburban and Royal American had been acquired
as of January 1, 2005.

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net interest income $ 96,429 $ 106,061 $ 99,065
Income from continuing operations 16,983 20,386 7,543
Net income 16,983 20,386 15,076
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 0.60 0.72 0.29
Basic earnings per share 0.60 0.72 0.58
Diluted earnings per share form continuing operations 0.60 0.71 0.29
Diluted earnings per share 0.60 0.71 0.57

Included in the pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were
merger-related expenses, primarily change-in-control and severance payments, investment banker, legal and audit
fees, net of tax of $4.3 million and $6.8 million, respectively.

F-16

111 of 201 11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

Table of Contents

MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note 4 —Discontinued Operations

The Company sold Midwest Bank of Western Illinois (“MBWTI”), formerly one of its wholly owned
subsidiaries, on September 30, 2005 for $32.0 million in cash. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the results of operations of MBWI are shown in the
Company’s consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2005 as “discontinued
operations.”

The results of discontinued operations were as follows (in thousands):

2005
Interest income $ 10,386
Interest expense 4,427
Net interest income 5,959
Provision for loan losses (183)
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 6,142
Noninterest income (1,301)
Noninterest expense 4,345
Income before income taxes 496
Benefit for income taxes (156)
Operating income from discontinued operations 652
Gain on sale of discontinued operations 8,740
Tax on gain on sale of discontinued operations 1,859
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax 6,381
Income from discontinued operations $ 7,533
Note 5 —Securities
The amortized cost and fair value of securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are as follows:
December 31, 2007
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)
Securities available-for-sale
Obligations of U.S. government-sponsored entities $ 181983 § 1,630 § — $ 183,613
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 60,985 550 (135) 61,400
Mortgage-backed securities 383,633 58 (4,651) 379,040
Equity securities 85,139 — (19,160) 65,979
Corporate and other debt securities 22,095 — (1,246) 20,849
Total securities available-for-sale $ 733,835 $ 2,238 $ (25,192) $ 710,881
Securities held-to-maturity
Obligations of states and political subdivisions $ 1254 § 14 8 — $ 1,268
Mortgage-backed securities 36,347 8 (711) 35,644
Total securities held-to-maturity $ 37,601 $ 22 %  (711) $ 360912
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December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In thousands)

Securities available-for-sale

Obligations of U.S. government-sponsored entities $ 6958 % — 3 — $ 6,958
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 97,167 316 (496) 96,987
Mortgage-backed securities 444392 18 (10,302) 434,108
Equity securities 41,131 533 (143) 41,521
Corporate and other debt securities 11,034 — (627) 10,407

Total securities available-for-sale $ 600,682 $ 867 $ (11,568) $ 589,981

Securities held-to-maturity

Obligations of states and political subdivisions $ 168 $ 12 3 (H $ 1,697
Mortgage-backed securities 44,245 — (1,255) 42,990

Total securities held-to-maturity $ 45931 $ 12 $ (1,256) $ 44,687

The following is a summary of the fair value of securities held-to-maturity and available-for-sale with
unrealized losses and the time period of those unrealized losses:

December 31, 2007

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(In thousands)

Securities available-for-sale
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions $ 5121 § (35 $ 990 $ (100) $ 15021 $ (135
Mortgage-backed securities

U.S. government-sponsored

entities(1) 39,127 (182) 331,054 (4,469) 370,181 (4,651)
Equity securities(2) 65,979 (19,160) — — 65,979 (19,160)
Corporate and other debt

securities 10,479 (603) 10,370 (643) 20,849 (1,246)

Total securities

available-for-sale 120,706 (19,980) 351,324 (5,212) 472,030 (25,192)

Securities held-to-maturity
Mortgage-backed securities

U.S. government agencies(3) — — 8,105 (54) 8,105 (54)
U.S. government-sponsored
entities(1) — — 26,394 (657) 26,394 (657)
Total securities
held-to-maturity — — 34,499 (711) 34,499 (711)

Total temporarily
impaired securities § 120,706 $ (19,980) § 385,823 § (5,923) § 506,529 § (25,903)

(1) Includes obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) and Federal National
Mortgage Association (FNMA).

(2) Includes issues from government-sponsored entities (FNMA and FHLMC).
(3) Includes obligations of the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA).
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December 31, 2006

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(In thousands)

Securities available-for-sale
Obligations of U.S.
government-sponsored

entities(1) $§ 1,997 § —  $ — 8§ — $ 1997 3§ —
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 43,452 (305) 12,500 (191) 55,952 (496)

Mortgage-backed securities
U.S. government

agencies(2) — — 564 ) 564 )
U.S.
government-sponsored
entities(1) — — 432,749 (10,293) 432,749 (10,293)
Equity securities(3) 18,876 (143) — — 18,876 (143)
Corporate and other debt
securities — — 10,407 (627) 10,407 (627)
Total securities
available-for-sale 64,325 (448) 456,220 (11,120) 520,545 (11,568)

Securities held-to-maturity
Obligations of states and

political subdivisions 516 (1 — — 516 (1
Mortgage-backed securities

U.S. government

agencies(2) 883 (11) 8,767 (160) 9,650 (171)
U.S.
government-sponsored
entities(1) 32 — 33,308 (1,084) 33,340 (1,084)
Total securities
held-to-maturity 1,431 (12) 42,075 (1,244) 43,506 (1,256)

Total temporarily
impaired securities § 65,756 § (460) § 498,295 § (12,364) § 564,051 § (12,824)

(1) Includes obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) and Federal National
Mortgage Association (FNMA).

(2) Includes obligations of the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA).
(3) Includes issues from government-sponsored entities (FNMA and FHLMC).

The unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities is included, net of tax, in other comprehensive loss on the
consolidated balance sheets. Management does not believe that any individual unrealized loss as of December 31,
2007, identified in the preceding table, represents other-than-temporary impairment as of that date. These
unrealized losses are primarily attributable to changes in interest rates as well as turbulent economic conditions
impacting the credit markets in the second half of 2007. The Company has both the intent and ability to hold each
of the securities shown in the table for the time necessary to recover its amortized cost, including for debt
securities, holding to maturity. If, however, contrary to management’s expectations at December 31, 2007, the
unrealized losses in the Company’s equity investment securities do not demonstrate a clear pattern of substantial
recovery in the near future, the Company would be required to recognize impairment losses.
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* The unrealized losses on U.S. government-sponsored entities mortgage-backed securities relate primarily to
debt securities issued by FNMA and FHLMC and are rated AAA; each security has a stated maturity date.
FNMA is rated Aa3, AA- and A+ by Moody’s, S&P and Fitch, respectively. FHLMC is rated Aa3 and AA-
by Moody’s and Fitch, respectively. The mortgage-backed securities are notes with a weighted average
maturity of approximately 22 years and a weighted average interest rate of 5.02%.

* The unrealized losses on corporate and other debt securities relate to securities which were rated A- or
better by either Moody’s or S&P at December 31, 2007 and 2006. These debt securities have a weighted
average maturity of approximately 18 years and a weighted average interest rate of 5.36%.

» The unrealized losses on equity securities relate to perpetual preferred equity securities issued by FNMA
and FHLMC which were rated AA- or better by either Moody’s or S&P at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
and carry tax-equivalent yields averaging 8.22%. The unrealized losses on these securities increased
significantly in late 2007, peaking in mid-November as a result of unfavorable economic news, mostly
related to declines in the sub-prime mortgage market, the housing slump, and a series of major corrections
in the marketplace. Both of these government-sponsored entities raised substantial new equity capital
through the issuance of additional preferred stock in late 2007, which the Company believes shows
investors’ confidence in the issuers’ strength, long-term viability and ability to fund dividends. Despite the
period of time these securities have been impaired and the magnitude of the decline in value, the Company
believes it is too soon as of December 31, 2007 to conclude that the unrealized losses are
other-than-temporary in nature and further believes as of December 31, 2007 that the market fluctuations
that precipitated the steep drop in values in late 2007 will reverse over time. The price performance of these
securities subsequent to year-end 2007 has, however, been choppy. As indicated above, if a pattern of
recovery does not appear in the near future, the Company would be required to recognize impairment
losses.

Securities with an approximate carrying value of $600.2 million and $489.5 million at December 31, 2007 and
2006 were pledged to secure public deposits, borrowings, and for other purposes as required or permitted by law.
Included in securities pledged at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are $183.9 million and $213.4 million, respectively,
which have been pledged for FHLB borrowings.
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The amortized cost and fair value of securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2007 are shown
below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or

prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Securities available-for-sale
Due in one year or less
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years

Mortgage-backed securities
Total debt securities
Equity securities
Total securities available-for-sale
Securities held-to-maturity
Due in one year or less
Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years

Mortgage-backed securities
Total securities held-to-maturity

Amortized

Cost Fair Value

(In thousands)

$ 2,132 $ 2,145
1,843 1,867
234,123 235,536
26,965 26,314
265,063 265,862
383,633 379,040
648,696 644,902
85,139 65,979

$ 733,835 $ 710,881
$ — $ —
452 458

802 810
1,254 1,268
36,347 35,644

$ 37601 $ 36912

Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale and the realized gross gains and losses are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Proceeds from sales $ 189,495 $ 101,730 $ 357,303
Gross realized gains $ 893 $ 341 $ 825
Gross realized losses (831) (494) (18,265)
Net gains (losses) on securities transactions $ 62 $ (153) $ (17,440)

As permitted under SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,”
certain securities held-to-maturity, where a substantial portion of their principal outstanding was collected and had
a carrying value of $2.1 million, were sold in the fourth quarter of 2007 at a loss of $30,000. These securities had

paid down to an average of less than 3% of their original face value.
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Note 6 —Loans

Major classifications of loans are summarized as follows:

Commercial
Construction
Commercial real estate
Home equity
Other consumer
Residential mortgage
Total loans, gross
Net deferred fees

Total loans,net

(1) Source of repayment classification.

(2) Collateral-based classification.

http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

December 31,

2007(1) 2006(2)
% of Gross % of Gross
Amount Loans Amount Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 1,015,799 41.0% $ 376,944 19.4%
444,613 18.0 424,181 21.8
600,451 24.3 761,742 39.0
157,987 6.4 147,366 7.6
10,968 0.4 9,373 0.5
244,874 9.9 227,762 11.7
2,474,692 100.0% 1,947,368 100.0%
(365) (552)
$ 2,474,327 $ 1,946,816

During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company revised its classification of commercial loans and commercial
real estate loans, changing its prior practice of classifying as commercial real estate loans all loans to businesses
that included real estate as collateral (“collateral-based” classification). The classification of construction, home
equity, and residential mortgages were also reviewed. The new method of presentation (“source of repayment”
classification) recognizes that loans to owner-occupied businesses engaged in manufacturing, sales and/or services
are commercial loans regardless of whether real estate is taken as collateral. These loans generally have a lower
risk profile than traditional commercial real estate loans. They are primarily dependent on the borrower’s
business-generated cash flows for repayment, not on the conversion of real estate that may be pledged as
collateral. Loans related to rental income producing properties and properties intended to be sold will continue to
be classified as commercial real estate loans. Completing this change in methodology involved a loan-by-loan
review of the Company’s commercial and commercial real estate loans. This new presentation methodology is
being implemented only as of December 31, 2007 and prospectively, as it is impracticable to apply it to prior
years’ data. The Company’s loan portfolio composition at December 31, 2007 under the new “source of
repayment” and prior “collateral-based” methodologies was as follows:

Commercial
Construction
Commercial real estate
Home equity
Other consumer
Residential mortgage
Total loans, gross
Net deferred fees

Total loans, net

119 of 201

Source of Repayment

Collateral-Based

% of Gross

% of Gross

Amount Loans Amount Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
$ 1,015,799 41.0% $ 464,902 18.8%
444,613 18.0 451,103 18.2
600,451 243 1,087,876 44.0
157,987 6.4 193,506 7.8
10,968 0.4 10,968 0.4
244,874 9.9 266,337 10.8
2,474,692 100.0% 2,474,692 100.0%
(365) (365)
$ 2,474,327 $ 2,474,327
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Note 7 —Related Party Transactions

Certain executive officers, directors, and their related interests are loan customers of the Bank. These loans
were made under comparable terms as for non-related parties and were determined to be arms-length transactions.
A summary of loans made by the Bank to or for the benefit of directors, executive officers, and their related
interests is as follows:

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2006 $ 32,619
New loans 29,275
Repayments (20,910)
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 40,984

Note 8 —Allowance for Loan Losses
The following is a summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of year $ 23,229 § 17,760
Addition resulting from acquisition 2,767 3,244
Provision for loan losses 4,891 12,050
Loans charged off (5,975) (10,809)
Recoveries on loans previously charged off 1,836 984

Net loans charged off (4,139) (9,825)
Balance at end of year $ 26,748 $ 23,229

A portion of the allowance for loan losses is allocated to impaired loans. Information with respect to impaired
loans and the related allowance for loan losses is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)

Impaired loans for which no allowance for loan losses is allocated $ 15,490 $ 10,317
Impaired loans with an allocation of the allowance for loan losses 43,652 41,845

Total impaired loans $ 59,142 $ 52,162
Allowance for loan losses allocated to impaired loans $ 14,029 $ 13,247

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Average impaired loans $ 54,956 $ 44,792
Interest income recognized on impaired loans on a cash basis 1,432 2,920

Interest payments on impaired loans are generally applied to principal, unless the loan principal is considered
to be fully collectible, in which case interest is recognized on a cash basis.
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Nonaccrual loans were $49.2 million and $42.8 million as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Loans past due 90 days but still accruing were $0 and $34,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Note 9 —Premises and Equipment
Premises and equipment are summarized as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Land and improvements $ 15,609 $ 7,834
Buildings and improvements 35,686 23,362
Furniture and equipment 26,509 19,865

Total cost 77,804 51,061
Accumulated depreciation (35,983) (29,101)

Premises and equipment, net $ 41,821 $ 21,960

Note 10 —Goodwill and Core Deposit Intangibles

The following table presents the carrying amount and accumulated amortization of intangible assets (in

thousands):
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Gross Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated  Net Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizing intangible assets:
Core deposit intangibles $ 21,091 $ 4,047) $ 17,044 $ 13,618 § (2,345) § 11,273

Core deposit intangibles increased by $8.1 million as of October 1, 2007 due to the Northwest Suburban
acquisition. The amortization of intangible assets was $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2007. At
December 31, 2007, the projected amortization of intangible assets is $2.4 million, $2.3 million, $2.2 million,
$1.9 million, $1.8 million for the years ending December 31, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, respectively, and
$6.4 million in total for the subsequent years. The weighted average amortization period for the core deposit
intangibles is approximately nine years as of December 31, 2007.

The following table presents the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and other intangibles during the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands):

2007 2006

Core Deposit Core Deposit

and Other and Other

Goodwill Intangibles Goodwill Intangibles
Balance at beginning of year § 79,488 § 11,273 $ 891 $ 1,788
Addition resulting from acquisition 80,550 8,061 78,597 10,488

Amortization — (1,702) — (1,003)
Purchase price adjustment 369 — — —
Core deposit intangible retired(1) — (588) — —
Balance at end of year $ 160,407 § 17,044 $ 79488 § 11,273
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(1) On January 3, 2003, the Company purchased Big Foot Financial Corp. As a result of this acquisition, the
Company had unrecognized tax benefits related to employee severance payments and acquisition costs.
These unrecognized tax benefits were recognized in the first quarter of 2007, when the statute of limitations
for Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) audit of the final short period return closed. These unrecognized tax
benefits, totaling $429,000, were credited to the core deposit intangible created as a result of the acquisition.
A reversal of $283,000 in tax liability established on the date of acquisition was also credited to the core
deposit intangible in the first quarter of 2007. During the third quarter of 2007, the core deposit intangible
was increased by $124,000 due to an adjustment related the estimated tax liability established on the date of
acquisition.

Note 11 —Time Deposits

Interest-bearing deposits in denominations of $100,000 and greater were $856.6 million as of December 31,
2007 and $553.7 million as of December 31, 2006. Interest expense related to deposits in denominations of
$100,000 and greater was $26.3 million for 2007, $16.8 million for 2006, and $2.4 million for 2005.

Certificates of deposit have scheduled maturities for the years 2008 through 2012 and thereafter as follows:

(In thousands)

2008 $ 1,372,624
2009 75,709
2010 17,762
2011 9,243
2012 14,291
Thereafter —

$ 1,489,629

Note 12 —Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

The Company has repurchase agreements with brokerage firms, which are in possession of the underlying
securities. The same securities are returned to the Company at the maturity of the agreements. The following
summarizes certain information relative to these borrowings:

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Outstanding at end of year $ 283,400 $ 201,079
Weighted average interest rate at year end 4.21% 4.40%
Maximum amount outstanding as of any month end $ 317,118 $ 294,599
Average amount outstanding 268,639 226,369
Approximate weighted average rate during the year 4.21% 4.59%

At December 31, 2007, securities sold under agreements to repurchase are summarized below:

Collateral
U.S. Government-Sponsored
Entities Obligations and
Mortgage-Backed

Securities
Repurchase Weighted Average Amortized
Original Term Liability Interest Rate Cost Fair Value
(In thousands)
Over 3 years $ 283,400 421% $ 295,836 $ 295,710
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Note 13 —Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank are summarized as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Rate Amount Rate Amount
(In thousands)

Advances from the Federal Home Loan

Bank due
2008 480% $ 3,500 —% 3 —
2009 4.16 4,939 4.16 4,883
2010 4.99 100,000 4.51 150,000
2011 4.65 25,000 4.85 75,000
2012 — — — —
Thereafter 4.20 190,000 4.37 90,000
Total 449% $ 323,439 4.54% $ 319,883

At December 31, 2007, the Federal Home Loan Bank advances have various call provisions ranging from
three months to two years. Various securities are pledged as collateral as discussed in Note 5 — Securities. In
addition, the Company has collateralized the advances with a blanket lien arrangement at December 31, 2007 and
2006.

Note 14 —Junior Subordinated Debentures

At December 31, 2007, the Company had $60.7 million in junior subordinated debentures owed to
unconsolidated trusts that were formed to issue trust preferred securities at December 31, 2007. The trust preferred
securities offerings were pooled private placements exempt from registration under the Securities Act pursuant to
Section 4(2) thereunder. The Company has provided a full, irrevocable, and unconditional subordinated guarantee
of the obligations of these trusts under the preferred securities. The Company is obligated to fund dividends on
these securities before it can pay dividends on shares of its common stock and preferred stock.

The following table details the unconsolidated trusts and their common and trust preferred securities:

December 31, Mandatory Optional
Issuer Issue Date 2007 2006 Rate Redemption Date Redemption Date
MBHI Capital Trust 11 October 29,2002 $ — $ 15,464 LIBOR+3.45% November 7, 2032 November 7, 2007
December 19, December 30, December 30,
MBHI Capital Trust III 2003 9,279 9,279 LIBOR+3.00% 2033 2008
December 19,
MBHI Capital Trust IV 2003 10,310 10,310 LIBOR+2.85% January 23, 2034  January 23, 2009
MBHI Capital Trust V June 7, 2005 20,619 20,619 LIBOR+1.77% June 15, 2035 June 15, 2010
6.62% until July 23,
Royal Capital Trust I April 30, 2004 10,206 10,140  2009; July 23,2034 July 23, 2009
then LIBOR+2.75%
Northwest Suburban
Capital Trust I May 18, 2004 10,310 — LIBOR+2.70% July 23,2034 July 23, 2009
Total $ 60,724 $ 65,812

The Company acquired $10.3 million in junior subordinated debentures at LIBOR plus 2.70% through the
acquisition of Northwest Suburban effective October 1, 2007 and redeemed $15.5 million in junior subordinated
debentures at LIBOR plus 3.45% on November 7, 2007.
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Note 15 —Notes Payable

Notes payable at December 31, 2007 consisted of a revolving line of credit and a term note loan in the
amounts of $2.5 million and $70.0 million, respectively.

The Company has credit agreements with a correspondent bank, which provides the Company with a
revolving line of credit with a maximum availability of $25.0 million and a term note of $75.0 million. The
revolving line of credit has an initial rate of one-month LIBOR plus 115 basis points and matures on April 3, 2008.
At December 31, 2007, the revolving line of credit had a rate of 6.39%. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the
Company utilized the proceeds from the $75.0 million term note to pay for the cash requirements of the Northwest
Suburban acquisition. The Company repaid $5.0 million of the term note in December 2007. The term note has an
initial rate of one-month LIBOR plus 140 basis points and matures on September 28, 2010. At December 31,
2007, the term note had a rate of 6.64%.

The revolving line of credit and term notes include the following covenants at December 31, 2007: (1) the
Bank must not have nonperforming loans in excess of 3.00% of total loans, (2) the Bank must report a quarterly
profit, excluding charges related to acquisitions, and (3) the Bank must remain well capitalized. The Company has
complied with all three of these debt covenants at December 31, 2007.

Note 16 —Preferred Stock

In December 2007, the Company raised $41.4 million in new equity capital, net of issuance costs, through an
offering of 1,725,000 depositary shares each representing 1/100th of a share of its Series A noncumulative
redeemable convertible perpetual preferred stock, at $25.00 per depositary share. The depositary shares have a
dividend rate of 7.75% per annum of the stated liquidation preference, which is initially equivalent to $1.937500
per year and $0.484375 per quarter per depositary share. Dividends are noncumulative and are payable if, when
and as declared by the Company’s board of directors.

The depositary shares are convertible, at the option of the holder, at any time into the number of shares of the
Company’s common stock equal to $25.00 divided by the conversion price then in effect. The depositary shares
are convertible, at the option of the Company, on or after the fifth anniversary of the issue date, into the number of
shares of the Company’s common stock equal to $25.00 divided by the conversion price then in effect. The current
conversion price is $15.00. The Company may exercise this conversion option only if its common stock price
equals or exceeds 130% of the then prevailing conversion price for at least 20 trading days in a period of 30
consecutive trading days and the Company has paid full dividends on the depositary shares for four consecutive
quarters.

The depositary shares are redeemable, at the option of the Company, on or after the fifth anniversary of the
issue date, for $25.00 per share, plus declared and unpaid dividends, if any, provided that the payment of
dividends for prior periods has been approved by the Federal Reserve Board.

The preferred stock outstanding has preference over the Company’s common stock with respect to the
payment of dividends and distribution of the Company’s assets in the event of a liquidation or dissolution. The
holders of preferred stock have no voting rights, except in certain circumstances.

Note 17 —Capital Requirements

The Company and the Bank are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, banks
must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Prompt corrective action provisions
are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require banks and bank holding
companies to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and Tier 1
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capital to average assets. If a bank does not meet these minimum capital requirements, as defined, bank regulators
can initiate certain actions that could have a direct material effect on the bank’s financial statements. Management
believes that, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy
requirements to which they were subject.

As of December 31, 2007, the most recent Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation notification categorized the
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or
events since that notification that management believes have changed the institution’s categories. To be
categorized as well capitalized, banks must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1

leverage ratios.

The risk-based capital information for the Company is as follows:

Risk-weighted assets

Average assets

Capital components:
Stockholders’ equity

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
$ 2,811,423 $ 2,237,305
3,721,444 2,946,366

$ 375164 S 287,242

Plus: Guaranteed trust preferred securities 59,000 64,000
Less: Core deposit and other intangibles, net (17,044) (11,273)
Less: Goodwill (160,407) (79,488)
Plus: Unrealized losses on securities, net of tax 13,917 6,273
Less: Unrealized losses on equity securities, net of tax (11,768) —
Tier I capital 258,862 266,754
Allowance for loan losses 26,748 23,229
Reserve for unfunded commitments 233 —
Unrealized gains on equity securities, net of tax — 175

Total risk-based capital

§ 285,843 $ 290,158
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The actual capital amounts and ratios for the Company and the Bank are presented in the following table:

Minimum Required

For Capital To Be Well
Actual Adequacy Purposes Capitalized
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in thousands)

As of December 31, 2007
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets)

Company $ 285,843 10.2% $ 224,814 8.0% n/a n/a

Bank 351,352 12.6 223,959 8.0 279,949 10.0
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets)

Company 258,862 9.2 112,457 4.0 n/a n/a

Bank 324,370 11.6 111,980 4.0 167,969 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets)

Company 258,862 7.0 148,858 4.0 n/a n/a

Bank 324,370 8.7 148,407 4.0 185,508 5.0

As of December 31, 2006
Total Capital (to risk-weighted assets)

Company $ 290,158 13.0% $ 178,984 8.0% n/a n/a

Bank 272,619 12.2 178,113 8.0 222,641 10.0
Tier 1 Capital (to risk-weighted assets)

Company 266,754 11.9 89,492 4.0 n/a n/a

Bank 249,214 11.2 89,056 4.0 133,584 6.0
Tier 1 Capital (to average assets)

Company 266,754 9.1 117,855 4.0 n/a n/a

Bank 249,214 8.5 117,140 4.0 146,425 5.0

Note 18 —Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The methods and assumptions used
to determine fair values for each class of financial instrument are presented below.

The carrying amount is equivalent to the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, federal funds
purchased, Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock, accrued interest receivable and payable,
due from and to broker, noninterest-bearing deposits, short-term borrowings, and variable rate loans,
interest-bearing deposits, or notes payable that reprice frequently and fully. The fair value of securities and
derivatives, including swaps, are based on market prices or dealer quotes, and if no such information is available,
on the rate and term of the item or information about the issuer. For fixed rate loans or deposits and for variable
rate loans or deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits, and securities sold under agreements to
repurchase, fair value is based on discounted cash flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life
and credit risk. Fair values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying
collateral values. The fair value of fixed rate debt is based on current rates for similar financing. The fair value of
off-balance-sheet items, loan commitments, is not material.
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments were as follows:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Securities available-for-sale
Securities held-to-maturity

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home

Loan Bank stock
Loans held for sale
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses
Accrued interest receivable
Financial liabilities
Deposits
Noninterest-bearing
Interest-bearing
Federal funds purchased

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank
Junior subordinated debentures

Notes payable

Accrued interest payable

Due to broker

December 31,

2007 2006
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(In thousands)

84,499 $ 84,499 $ 100,532 $ 100,532
710,881 710,881 589,981 589,981
37,601 36,912 45,931 44,687
29,264 29,264 23,592 23,592
— — 2,672 2,672
2,447,579 2,452,466 1,923,587 1,914,196
14,519 14,519 12,331 12,331
321,317 321,317 276,381 276,381
2,136,831 2,000,618 1,681,429 1,682,140
81,000 81,000 66,000 66,000
283,400 305,394 201,079 197,214
323,439 339,108 319,883 323,259
60,724 61,154 65,812 65,960
72,500 72,500 — —
11,014 11,014 8,023 8,023
1,539 1,539 — —

The remaining other assets and liabilities of the Company are not considered financial instruments and are not

included in the above disclosures.

There is no readily available market for a significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments.
Accordingly, fair values are based on various factors relative to expected loss experience, current economic
conditions, risk characteristics, and other factors. The assumptions and estimates used in the fair value

determination process are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and significant judgment and, therefore,

fair values cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect these estimated

values.
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Note 19 —Off-Balance-Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

In the normal course of business and to meet financing needs of customers, the Company is a party to
financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk. Since many commitments to extend credit expire without being
used, the amounts below do not necessarily represent future cash commitments. These financial instruments
include lines of credit, letters of credit, and commitments to extend credit. These are summarized as of
December 31, 2007 as follows:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Within After
1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Total
(In thousands)

Lines of credit:

Commercial real estate $ 172355 $ 33,859 $ 11,907 $ 307 $ 218,428
Consumer real estate 42,943 30,395 42,725 49,444 165,507
Consumer — — — 2,213 2,213
Commercial 259,149 6,120 1,467 2,867 269,603
Letters of credit 39,873 23,496 2,602 — 65,971
Commitments to extend credit 97,365 — — — 97,365
Total commercial commitments $ 611,685 $ 93,870 $ 58,701 $ 54,831 $ 819,087

At December 31, 2007, commitments to extend credit included $31.1 million of fixed rate loan commitments.
These commitments are due to expire within 30 to 90 days of issuance and have rates ranging from 5.75% to
9.50%. Substantially all of the unused lines of credit are at adjustable rates of interest.

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings. In the opinion of
management, any liability resulting from such proceedings would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Note 20 —Derivative Instruments

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company did not have any outstanding derivatives. In January 2005,
the Company terminated U.S. Treasury 10-year note futures contracts with a notional value of $290.0 million at a
gain of $336,000. The Company also terminated spread lock swap agreements with a notional value of
$247.0 million in January 2005 at a loss of $425,000. The respective gain and loss on the futures contracts and
spread lock swap agreements, all of which were stand-alone derivatives, were reflected in net trading profits. In
the second quarter of 2005, the Company terminated interest rate swaps with a notional value of $121.5 million
used to convert its FHLB advance fixed rate debt to floating rate debt. The resulting loss of $3.6 million was
included in the loss on extinguishment of debt.

The Company bought and sold various put and call options with terms less than 90 days on U.S. Treasury and
government-sponsored entities obligations, mortgage-backed securities, and futures contracts during 2005. These
were stand-alone derivatives that were carried at their estimated fair value with the corresponding gain or loss
recorded in net trading profits or losses.

Note 21 —Stock Compensation and Restricted Stock Awards

Under the Company’s Stock and Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), officers, directors, and key employees may be
granted incentive stock options to purchase the Company’s common stock at no less than 100% of the market price
on the date the option is granted. Options can be granted to become exercisable immediately or in installments of
25% a year on each of the first through the fourth anniversaries of the grant date or may be issued subject to
performance targets. In all cases, the options have a maximum term of ten years. The Plan also permits the
issuance
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of nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units. The Plan
authorizes a total of 3,900,000 shares for issuance. There are 2,002,729 shares remaining for issuance under the
Plan at December 31, 2007. In the past, the Company has issued treasury shares in conjunction with the exercise of
stock options or grants of restricted stock. Beginning in 2006, it became the Company’s policy to issue new shares
of its common stock in conjunction with the exercise of stock options or grants of restricted stock.

During 2007, 36,443 employee stock options were exercised at an average price of $10.38. The Company
received $378,000 in cash and realized a tax benefit of $54,000. Total employee stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2007 were 479,152 with exercise prices ranging between $8.83 and $22.03, or a weighted average
exercise price of $14.03, and expiration dates between 2008 and 2015. No stock options were granted in 2007 or

2006.

Information about option grants follows:

Outstanding at December 31, 2004
Granted during 2005

Exercised during 2005

Forfeited during 2005

Outstanding at December 31, 2005
Granted during 2006

Exercised during 2006

Forfeited during 2006

Outstanding at December 31, 2006
Granted during 2007

Exercised during 2007

Forfeited during 2007

Outstanding at December 31, 2007

Options exercisable at year end are as follows:

2005
2006
2007

Weighted Average

Weighted Average

Options outstanding at December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Range of Exercise Price

$8.83-10.59
$10.75-14.90
$18.34-22.03

Outstanding at year end

Number of Exercise Price Grant-Date Fair
Options Per Share Value Per Share
1,115,086 $ 12.88 $ 342
30,500 19.43 5.50
(397,051) 11.02 3.43
(60,593) 17.57 6.15
687,942 13.83 4.57
(151,894) 13.03 426
(19,000) 18.46 6.82
517,048 13.90 4.58
(36,443) 10.38 3.19
(1,453) 15.21 5.57
479,152 14.03 4.63
Weighted Average
Number of Exercise Price
Options Per Share
588,190 $ 13.18
475,548 13.45
451,652 13.70
Outstanding
Weighted Average Exercisable
Remaining Weighted Average
Number Contractual Life Number Exercise Price
188,702 2.60 188,072 $ 9.67
145,830 2.77 145,830 13.37
145,250 6.33 117,750 20.56
479,152 3.78 451,652 13.70
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At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic value of the options outstanding and exercisable were
$2.2 million and $2.1 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $116,000, $647,000, and $1.4 million, respectively.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” in the first quarter of 2006 using the
modified prospective application. Employee compensation expense for stock options previously granted was
recorded in the consolidated income statement based on the grant’s vesting schedule. Forfeitures of stock option
grants are estimated for those stock options where the requisite service is not expected to be rendered. The
grant-date fair value for each grant was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, using the
following weighted-average assumptions as of grant date. The following table reflects the only two grants (those
options granted in 2005 and 2003) included in employee compensation expense.

2005 2003
Fair value $§ 550 $ 7.31
Risk-free interest rate 4.05% 3.40%
Expected option life 5 years 7.6 years
Expected stock price volatility 22.06% 28.53%

For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, employee compensation expense related to stock options
was $22,000 and $264,000, respectively. The total compensation cost related to nonvested stock options not yet
recognized was $54,000 at December 31, 2007 and the weighted average period over which this cost is expected to
be recognized is 30 months.

No stock-based compensation cost is reflected in net income of periods prior to 2006. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if expense was measured using the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”

Year Ended

December 31,
2005

(In thousands,

except per

share data)
Net income as reported $ 5,944
Deduct: Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value-based method, net of tax 583
Pro forma net income $ 5,361
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations as reported $ 0.30
Pro forma basic earnings per share 0.27
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations as reported 0.30
Pro forma diluted earnings per share 0.27

The pro forma compensation costs presented in this and prior filings for the Company have been calculated
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.

During the fourth quarter of 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors
approved the acceleration of vesting of certain unvested out-of-the-money stock options previously awarded to
current employees, including executive officers, effective as of December 19, 2005. A stock option is considered
out-of-the-money if the option exercise price is greater than the price per share of common stock traded on the
NASDAQ National Market. Such actions were taken in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Stock
and Incentive Plan approved by the stockholders on May 18, 2005. Options relating to 93,875 shares, which were
issued in July 2004, vested as a result of the acceleration on December 19, 2005. The primary purpose of
accelerating the
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vesting of these options was to eliminate future compensation expense the Company otherwise would recognize in
its consolidated income statement under the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R). The pro forma amount for 2005 in

the table above includes $226,000, after-tax, relating to these options.

Under the Plan, officers, directors, and key employees may also be granted awards of restricted shares of the
Company’s common stock. Holders of restricted shares are entitled to receive cash dividends paid to the
Company’s common stockholders and have the right to vote the restricted shares prior to vesting. The existing
restricted share grants vest over various time periods not exceeding five years and some may be accelerated
subject to achieving certain performance targets. Compensation expense for the restricted shares equals the market
price of the related stock at the date of grant and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period
assuming certain performance targets are met when applicable. All restricted shares had a grant-date fair value

equal to the market price of the underlying common stock at date of grant.

Information about restricted share grants follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Restricted Grant-Date Fair Value
Shares Per Share

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 150,000 $ 18.71
Granted 64,700 19.53
Vested (35,000) 18.88
Forfeited (1,000) 19.43
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 178,700 18.97
Granted 347,179 22.61
Vested (36,000) 18.97
Forfeited (9,250) 19.43
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 480,629 21.59
Granted 59,700 14.99
Vested (84,709) 20.85
Forfeited (7,226) 20.77
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 448,394 20.87

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Company recognized $3.1 million, $2.2 million,
and $873,000, respectively, in compensation expense related to the restricted stock grants. The Company realized
a tax benefit of $58,000 and $46,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and none for
the year ended December 31, 2005. The total fair value of shares outstanding was $9.4 million as of December 31,
2007. The total fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 was
$1.8 million, $683,000, and $661,000, respectively. The total compensation cost related to nonvested restricted
shares not yet recognized was $5.7 million at December 31, 2007 and the weighted average period over which this

cost is expected to be recognized is 33 months.

Note 22 —Other Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains a 401(k) plan covering substantially all employees. Eligible employees may elect to
make tax deferred contributions within a specified range of their compensation as defined in the plan. The
Company contributes 1% more than the employee’s contribution up to a maximum 5% employer contribution.
Contributions to the plan are expensed currently and were $1.1 million, $812,000, and $635,000 for the years

ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
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The Company and various members of senior management have entered into a Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan (“SERP”). The SERP provides for guaranteed payments, based on a percentage of the individual’s
final salary, for 15 years after age 65. The benefit amount is reduced if the individual retires prior to age 65. The
liability is being accrued over the vesting period. Expense of $1.1 million, $451,000, and $343,000 was recorded
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 and has been included in salaries and employee benefits
expense in the statements of income.

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on various members of management. The Company is the
beneficiary of these life insurance policies, which have an aggregate death benefit of approximately $217.4 million
at December 31, 2007. In addition, the policies had aggregate cash surrender values of approximately
$81.2 million at December 31, 2007 and $65.2 million at December 31, 2006.

Note 23 —Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes from continuing operations consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Current
Federal $ 2,923 $ 7,307 $ (9,010)
State — — —
Deferred 323 (5,885) 2,685
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 3246 § 1,422 $ (6,325)

The difference between the provision for income taxes in the consolidated financial statements and amounts
computed by applying the current federal statutory income tax rate of 35% to income before income taxes is
reconciled as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Income taxes computed at the statutory rate  $ 7,638 35.0% $ 6,709 35.0% $ (2,770)  (35.0)%
Tax-exempt interest income on securities

and loans (771) (3.5) (1,171) (6.1) (563) (7.1)
General business credits (643) 2.9 (665) 3.9 (255) 3.2)
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit

due to state operating loss (1,027) “4.7) (676) 3.5) (952) (12.0)
Income tax reserve adjustment — — (591) 3.1 — —
Life insurance cash surrender value

increase, net of premiums (1,072) 4.9) (838) “4.4) (615) (7.8)
Life insurance death benefit — — — — (276) 3.5
Dividends received deduction (1,214) (5.6) (1,106) (5.8) 868) (11.0)
Nondeductible meals and entertainment 45 0.2 27 0.2 13 0.2
Annuity proceeds 267 1.2 — — — —
Merger related expenses — — (278) (1.5) — —
Stock based compensation, net — — 56 0.3 — —
Other 23 0.1 (45) 0.2) (39) (0.5)

Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 3,246 14.9% $ 1,422 74% $ (6,325) (79.9)%

F-35

134 of 201

11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm
Table of Contents

MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The net deferred tax asset, included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, consisted
of the following components:

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)

Gross deferred tax assets

Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale $ 8,742 $ 4,127
Allowance for loan losses 10,519 9,232
Deferred compensation 3,116 1,583
Net operating loss carryforward 3,999 5,278
Income from partnerships 51 58
Deferred tax credits 786 2,101
Nonaccrual loan interest 2,326 1,236
Capital loss — 293
Foreclosed properties writedowns — 966
Total gross deferred tax assets 29,539 24,874
Gross deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation (1,087) (1,582)
FHLB stock dividends (1,536) (1,499)
Amortizing intangible assets (5,960) (4,043)
Other (810) (630)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (9,393) (7,754)
Net deferred tax asset $ 20,146 $ 17,120

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company believes it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets
will be realized and, therefore, no allowance was considered necessary.

The unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007 were as follows:

Unrecognized

Income

Tax Benefits

(In thousands)
Balance, at beginning of period $ 1,238
Current year additions 481
Prior year reductions (168)
Reductions due to statute of limitations (429)
Balance, at end of period $ 1,122

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” on January 1, 2007. The adoption of this standard did not have an
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations. The Company recognizes
interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense and penalties, if any, in income tax
expense. As of the date of adoption, the Company had approximately $20,000 of interest accrued for potential
income tax exposures and $526,000 of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax
rate and $429,000 of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would not affect the effective tax rate, for a
total of $955,000 of unrecognized tax benefits net of the federal income tax effect on state income taxes. During
the year
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ended December 31, 2007, the Company recognized approximately $20,000 in interest expense. At December 31,
2007, the Company had approximately $40,000 of interest accrued for potential income tax exposures and
$729,000 of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate. This is less than the
total amount of unrecognized tax benefits disclosed in the table above because the unrecognized benefits relate to
state tax matters.

On January 3, 2003, the Company purchased Big Foot Financial Corp. As a result of the acquisition, the
Company had various unrecognized tax benefits related to the acquisition. These unrecognized tax benefits were
recognized in the first quarter of 2007, when the statute of limitations for IRS audit of the final short period return
closed. These unrecognized tax benefits, totaling $429,000, were credited to a core deposit intangible created at
the acquisition. There were no other material changes in the unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company is currently being audited by the Illinois Department of Revenue for the years 2003 through
2005. It is thus reasonably possible that the gross balance of unrecognized tax benefits may change within the next
twelve months. The Company anticipates that it is reasonably possible within twelve months of December 31,
2007, that unrecognized tax benefits of up to $330,000 could be realized related to a single issue common to
Illinois banks, but the Company does not anticipate any adjustments that would result in a significant change to its
financial position. An Internal Revenue Service audit for the years 2002 to 2005 was completed during the second
quarter of 2007 and there were no changes made to the reported tax amounts for those years. Years that remain
subject to examination include 2006 to present for Federal, 2003 to present for Illinois, 2005 to present for
Indiana, and 2004 and subsequent years for Federal and Illinois for various acquired entities.
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Note 24 —Earnings Per Share

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 18,577 $ 17,746  $ (1,589)
Income from discontinued operations — — 7,533
Net income 18,577 17,746 5,944
Preferred stock dividends (204) — —
Net income available to common stockholders $ 18,373 $ 17,746 $ 5944
Weighted average common shares outstanding 25,426 23,348 19,573
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations § 072 $§ 076 § (0.08)
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations $ — — § 038
Basic earnings per share § 072 $ 076 § 0.30
Weighted average common shares outstanding 25,426 23,348 19,573
Dilutive effect of stock options(1) 98 200 234
Dilutive effect of restricted stock(1) 56 242 38
Diluted average common shares 25,580 23,790 19,845
Diluted average common shares — continuing operations(1) 25,580 23,790 19,573
Diluted average common shares — discontinued operations(1) — — 19,845
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $§ 072 $ 075 $  (0.08)
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations $ — $ — $ 038
Diluted earnings per share $§ 072 $§ 075 § 030

(1) No dilutive shares from stock options or restricted stock were included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share for any period there was a loss from continuing or discontinued operations.

Options to purchase 117,750 shares at a weighted average exercise price of $20.56 and 92,500 shares at
$22.03 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2005, respectively, because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market price of the
common stock and the options were, therefore, anti-dilutive. Because of the anti-dilutive effect, the shares that
would be issued if the Series A noncumulative redeemable convertible perpetual preferred stock were converted
are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Note 25 —Other Comprehensive Income
Changes in other comprehensive income or loss components and related taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Unrealized holding losses on securities available-for-sale $ (12,221) $ (2,063) $ (5,710)
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses recognized in income from

continuing operations (32) 153 17,440
Reclassification adjustment for losses recognized in income from

discontinued operations — — 2,982
Accretion of unrealized gains on securities transferred from

available-for-sale to held-to-maturity @) @) (40)

Net unrealized gains (losses) (12,260) 2,209 14,672
Tax effect 4,616 (876) (5,821)

Other comprehensive (loss) income $ (7,644 $ 1,333 $§ 8,851

Note 26 —Parent Company Financial Statements

The following are condensed balance sheets and statements of income and cash flows for the Company,
without subsidiaries:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,118 $ 15,291
Investment in subsidiaries with continuing operations 501,292 335,668
Other assets 10,010 8,588
Total assets $ 513,420 $ 359,547

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Junior subordinated debentures $ 60,724 $ 65812

Notes payable 72,500 —

Other liabilities 5,032 6,493

Total liabilities 138,256 72,305

Stockholders’ equity 375,164 287,242

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 513,420 $ 359,547
F-39
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Operating income
Dividends from continuing subsidiaries
Fees from continuing subsidiaries
Noninterest income
Interest expense
Noninterest expense
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in undistributed income of
continuing subsidiaries
Income tax benefit
Equity in undistributed income of continuing subsidiaries
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations

Net income
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

$ 4,032 $ 10,477 $ 3,346
1,103 1,000 1,897
(162) 240 59
(6,645) (4,741) (3,801)
(3,330) (5,662) (6,733)
(5,002) 1,314 (5,232)
3,377 3,904 3,434
20,202 12,528 209
18,577 17,746 (1,589)
— — 7,533
$ 18,577 $ 17,746  $ 5944
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from continuing operating activities

Net income
(Income) loss from discontinued operations
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used
in) continuing operating activities
Equity in undistributed income of continuing subsidiaries
Depreciation
Amortization of stock-based compensation
Amortization of intangibles
Change in other assets
Change in other liabilities

Net cash (used in) provided by continuing operating activities

Cash flows from continuing investing activities

Cash paid, net of cash and cash equivalents in acquisition
Investment in continuing subsidiaries

Property and equipment expenditures

Disposition of subsidiary

Net cash (used in) provided by continuing investing activities

Cash flows from continuing financing activities

Issuance of junior subordinated debentures, net of debenture
issuance costs

Payments of junior subordinated debentures

Proceeds from notes payable

Repayments on notes payable

Cash common dividends paid

Cash preferred dividends paid

Issuance of common stock

Issuance of preferred stock

Repurchase of common stock

Proceeds from issuance of common and treasury stock under stock
option plan
Net cash (used in) provided by continuing financing activities

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operations
Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations

Net cash used in discontinued operations

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

$ 18,577 $ 17,746 $ 5,944
— — (7,533)
(20,202) (12,528) (209)
70 85 101
22 2,501 873
67 34 —
2,971 (159) (171)
(3,766) 3,752 (1,517)
(2,261) 11,431 (2,512)
(67,557) (65,286) —
(20,000) — (15,200)
(75) a7) (39)
— — 35,621
(87,632) (65,303) 20,382
— — 20,619
(15,000) — (20,619)
92,500 — 2,000
(20,000) — (2,000)
(13,003) (11,439) (9,164)
(204) — —
— — 68,453
41,441 — —
(9,392) (4,770) —
378 1,983 4,374
(76,720) (14,226) 63,663
— — 187
— — (1,000)
— — (813)
(13,173) (68,098) 80,720
15,291 83,389 2,669
$ 2,118 $ 15,291 $ 83,389
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Note 27 —Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

2007

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Preferred stock dividends

Net income available to common
stockholders

Earnings per common share(a)
Basic
Diluted

2006

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses
Noninterest income

Noninterest expense

Income before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Net income
Earnings per common share(a)

Basic
Diluted

Three Months Ended,

Year Ended,

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 December 31
(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 44,766 $ 46,492 $ 47,174 $§ 55,437 $ 193,869
25,706 26,523 26,827 32,181 111,237
19,060 19,969 20,347 23,256 82,632
645 1,036 1,800 1,410 4,891
3,720 3,896 3,700 4,161 15,477
17,081 16,644 16,245 21,425 71,395
5,054 6,185 6,002 4,582 21,823
642 1,078 1,166 360 3,246
4412 5,107 4,836 4,222 18,577
— — — (204) (204)
$ 4412 $ 5,107 $ 4,836 $ 4,018 $ 18,373
$ 0.18 $§ 021 $ 0.20 $ 0.14 $ 0.72
0.18 0.21 0.20 0.14 0.72
Three Months Ended, Year Ended,
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 December 31
(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 33,359 $ 35,290 $ 45903 $ 44,710 $ 159,262
16,198 17,737 24,510 25,535 83,980
17,161 17,553 21,393 19,175 75,282
— 5,000 1,550 5,500 12,050
3,013 3,601 4,147 3,790 14,551
11,885 13,041 17,194 16,495 58,615
8,289 3,113 6,796 970 19,168
2,348 223 814 (1,963) 1,422
$ 5,941 $ 2,890 $ 5,982 $§ 2933 $ 17,746
$ 027 § 013 $ 0.24 $ 0.12 $ 0.76
0.27 0.13 0.24 0.12 0.75

(a) Earnings per share for the quarters and fiscal years have been calculated separately. Accordingly, quarterly
amounts may not add to the annual amounts because of differences in the average common shares

outstanding during each period.

F-42

11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007
and December 31, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 14, 2008
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Exhibit 10.49

575 ELA ROAD BUILDING
BANK FACILITY LEASE FOR MIDWEST BANK AND TRUST COMPANY

585-587 Ela Road
Lake Zurich, Illinois
(hereinafter referred to as the “Building”)

This Indenture is made as of this 27TH

day of DECEMBER, 2007 between George Garner and Barbara Garner, hereinafter referred to as “Landlord”, and Midwest Bank
and Trust Company, 501 W. North Avenue, Melrose Park, Illinois 60160, an Illinois Chartered Banking Association (Attention:
Mr. Bruno Costa, Executive Vice President) hereinafter referred to as “Tenant”.

The following Schedule is an integral part of this Lease.

SCHEDULE

1. Description of Premises

(“the space”): Approximately Two Thousand (2,000) square feet of the Building and the adjoining Drive-Up window together with
the Remote Unit, consisting of an additional Two Hundred (200) square feet and designated as 585-587 Ela Road. For purposes of
this Lease, the “Building” includes an approximately 5,000 square foot Retail Building structure and an adjoining Drive-Up
Window and Remote Unit.

2. Tenant’s use of Premises: Operation of a branch Banking facility and related activities and for no other use or purpose.

3. Total Base Rent (subject to adjustments set forth in the Additional Provisions section below): $58,524.24.
4. Monthly installments of Base Rent (subject to adjustments): $4877.02.

5. Tenant’s proportionate share of Rental Adjustments attributable to the “building”: 42.3%.
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6. Commencement date of Lease term: January 1, 2008.

7. Termination date of Lease term: December 31, 2008.

8. Tenant’s address for notice before possession date:

Midwest Bank and Trust Company

Attention: Mr. Bruno Costa, Executive Vice President
501 West North Avenue

Melrose Park, IL 60160

9. Security Deposit: $7,700.00

10. Landlord makes no estimate for annual electricity, common area expenses, or real estate taxes to be charged to Tenant.

11. Broker: NONE.

12. Premises: Landlord, for and in consideration of the rents herein reserved and of the covenants and agreements herein contained
on the part of the Tenant to be performed, hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby lets from Landlord, premises (‘“Premises’)
consisting of approximately 2,200 square feet of rentable area, including approximately 2,000 square feet of air conditioned office
space together with the Remote Area of approximately 200 square feet, all located at and commonly known as 585-587 Ela Road,
Lake Zurich Illinois 60047. Tenant accepts the premises “as is” and Landlord is not responsible for any improvements made to or to
be made to tenant’s space leased hereunder.

13. Parking Areas: Tenant, its employees and invitees may use, on a reserved basis, five (5) parking spaces in parking areas
contiguous to Tenant’s space as designated by Landlord. Except as otherwise reserved, Tenant shall have the right to use all other
non-assigned parking spaces on a non-exclusive basis. Landlord may grant other occupants or tenants of the Building the right to
use other parking spaces on a reserved basis. Landlord shall not
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be obligated to enforce parking limitations imposed on tenants, but shall cooperate with Tenant in enforcing Tenant’s rights
hereunder. Tenant shall use its best efforts to prevent its employees from parking at spaces contiguous to other tenants’ premises,
including the nearby “Cyclery” building also owned by Landlord.

14. Prohibited Uses: Tenant shall not use or permit the Premises to be used in any manner which would violate any certificate of
occupancy affecting the Premises, cause injury to the improvements, cause the value or usefulness of the Building or Real Estate or
any part thereof to diminish, constitute a public or private nuisance or waste, or render the insurance on the Building void or the
insurance risk more hazardous or create any defense to payment, provided, however, that if Tenant’s use of the Premises does make
the insurance risk more hazardous then, without prejudice to any other remedy of Landlord for such breach, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord, on demand, the amount by which Landlord’s insurance premiums are increased as a result of such use. Tenant shall not
use or occupy the Premises contrary to any statute, rule, order, ordinance, requirement or regulation applicable thereto. Tenant shall
not sell, promote the sale of, repair, service or in any other way deal with bicycles or cycling equipment or any products related
thereto. A violation of this paragraph shall constitute a default under the Leasing Agreement.

15. Base Rent. Beginning with the Commencement Date, Tenant shall pay a total base rent of Fifty Eight Thousand Five Hundred
Twenty Four and 24/100 Dollars ($58,524.24) (“Base Rent”) payable in equal monthly installments of Four Thousand Eight
Hundred Seventy Seven Dollars ($4,877.02), in advance on the Commencement Date and on the first day of each calendar month
thereafter of the Term.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

15.1. Rent Escalation in Lieu of CPI Provision: On each anniversary of the Commencement Date, if applicable and assuming
Tenant exercises its option to extend the initial term of this Lease, the Base Rent shall increase to an amount equal to One Hundred
Three Percent (103%) of the Base Rent which was payable for the year immediately preceding such anniversary and Tenant shall
thereafter (until further increase) pay equal monthly

3.

145 of 201 11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

installments of the Base Rent as adjusted. Tenant shall pay all monthly installments of Base Rent to Landlord, in advance, on or
before the first day of each and every month during the Term, without demand and with out any set-off or deduction whatsoever.

15.2. Additional Rent: In addition to paying Base Rent, Tenant shall also pay as additional rent the following amounts (“Additional
Rent”) for each calendar year in which the Term falls:

(a) Tenants Pro Rata Share (as hereinafter defined) of Taxes (as defined in Section 1.4 of the Leasing Agreement) in excess of
zero dollars ($0) (“Base Taxes”), in accordance with the Section II of the “Leasing Agreement”.

(b) Tenant’s Pro Rata Share of Expenses (as defined in Section 3 of Article II of the “Leasing Agreement”).
As used in this Lease,

(1) The Expenses referred to in Section 3 of Article II of the Leasing Agreement are solely attributable to the 5,000
square foot Building plus Drive-Up Window and Remote Unit Facilities. Tenant’s share shall be Thirty-Eight and 4/10ths percent
(38.40%) of all such Expenses.

(i1) The term “Rentable Area of the Premises” shall mean usable area in the Premises plus a share of mechanical space,
loading docks and other common service areas including the Two Hundred (200) Square feet allocated by Landlord to the Drive-up
Window and Remote Unit, utilized solely by Tenant, and, if the Premises are less than an entire floor, a share of public areas (such
as corridors, toilets, lobbies and electrical and telephone closets) on the floor on which the Premises are located. Rentable Area of
the Premises shall be deemed to be Two Thousand Two Hundred (2,200) square feet.

-
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(iii) The term “Rentable Area of the Building” shall mean the sum of areas on all floors of the Building (ground floor
and above) plus mechanical space, loading docks and other common service areas including the Two Hundred Square feet allocated

by Landlord to the Drive-Up Window and Remote Unit being built solely at the expense of Tenant. Rentable Area of the Building
shall be deemed to be 5,200 square feet.

15.3. Tenant Contingencies: None.

15.4 Special Provision: Tenant shall tender the first month’s rent and security deposit by Certified Check, Cashier’s Check, Money
Order or Bank Wire Transfer.

15.5 Landlord Covenant: Landlord affirmatively covenants that Tenant shall have the right of quiet possession of the Premises so
long as Tenant observes the term and provisions set forth in the Lease.

15.6 Tenant Documents: Tenant shall provide Landlord with corporate resolutions authorizing this transaction.
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LEASING AGREEMENT

Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, the Premises described in the Schedule, located in the
575 Ela Road Building at 585-587 Ela Road, Lake Zurich, Illinois, for the term set forth in the Schedule, unless sooner terminated
as provided herein.

IN CONSIDERATION THEREOF, THE PARTIES COVENANT AND AGREE as follows:
I. Rental.

Tenant shall pay to Landlord at the office of the Building, or at such other place as may be designated from time to time by
notice in writing to Tenant:

A. the total Base Rent set forth in the Schedule in equal monthly installments in the amounts set forth in the Schedule and the
Additional Provisions thereof;,

B. the Rental Adjustments as provided in Section II below;
C. all other sums payable by Tenant hereunder within ten (10) days after Landlord bills Tenant therefor; and

D. any interest due pursuant to the terms of this Lease at the rate of Five (5%) percent over the prime commercial lending rate
being offered by the Chase Bank of Chicago from time to time from the due date of each payment until paid.

Each monthly installment will be payable in advance promptly on the first day of each calendar month during the term of this
Lease. If the term begins other than on the 1st day of a calendar month or if the Term is terminated other than on the last day of a
calendar month, a prorated amount shall be paid for such fractional month. All of the aforesaid sums and interest shall constitute
rent hereunder. However, no interest or penalties will be charged to Tenant, if Tenant’s obligations under this paragraph are paid
within seven (7) days of the due date for any such payment.
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II. Rental Adjustments

The rent payable hereunder shall be increased as set forth in the schedule and the Additional Provisions thereof, to reflect
increases in the cost of operating the Building and in taxes in the following manner:

A. Definitions.
For purposes of the Rental Adjustments, the following definitions shall apply:
1. “Base year” shall mean the last full calendar year before the commencement date of this Lease.

2. “Adjustment year” shall mean every calendar year being wholly or partly during the term of this Lease, commencing
with the calendar year in which this Lease commences. In the event that the first adjustment year or the last adjustment year is not a
full calendar year during the term of this Lease, then the Rental Adjustments with respect to such partial year shall be pro-rated for
the number of days in the term included within such partial calendar year.

3. (a) “Cost of operating the Building” shall mean all normal and reasonable costs, expenses and disbursements of
every kind and nature paid or incurred by Landlord in connection with the ownership, management, operation, maintenance and
repair of the Building, the underlying land and all related personal property, as determined by standard accounting practices used by
Landlord in its buildings in the Chicago metropolitan area, and shall include by way of illustration and not limitation, heat, water,
electricity (to the extent not otherwise paid by tenants), labor, contracted labor, insurance, materials, service and professional fees
and charges, license, permit and inspection fees, and fees and costs in connection with the obtaining of reductions in Taxes. It shall
not include Taxes as defined below. Repair and other costs, expenses and disbursements scheduled less often
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than annually may be prorated, at Landlord’s election, over the period to which the same are applicable.

(b) “Cost of operating the building” should not include costs incurred by Landlord in connection with the maintenance
and repair of the structural portion of the Building, but shall include costs and expenses incurred in connection with the operation of
the parking areas, access ways and other common areas. Costs of operating the Building should not include capital improvements,
depreciation or amounts attributable to overhead or administrative costs of Landlord. Landlord should further covenant to operate
and maintain the common areas in good order and repair. If requested by Tenant, Landlord should furnish bills, receipts and other
evidence of the amount of costs of operating the Building prior to Tenant’s payment thereof.

4. “Base Taxes” shall mean all real property taxes in respect to the Building and underlying land and all ad valorem
taxes for Landlord’s personal property used in connection therewith, payable in the base or adjustment year, as the case may be, and
all special taxes and special assessments, installments of which are required to be paid during the base or adjustment year, as the
case may be. Base Taxes as used herein shall not include any penalties or interest due thereon, unless said penalties and interest are
the result of activity or responsibility of Tenant. If hereafter there shall be imposed any tax, assessment, charge or fee payable by
Landlord to the State of Illinois, County of Lake, Village of Lake Zurich, or any other governmental subdivision either on the rents
or other income collected from the Building (not including a general income or franchise tax) or in the event that any other tax,
assessment, charge or fee may be imposed hereafter in lieu of or partially in lieu of such real property taxes or personal property
taxes, then such tax, assessment, charge or fee shall be included with the term “Taxes” under the provisions of this Lease. Taxes
shall be as initially billed and payable in the base or adjustment year, as the case may be, even though representing taxes levied for a
prior year.

5. “Rental Adjustments” shall mean all the rent described in Section II of this Lease.
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6. “Tenant’s proportionate share” shall be as set forth in the Schedule and Additional Provisions thereto. That
percentage represents the percentage obtained by dividing the agreed upon rentable area of the Premises by the agreed upon
rentable area of the Building. Tenant agrees to said percentage and agrees not to dispute any of said areas.

B. Adjustment for Cost of Operating the Building

In the event that the costs of operating the Building for any adjustment year reflect an increase over such costs for the
base year, then Tenant shall pay to Landlord as additional rent Tenant’s proportionate share of such increase.

C. Tax Adjustment

In the event that the Taxes payable in any adjustment year are more than the Taxes payable during the base year (the
Taxes for the base year on the Building shall be “0” for purposes of this Leasing Agreement), then Tenant shall pay to Landlord as
additional rent Tenant’s proportionate share of such increase.

D. Estimated Rental Adjustment

Before January first of each adjustment year or as soon thereafter as Landlord is able to do so, Landlord shall notify
Tenant of the expected cost of operating the Building and Taxes for the adjustment year, together with Landlord’s estimate of the
increase in the cost of operating the Building and Taxes for such adjustment year. Tenant thereafter shall pay as additional rent the
estimated and projected amounts of the Rental Adjustments for such adjustment year, in installments calculated and payable in the
following manner. Every month, at the same time and place that installments of Base Rent are to be paid, Tenant shall pay an
amount equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of Tenant’s proportionate share of any estimated increase in the cost of operating the Building
and Taxes for such adjustment year over the base year and one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount of the Rental Adjustment projected by
the Landlord. Tenant shall have the option of making semi-annual payment of

9.
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the real estate tax assessment, if Landlord’s obligations to make real estate tax deposits under its mortgage are semi-annual or
greater. This payment provision shall abate if Landlord’s real estate tax deposit requirements are more frequent than semi-annual. If
Tenant is notified of any such estimate or projection after January 1st of any adjustment year or if, at anytime during any adjustment
year, Landlord notifies Tenant that it had determined that the cost of operating the Building and Taxes for such adjustment year will
be more or less than previously estimated or projected, upon submission to Tenant of an adjusted estimate or projection or the
determined amount, the monthly installments of additional rent to be paid during such adjustment year for increases in the cost of
operating the Building and Taxes shall be adjusted upward or downward, as the case may be, and such adjustment shall be made
retroactive to the beginning of the then current adjustment year. In this latter regard, Tenant shall pay to Landlord any amount
necessary to reflect any such increase for the current and past months, or Landlord shall pay to Tenant or credit against the next
monthly installment(s) of additional rent any amount necessary to reflect such decrease for the current and past months. Whenever
the term “Rental Adjustments” or a similar term is used in this Lease, it shall include the estimated Rental Adjustments and
additional rent payments provided for in this Section.

E. Billing and Final Payment

Landlord will keep, or cause to be kept, books and records showing the costs of operating the Building and Taxes for the base
year and each adjustment year in accordance with the system of accounts and accounting practices consistently begin maintained by
Landlord for his other buildings in Illinois. As soon as available after January 1st of each adjustment year, Landlord shall submit to
Tenant a computation of the additional rents, if any, due for Rental Adjustments for the preceding adjustment year. Within thirty
(30) days after the receipt of such statement, Tenant shall pay to landlord the entire balance of all Rental Adjustments due for such
adjustment year due to increases in the costs of operating the Building and Taxes not paid, if any; and, if Tenant had paid more than
the actual amounts shown on said statement to be due for Rental Adjustments for such adjustment year, Landlord shall pay to
Tenant or credit against the next installment of additional rent becoming due hereunder the amount of the overpayment. The
additional rent payable each
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month during the then current adjustment year shall be adjusted retroactively to reflect such adjustments. In no event shall any of
the adjustments herein result in a decrease in the Base Rent. Tenant shall have the right to review all invoices, bills and receipts
relating to rent adjustments as described in this lease.

II1. Security Deposit

As additional security for the full and timely payment of all rent and other sums and performance of all other obligations
required to be paid or performed by Tenant hereunder, Tenant has paid a security deposit in the amount set forth in the Schedule.
The Security Deposit may (but need not) be applied by Landlord toward the curing of any default(s) of Tenant and shall not bear
interest. Tenant on demand shall replenish any portion of the security deposit applied by Landlord. If Tenant is not in default
hereunder, Landlord shall refund the unapplied balance of the security deposit within thirty (30) day after expiration of the Lease
term.

IV. Services

A. Heating and Air-Conditioning. Landlord shall operate the Building’s heating system serving the Premises daily from 8:00
a.m. to 5:30 p.m. (Saturdays to 3:00 p.m.), Sundays and holidays excepted, as may be required, in Landlord’s judgment, to provide
a temperature condition for reasonably comfortable occupancy of the Premises by Tenant under normal business operations and in
the absence of use of heat generating machinery or equipment in the Premise. Since Tenant is paying for the costs of all heating and
air conditioning affecting its space, Tenant shall have the right to adjust the hours of usage to meet its needs. Tenant shall pay the
cost of any heating and air its needs. Tenant shall pay the cost of any heating and air conditioning systems specifically designed to
service Tenant’s rentable space and computer needs. Except for such units currently in the Premises, Tenant shall be responsible for
the purchase, installation, maintenance, and upkeep of the electrical and air conditioning systems for Tenant’s rentable area of the
Premises.
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B. Water. Landlord shall cause to be furnished cold water from Village of Lake Zurich mains for drinking, lavatory and toilet
purposes drawn through fixtures installed by Landlord or by Tenant with Landlord’s prior written consent. Tenant shall pay for all
water furnished to or for the Premises, including water used for air-conditioning.

C. Janitor Services; Cleanliness of Premises. Tenant, at its own expenses, shall provide janitor and cleaning service in and about
the Premises, so as to keep the Premises in a clean, sightly, sanitary and safe condition. Tenant shall remove at reasonable times all
garbage and other waste material from the Premises, shall keep the Premises in good order and repair, and shall prevent any
unsanitary conditions from taking place on the Premises. Tenant shall place and store such garbage and waste material in sealed,
sanitary containers within the Premises pending removal; and in no event shall Tenant place or store garbage or waste material on
the sidewalk or street outside the Building. Tenant shall enter into a written contract with a reputable, professional, pest control
contractor acceptable to Landlord, providing for reasonable pest control services. Tenant shall keep all ducts, pipes and traps free
from accumulations of dirt and grease; and Tenant shall enter into written maintenance contracts with reputable, professional
contractors acceptable to Landlord for such purposes, providing (among other things) for thorough duct cleaning at least
semi-annually. All contracts to be entered into under this paragraph shall be on terms and conditions acceptable to Landlord for
purposes of maintaining the highest standards of cleanliness, sightliness and sanitation. Each contract shall require prior written
notice to Landlord before modification or termination; and a copy of each contract shall be delivered to Landlord prior to Tenant’s
taking possession of the Premises (and upon execution in the case of any renewal or substitution). Landlord may inspect the
Premises at reasonable times, either by itself or by its agent or designee, for the purpose of enforcement and compliance with the
provisions of the Lease and this subparagraph. If in Landlord’s judgment, any of the services or obligations required hereby are not
being satisfactorily provided or performed, Landlord, in addition to all other available remedies, may terminate this Lease or
Tenant’s right to possession hereunder if such default is not cured within ten (10) days after notice to Tenant, and Landlord shall
have the right to do whatever is necessary to see to it that compliance is obtained and to charge Tenant for any and all expenses
incurred in so doing. Such charges shall be in the form of additional rent.
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D. Electricity. Tenant accepts the electric wiring system in the Premises for standard lighting fixtures “as is”. If Tenant requires
electrical usage that, in the Landlord’s judgment, may affect electrical service to other portions of the Building or cause damage or
unusual wear or tear to the existing system and equipment, Tenant shall arrange for and install such additional conduit, wiring and
equipment in accordance with the other provisions of this Lease as shall be necessary and proper, all at Tenant’s sole expense.

Landlord will furnish all electric energy consumed in the Premises, including that for heating, air conditioning and ventilation,
during the term of this Lease. If electrical usage in the Premises is not separately metered, Tenant shall pay Landlord, as additional
rent in equal monthly installments of Base Rent, an annual amount as determined by Landlord from time to time as the amount
which Tenant would pay for such electric energy if the same were separately metered to the Premises by the local electric utility
company and billed to Tenant at such utility company’s current rates. If the electrical usage in the Premises is separately metered,
Tenant shall pay all sums billed per the meter(s). Tenant also shall pay Landlord, as additional rent, an annual amount as determined
by Landlord from time to time as Tenant’s prorated share of the amount payable for electric energy used in the public areas and
parking lot on which the Premises are located.

E. Failure to Pay for Services. If Tenant fails to pay promptly any sum required to be paid by Tenant under this Section IV,
Landlord, upon not less than ten days’ prior notice, may discontinue furnishing the relevant services; and no such discontinuance
shall be deemed an eviction or disturbance of Tenant’s possession or use of the Premises, or give rise to any defense or set off, or
render Landlord liable for damages, or relieve Tenant from any obligation.

F. Interruption of Services. Except for conditions within Landlord’s control and undisclosed defects in construction, Landlord
does not warrant that any service will be free from interruption caused in whole or in part by maintenance, repairs, renewals,
replacements, improvements, changes of service, alterations, strikes, lockouts, labor controversies, material shortages, accidents,
inability to obtain fuel or supplies, weather conditions, or other cause beyond the reasonable control of Landlord, or that the
quantity
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or quality of any service will not be diminished as a result in whole or in party of any such cause. No such interruption or
diminution shall be deemed an eviction or disturbance of Tenant’s use or possession of the Premises, or give rise to any defense or
set-off, or render Landlord liable for damages, or relieve Tenant from any obligation. However, Landlord will maintain and repair
HVAC:s, electric and plumbing systems, except that Landlord shall have no responsibility for any damage caused by the neglect or
misuse by tenant. Tenant will waive claims against Landlord for interruption or stoppage of utility services to the extent that such
interruption or stoppage is not caused by the neglect or misconduct of Landlord or Landlord’s agents or contractors.

G. Installation of Facilities. Landlord shall not be required to install any special facilities for Tenant, Tenant has inspected the
Premises, and Tenant accepts the Premises “as is”.

V. Use of Premises

A. Purpose. Tenant shall use and occupy the Premises only for its construction and contracting business and for no other use. All
fixtures, equipment, appliances, furniture, furnishings, floor, ceiling, window and wall coverings, and other items installed or
acquired by Tenant shall be consistent with Tenant’s permitted use of the space.

Tenant may keep its business open during normal hours, Monday through Saturday. However, if security becomes a problem at
either Tenant’s regular space in the Building or in conjunction with night time or weekend hours, Landlord may require Tenant to
provide a security or guard service to maintain the general security of Tenant’s business and rentable space. It is understood that
guard service and security arrangements, as may be necessary to protect customers using Tenant’s facilities, and other individuals
on Landlord’s property, is sole responsibility of Tenant and, except for injuries and damage arising out of acts or omissions of
Landlord, their agents, contractors or employees, Tenant indemnifies and holds harmless Landlord for any and all personal injuries
and property damage that occur in conjunction with the operation of Tenant’s business. Said indemnification and hold harmless
shall include any attorneys’ fees, court costs, expenses, and other costs incurred by Landlord with respect thereto.
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B. Removal of Property. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a list of all furniture, equipment and other articles before removing
such articles, shall obtain a removal permit from the Landlord. Landlord’s consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, but may be
exercised, for example, to prevent a day time move that may disrupt other tenants.

C. Doors to be Locked. Before leaving the Premises unattended, Tenant shall close and securely lock all doors to the Premises
and other areas used by Tenant and shall shut off all utilities controlled from within the Premises. All damages resulting from
failure to do so shall be paid by Tenant.

D. Laws and Regulations. Tenant shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect all necessary permits and licenses for the
operation of its business on the Premises and shall comply with all statutes, ordinances, orders, rules and regulations of any
governmental authority with respect to the Premises and the use or occupancy thereof.

E. Signs. Tenant shall not paint, display, inscribe or affix any sign, picture, advertisement, notice, lettering or direction on any
part of the outside or inside of the Building, or which is visible from outside the Premises, except with the prior written consent of
Landlord, and then only of such color, size style character and material as first is approved in writing by Landlord in its sole and
absolute discretion. Landlord reserves the right to remove any items not complying with the compensation to Tenant, and Tenant
shall reimburse Landlord for all expenses incurred in connection therewith. With respect to signs permitted by the Village of Lake
Zurich to be placed at or near Ela Road, Landlord at Tenant’s sole expense, will attempt to obtain additional on said sign, subject to
Landlord’s prior approval of the content, design, construction and layout thereof. Landlord and tenant agree to use Northshore Sign
Company located at 1925 Industrial Drive, Libertyville, Illinois 60048 for the preparation of all signs installed pursuant to the terms
hereof or with such other mutually agreed sign company. Landlord reserves the right to charge separately for any signs placed at or
near Ela Road on “The Cyclery” property.
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F. Advertising. Tenant shall not advertise the business, profession or activities of Tenant in any manner which violates the letter
or spirit of any code of ethics adopted by any recognized association or organization pertaining thereto, or use the name of the
Building for any purpose other than as the business address of Tenant, or use any picture or likeness of the Building or the name
“Schwinn”, “GT”, “Trek”, “Klein”, “Specialized”, “LeMond”, “Bow Flex”, “Pearl Izumi”, “George Garner” or “Cyclery” or any
combination thereof in any letterhead, envelope, circular, notice, advertisement, container, or wrapping material, without
Landlord’s prior written consent.

G. Sale of Articles. Tenant shall not exhibit, sell, exchange, use, rent or offer for sale, exchange, use or rent in the Premises or
Building any article, thing or service except those ordinarily embraced within the use of the Premises specified in the Schedule,
without the prior written consent of Landlord.

H. Unlawful Use. Tenant shall not make or permit any use of the Premises, or commit or permit to be committed any act therein
or elsewhere in the Building, which, directly or indirectly, is forbidden by law, ordinance or governmental rule, regulation or order,
or which may be dangerous to person or property.

1. Hazardous Materials. Tenant shall not bring, use or permit to be brought or used in the Premises or the Building any
environmentally unsafe or toxic materials, flammable or explosive material or any other article deemed in Landlord’s sole and
absolute discretion to be hazardous to person or property. Tenant shall not do or permit to be done any act or thing in or upon the
Premises or the Building, or bring, use or permit to be brought or used anything therein, which may invalidate, be in conflict with or
increase the rates for any fire or other insurance policies covering the Building or its operations or the Premises, or any part of
either, or which does not comply with all rules, regulations, orders and requirements of the insurance carriers, the fire Department,
Board of Fire Underwriters and any similar organizations. If, by reason of Tenant’s failure to comply with the provisions of this
subsection, any insurance premium at any time shall be increased above what it otherwise would be, Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord for all such increases.
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J. Various Prohibited Uses. Tenant shall not, without the prior written consent of Landlord to be exercised in the sole and
absolute discretion of Landlord (or other than in strict accordance with such conditions as Landlord may impose):

1. install or operate any heating, or air-conditioning apparatus or carry on any mechanical operations; or
2. use the Premises for housing, lodging or sleeping purposes.
K. Sound Devices. Tenant shall not, except as otherwise stated in this Lease:

1. place any radio or television antenna on the roof or on or in any part of the inside or outside of the Building other
than the inside of the premises.

2. operate or permit to be operated any musical or sound producing instrument or device which may be heard outside
the Premises; or

3. operate any electrical device from which may emanate electrical waves which may interfere with or impair radio or
television broadcasting or reception from or in the Building or elsewhere.

L. Nuisances. Tenant shall not, except as otherwise stated in this Lease or with the express written consent of Landlord:

1. bring or permit to be brought into the Building any motorized vehicle or bike or dog (except in the company of a
blind or handicapped person requiring the assistance of such an animal), other animal or bird;

2. make or permit any objectionable noise or odor to emanate from the Premises;

3. do or permit anything in the Premises or Building which may create or maintain a nuisance or public disturbances; or
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4. disturb, solicit or canvass any occupant of the Building.

M. Cleanliness and Obstruction of Public Areas. Tenant shall not:

1. place anything or allow anything to be placed in the Premises which may be unsightly from outside the Premises;

2. take or permit to betaken in or out of any other entrance of the Building any item normally taken in or out through
the shipping or loading dock or service doors; or

3. temporarily, accidentally, or otherwise, obstruct or place, store or allow anything in any passage way, exit, stairway,
elevator, shipping platform, or shipping or loading dock. Tenant shall keep such areas free from all obstruction and in a clean and
lightly condition and shall move all supplies, furniture and equipment as soon as received directly to the Premises and shall move
all items and trash (other than trash customarily removed by Building employees) being taken from the Premises directly to the
trash refuse area of the Premises at or about the time arranged for removal therefrom.

N. Locks, Due to the nature of Tenant’s business, it is understood that Tenant must keep the Tenant’s rentable space secure and
Landlord will not have unlimited access. Therefore, for emergency purposes, Tenant shall make available a person or persons that
have twenty-four (24) hour access to Tenant’s space. The names, addresses and phone numbers, of all such persons shall be

supplied to Landlord in writing on a timely basis and updated each March 31, June 30, September 31, and December 31 after the
original designations thereof.

O. Weight Limits. Tenant shall not overload any floor or place any heavy equipment, appliance, furniture or fixtures in the
Premises contrary to any instruction from or requirements of Landlord with respect to location for weight distribution purposes.
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P. Defacing Premises. Tenant shall not:

1. mark, cut or drill into or drive nails or screws into any part of the Premises or Building, outside or inside, without the
prior written consent of Landlord; or

2. commit or allow any waste, defacing, damage or destruction to or of the Building or any part thereof.

Q. Alarm. If Tenant desires any signal, communications, alarm, computer or other utility or service connections installed or
changed in the Premises, the same shall be installed or changed at the expense of Tenant, but only with the prior written approval
and under the direction of Landlord. Landlord waives any objection to the existing alarm system in the Premises.

R. Window and Door Coverings. Tenant, at its own expense, may install drapes, blinds and other window and door coverings,
provided that the same are in conformity with the other provisions of this Lease, in harmony with the exterior and interior
appearance of the Building and pose no safety or fire hazard, as determined in the sole and absolute judgment of Landlord. All such
coverings shall be maintained by Tenant in good order, condition and repair.

VI. Alterations.

A. Tenant should have the right, without Landlord’s consent, to make non-structural changes to the interior architectural
treatments of the premises, provided that such changes shall not diminish the value of the Building or create liens.

B. Tenant shall not make any installations, alterations, additions, or improvements, in or to the Premises without first submitting
detailed plans and specifications to Landlord and securing Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld.
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VII. Rights Reserved to Landlord.

Landlord shall have the following rights, exercisable without notice or payment of further consideration and without liability to
Tenant for damages or injury to property, persona or business (all claims for damage or injury being hereby waived and released),
and without effecting any eviction or disturbance of Tenant’s use or possession of the Premises or giving rise to any defense or
set-off:

A. To change the name or street address of the Building.

B. To install and maintain signs on the exterior and interior of the Building, subject to the terms of Section V, subparagraph E
above.

C. To designate all sources furnishing sign painting and lettering, ice, mineral, and drinking water, beverages, foods, towels,
vending machines and toilet supplies used or consumed on the Premises.

D. To grant to anyone the exclusive right to conduct any business or render any service in the Building, provided such exclusive
right shall not operate to exclude Tenant from the use expressly permitted in the Schedule.

E. To decorate, remodel, repair, alter or otherwise prepare the Premises for reoccupancy, if Tenant vacates or abandons the
Premises, subject to Tenant’s obligation to restore and repair as set forth in Section IX of this Lease.

F. To enter the Premises, upon reasonable prior notice to Tenant except in the event of emergencies, for purposes of making
inspections, repairs, replacements, alterations, additions and improvements in or to the Premises or the Building, exhibiting the
Premises to prospective tenants, purchasers, mortgagees or others, and performing any acts related to the maintenance, safety,
protection, preservation, reletting, sale or improvement of the Premises or the Building, in each case at all reasonable hours and at
any time during an emergency.
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G. To have access to all mail chutes, if any, according to the rules of the United States Post Office.

H. To require all persons entering or leaving the Building during such hours as Landlord from time to time reasonably may
determine to identify themselves to a watchman by registration or otherwise and establish their right to enter or leave, and to
exclude or expel any peddler, solicitor or beggar at any time from the Premises or the Building, and to regulate the delivery and
servicing of furniture, equipment, supplies and other items.

I. To close the Building at or before 10:00 p.m. on weekdays or before 6:00 p.m. on Saturdays and on Sundays and legal
holidays, subject, however, to Tenant’s rights to admittance under such other reasonable rules and regulations as may be prescribed
from time to time by Landlord. Said provisions shall not apply to emergency medical care being provided by Tenant.

J. To approve the weight, size and location of safes and other heavy machinery, equipment, appliances, and articles in and about
the Premises and Building, and to require all such items to be moved in, out of and about the Building and Premises only at such
times and in such manner as Landlord shall direct and in all events at Tenant’s sole risk and responsibility.

K. At any time, to decorate, perform maintenance, and make repairs, replacements, alterations, additions and
improvements—structural or otherwise—in or to the Premises, the Building, or any part thereof; and during such operations, to take
into and through the Premises and Building all materials and equipment and close or temporarily suspend operation of entrances,
doors, corridors, elevators, and other facilities and services. Landlord may do any such work during ordinary business hours; and if
Landlord agrees to perform such work during other hours at Tenant’s request, Tenant shall pay Landlord for all overtime and other
additional expenses incurred by Landlord as a result thereof.

L To do or permit to be done any other work in or about the Premises or the Building or any adjacent or nearby building land,
street or alley.
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VIII. Improvements, Condition and Repair of Premises.

A. Tenant’s acceptance of possession shall constitute Tenant’s agreement that Tenant thoroughly has examined the Premises,
that Tenant is satisfied in all respects with the physical condition of the Premises, as well as the amount of space contained therein,
and that Tenant is taking the Premises is their then existing condition “as is”. No representation or warranty has been made by
Landlord or Landlord’s agent as to the operation, condition or repair of the Premises; and there has been no agreement by Landlord
to redecorate, alter, repair or improve the Premises either before or after the execution of this Lease, other than as set forth herein.
Tenant has made an independent inspection of the space and has not relied on any inspection or representations made by Landlord.
Tenant has made his own the computation of the interior square foot of the space approximated by Landlord as to the amount of
space contained in the Premises and is not relying on Landlord’s computation.

B. Tenant, at Tenant’s expense, shall provide, install and construct within the Premises (in accordance with the other provisions
of this Lease) the fixtures, special air conditioning, other equipment, appliances, decorations and tenant improvements (“tenant
improvements”). Tenant shall provide Landlord on or before commencement of the Lease term with proof that Tenant has
purchased and owns all of said Tenant improvements, free and clear of all security interests, liens and encumbrances, except those
approved in writing by Landlord. If, however, Tenant and Landlord agree that Landlord will purchase and install any of the Tenant
improvements referred to above, Landlord may require Tenant to pay for the same in advance, based on Landlord’s good faith
estimate of the cost and subject to adjustment when actual costs are determined. Such costs shall include fifteen percent for
Landlord’s administrative and overhead expenses, if Landlord is required to supervise said construction.

C. (1) Landlord will maintain the structural portions of the Premises, including roofs, floors and exterior treatments, in good
order, and will make necessary repairs and replacements thereto. Repairs should be conducted in such a manner as will minimize
interference with Tenant’s business at the Premises.
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(2) Except as noted in subparagraph C. (1) above and during the term of this Lease, Tenant shall maintain the Premises
in excellent order, condition and repair, and in compliance with the requirements of all insurers and governmental authorities having
jurisdiction, including making all necessary repairs, replacements and improvements and providing all necessary repairs,
replacements and improvements and providing all necessary maintenance, in and about the Premises, at Tenant’s sole expense. If
Tenant fails to do so, Landlord may, but need not, provide any maintenance, repairs, replacements, and improvements; and Tenant
shall pay Landlord on demand for all costs incurred by Landlord in connection therewith, plus 15% for Landlord’s overhead and
administrative expenses. Tenant’s obligations hereunder extend to all exterior and corridor glass; and Tenant shall enter into a
written agreement with a reputable glass cleaning contractor to clean all such glass on such a basis and in such manner as is
acceptable to Landlord. Such contractor shall have such insurance coverage as Landlord may require. Tenant’s obligations also
include maintaining all plants and vegetation in good shape and health and replacing them as necessary.

D. As often as may be deemed necessary and at least once every seven years, Tenant shall re-paint the Premises, install new
floor, wall and window coverings, and generally remodel the Premises so as to maintain the standards required of Tenant under this
Lease.

IX. Surrender of Premises.

Upon termination of this Lease by lapse of time or otherwise or upon termination of Tenant’s right to possession:

A. Tenant shall surrender all keys to the Premises to Landlord and shall make known to Landlord the explanations of all
combination and other locks remaining on the Premises.

B. Tenant shall return the Premises and all property, equipment and fixtures of Landlord in excellent order, condition and repair,
subject to the provisions of subparagraph
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C of this Section IX and ordinary wear; and if Tenant fails to do so, Landlord may place the same in such order, condition and
repair and Tenant shall pay Landlord the cost thereof, plus 15% for Landlord’s overhead and administrative expenses.

C. All decorations, furnishings, installations, additions, hardware, non-trade fixtures and equipment, and improvements,
temporary or permanent, located in or upon the Premises, where placed there by Tenant or Landlord, shall be Landlord’s property
and shall remain upon the Premises, without compensation, allowance or credit to Tenant; provided, however, that if prior to such
termination or within ten (10) days thereafter Landlord so directs, Tenant promptly shall remove the furnishings, decorations,
installations, additions, hardware, non-trade fixtures and equipment, and improvements which were placed in the Premises by
Tenant and are designated in the notice, and Tenant shall cap all utility outlets and restore all surfaces to a smooth uniform
condition, and otherwise remove, restore and repair the Premises to its original condition. If Tenant fails to do so, Landlord may
remove and restore the same and Tenant shall pay Landlord the cost thereof.

D. All of Tenant’s trade fixtures, equipment and personal property not removed from the Premises prior to such termination shall
be conclusively presumed to have been abandoned by Tenant, and title thereto shall pass to Landlord under this Lease as a Bill of
Sale therefor.

X. Assignment and Subletting; Sale of Business

A. Tenant shall not assign, mortgage or otherwise transfer or encumber this Lease or any interest hereunder, or sublet all or any
part of the Premises, or permit all or any part of the Premises to be used by others, without the prior written consent of Landlord to
be exercised in its sole and absolute discretion in each instance. No assignment, subletting or other transfer shall relieve Tenant of
any obligation or liability hereunder, unless otherwise agreed in writing by Landlord. If Tenant requests an assignment or
subleasing other than to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tenant or to a company into which Tenant may be merged or consolidated,
Landlord shall have the right, to be exercised in its sole and exclusive discretion, to cancel this Lease for the Premises or the portion
thereof to be assigned or
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sublet, without thereby relieving Tenant from its obligations or liabilities accruing prior thereto. If without Landlord’s prior written
consent this Lease is assigned or the Premises are sublet or occupied by anyone other than Tenant, Landlord may accept and retain
the rent from such assignee, subtenant or occupant, without being deemed to have accepted or consented to such purported
assignment, subletting or occupancy; and no such assignment, subletting, occupancy or acceptance of rent shall be deemed a waiver
of this covenant. Consent by Landlord to an assignment or subletting shall not relieve Tenant from the obligation to obtain
Landlord’s written consent to any further assignment or subletting. Consent by Landlord to an assignment or subletting shall not
constitute consent to the continuance, assignment or transfer of any right of first offer, right of first refusal, option to renew or
extend, option to lease other space, or any other similar right or option; and any such rights and options shall be personal to Tenant,
shall terminate upon any assignment or subletting and shall not be assignable or transferable, unless and except as otherwise
expressly provided in Landlord’s written consent to each respective assignment or subletting. Any rent or other consideration
payable to or received by Tenant in the form of money or otherwise as a result of an assignment or sublease which is in excess of
the rent payable under the provisions of Sections I and II of this Lease shall be due and payable to landlord as additional rent
hereunder, except as Landlord otherwise may specifically agree in writing.

B. Regardless of the language of subparagraph X(A) above, Tenant shall, without Landlord’s consent, have the right to transfer
the Lease to a subsidiary or other affiliate or to sell its assets or capital stock; provided that no such transfer shall be deemed to
release Tenant from its obligations under the Lease, and Tenant shall remain primarily liable thereunder following any such
transfer.

XI. Waiver of Certain Claims; Insurance.

A. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Tenant waives and releases and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
Landlord, its directors, officers, agents and employees, against and from all claims, actions, judgments, liabilities, cost, expenses
and fees which might be asserted against or incurred by Landlord, its directors officers,
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employees, or agents, for or in connection with any injuries to or deaths of any persons and any losses of and damages to property
sustained by Tenant, its visitors, customers, agents and employees, any other tenant or occupant of the Premises or the Building, or
any other person, occurring in or about the Building or the Premises, resulting directly or indirectly from:

1. any existing or future condition, defect, matter or thing in or about the Premises, the Building or any part thereof
resulting from or in connection with Tenant’s operation;

2. the Building, the Premises or any part thereof becoming out of repair, malfunctioning, breaking, bursting, erupting or
exploding;

3. any accident or occurrence within the Premises;

4. the sale or service of alcoholic beverages at or from the Premises; or

5. any act or omission of Tenant, its agents, employees, customers or invitees.

B. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Landlord waives and releases and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless
Tenant, its directors, officers, agents and employees, against and from all claims, actions, judgments, liabilities, cost, expenses and
fees which might be asserted against or incurred by Landlord, its directors, officers, employees or agents, for or in connection with
any injuries to or deaths of any persons and any losses of and damages to property sustained by Tenant, its visitors, customers,
agents and employees, any other tenant or occupant of the Premises or the Building, or any other person, occurring in or about the
Building or the Premises, resulting directly or indirectly from:

1. any existing or future condition, defect matter or thing in or about the Premises, the Building or any part thereof
resulting from or in connection with Landlord’s operation;
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2. the Building, the Premises or any part thereof becoming out of repair, malfunctioning, breaking, bursting, erupting or
exploding;

3. any accident or occurrence within the Landlord’s “cyclery”; or
4. any act or omission of Landlord, its agents, employees, customers or invitees.

C. Tenant at all times shall maintain fire and extended coverage insurance insuring its interest in all furniture, fixtures,
equipment, supplies and other personal property located in the Premises or elsewhere in the Building and all tenant improvements to
the Premises, for the full insurable replacement cost thereof, plus business interruption insurance. Without limiting any other
agreement or obligation of Tenant hereunder, Tenant shall waive and release all claims, rights and causes of action against
Landlord, its directors, officers, employees and insurance maintained or required to be maintained by Tenant; and all proceeds
payable under such policies for damage to the property or tenant improvement of Tenant shall be paid in trust jointly to Landlord
and Tenant and be used to repair or replace the damaged property and improvements, unless this Lease is terminated as provided
elsewhere hereunder. Tenant also at all times shall maintain comprehensive general liability and property damage insurance through
financially responsible insurance companies satisfactory to Landlord, insuring Landlord and Tenant with respect to the Premises
and all adjacent ways, containing a contractual liability endorsement, in amounts of less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) in
the event of injury or death of any person, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) in the event of property damage. Tenant may have
self insurance with respect to plate glass insurance. All such insurance policies shall require at least twenty (20) days prior written
notice to Landlord before termination or modification; and current certificates of such insurance showing Landlord as named
insured shall be maintained and delivered to Landlord.

If any damage to the Premises, the Building or the tenants thereof is caused by any act or omission of Tenant, its agents,
employees, customers or invitees, Landlord, at Landlord’s option, may repair or otherwise remedy such damage; and Tenant shall
reimburse
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Landlord for all costs thereof in excess of the amounts, if any, paid to Landlord under insurance policies covering such damages.
Pending final settlement of any insurance claims covering such damages, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord in full for such costs; and
Tenant shall be refunded the amount of any insurance proceeds paid for such damages when received by Landlord. All property in
the Building or in the Premises belonging to Tenant, its agents, employees, customers, or invitees, or belonging to any other
occupant of the Premises, shall be there at the sole risk of Tenant or such other person; and Landlord shall not be liable for any
damage thereto or any theft, misappropriation or loss thereof.

XII. Fire and Casualty.

If the Building or the Premises is damaged and made substantially untenantable by fire or other casualty, and Landlord shall
determine not to restore the same or not to require Tenant to restore the Premises if Tenant causes the fire or other casualty,
Landlord may, by notice to Tenant given within one hundred twenty (120) days after such damage, terminate this Lease. Such
termination shall become effective as of the date of such damage if the Premises are so damaged, otherwise as of the date one
hundred twenty (120) days following the service of such notice of termination. Unless the Lease is terminated as herein above
provided, if the Premises are damaged by fire or other casualty, not caused in whole or in part by Tenant, Landlord shall restore the
same substantially to their prior condition, or to a similar condition of substantially equal or better utility, at Landlord’s expense,
with reasonable promptness. Unless the Lease is terminated as hereinabove provided, if 50% or more of the Premises are made
untenantable, (other than as a result of fire or casualty caused in whole or in part by Tenant) and if Landlord fails, within one
hundred twenty (120) days after Landlord is enabled to take possession of the Premises, to substantially restore the Premises Tenant
may terminate this Lease as of the end of said one hundred twenty (120) day period by giving written notice to Landlord not later
than thirty (30) days after the expiration of said one hundred twenty (120) day period. During any such period, Landlord will permit
Tenant, at no cost to Landlord, to maintain temporary banking quarters about the Premises during any period of rebuilding. Said
temporary quarters shall in no way interfere with any construction and repair work and shall not interfere with the operation of the
“Cyclery” east of the Tenant’s space.
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If the Premises are damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty caused in whole or in part by Tenant, and if Landlord does not
elect to terminate this Lease as aforesaid, this Lease shall remain in full force and effect and Tenant’s obligations to pay rent and all
other sums hereunder shall continue unabated. In such event, Tenant promptly and diligently shall restore the Premises (in
accordance with the other provisions of this Lease, including, but not limited to, the Section on “Alterations”); or, at Landlord’s
election, Landlord may restore the Premises, and Tenant shall pay all costs incurred in connection therewith, including fifteen
percent (15%) of the total restoration cost for Landlord’s administrative expense.

In the event of termination of this Lease pursuant to this Section XII, rent shall be prorated on a per diem basis and shall be paid
to the date of the fire or other casualty, unless a portion of the Premises shall be tenantable and reasonably accessible, in which case
rent shall be prorated on a per diem basis and shall be payable to the date of termination. If this Lease is not terminated in the event
of a fire or other casualty but the Premises are rendered wholly untenantable or are not reasonably accessible, rent shall abate on a
per diem basis from the date of the fire or other casualty until the Premises are ready for occupancy and reasonably accessible to
Tenant. If part of the Premises are rendered untenantable, rent shall be prorated on a square footage basis in accordance with the
part of the Premises which is usable by Tenant (as measured by Landlord) until termination or the damaged part is ready for
Tenant’s occupancy as the case may be. In all cases, due allowance shall be made for delays caused by adjustment of the insurance
claim, strikes, labor difficulties, material shortages, weather conditions, and any other causes beyond Landlord’s reasonable control;
and in no case shall Landlord be liable to Tenant, shall Tenant be entitled to terminate this Lease or shall Tenant be relieved of any
obligation (other than as expressly provided above) by virtue of any delay in completing repairs and restoration. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary herein set forth, there shall be no rent abatement or proration if the loss or damage is due to the fault,
neglect or violation of any provision of this Lease by Tenant or its employees, agents, contractors, customers or invitees; and in no
event shall Landlord be required to repair or restore any decorating, installations, alterations, additions or improvements in or to the
Premises which were not provided initially by Landlord at its cost.
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Landlord covenants to maintain adequate casualty insurance covering the Building, with replacement cost endorsement. Tenant
should have the right to self-insure with respect to plate glass replacement.

XIII. Rights and Remedies of Landlord.

A. If Tenant is adjudged bankrupt or is declared to be insolvent in any court proceeding, if a receiver or trustee is appointed for
Tenant or its property, if proceedings are commenced to wind up or liquidate Tenant’s business or affairs, if a petition is filed by or
against Tenant seeking relief under any chapter of the bankruptcy laws (and in the case of a petition against Tenant, if such petition
is not dismissed within thirty (30) days after filing), or if Tenant makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, then in any such
event, Landlord, if Landlord so elects, may terminate this Lease without notice, entry or any other action; and upon such
termination, Landlord shall be entitled to recover damages as herein and by law provided.

B. If Tenant defaults in the prompt payment of rent and such default continues for five or more days after the payment first
becomes due, if Tenant defaults in the prompt and full performance of any other obligation or the prompt and full observance of any
other provision of this Lease and such other default continues for ten or more days after notice thereof is given to Tenant, if the
Leasehold interest of Tenant is subjected to levy, execution or attachment, or if Tenant abandons the Premises, then in any such
event, Landlord, if Landlord so elects, and with or without notice or demand, may terminate Tenant’s right to possession, without
terminating this Lease; and in any such event of default, whether or not there is a termination, Landlord shall be entitled to recover
all sums and damages recoverable hereunder or by law.

C. Upon termination of this Lease, by lapse of time or otherwise, or upon termination of Tenant’s right to possession, Tenant
shall vacate the Premises immediately and shall deliver possession to Landlord; and in such event Tenant hereby grants to Landlord
full and free license to enter and repossess the Premises, with or without process of law, and to expel and exclude from possession
Tenant and all other occupants of the Premises and to
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remove any or all property therefrom, using such force as may be necessary, without being guilty of conversion of property,
trespass, eviction or forcible entry or detainer. Tenant hereby waives service of any notice or demand of any kind, including every
notice and demand prescribed by law, and agrees that the simple breach of any provision of this Lease by Tenant alone shall
constitute a forcible detainer by Tenant within the meaning of the statutes of the State of Illinois, without the need for any notice or
demand of any kind.

D. If Landlord elects to terminate Tenant’s right to possession, without terminating the Lease, no action of Landlord taken
pursuant to such election shall terminate this Lease or release Tenant from Tenant’s obligation to pay rent for the full term.

E. Upon and after regaining possession of the Premises with or without termination of the Lease, Landlord shall use reasonable
efforts to relet the Premises or part thereof for the account of Tenant for such rent, for such time and upon such terms as Landlord
shall determine; provided, however, that if there is any other vacant space in the Building, Landlord may elect to put any proposed
tenant in such other space before reletting the Premises. Landlord shall not be required to accept any tenant who does not meet
Landlord’s qualifications for tenancy of the Premises, or to observe any instructions given by Tenant about reletting. In any such
case, Landlord may make repairs, alterations, additions and improvements and may redecorate and remodel the Premises to the
extent deemed desirable by Landlord; and Tenant shall pay Landlord on demand all cost thereof, together with Landlord’s other
expenses of reletting, such as advertising, commissions, and legal fees. If the consideration collected from the new tenant by
Landlord upon and after reletting is not sufficient to pay the full amounts of all rents due or becoming due under this Lease from
time to time, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount of each deficiency on demand.

F. Tenant hereby agrees, in any suit brought against Tenant for the enforcement of any right hereunder by Landlord, to waive
trial by jury and to, with respect to any judgments rendered in favor of Landlord and against Tenant for any money due hereunder
or under any extension or renewal of this Lease, pay for all of Landlord’s expenses and costs of suit together with reasonable
attorney’s fees and to release all errors in such proceedings,
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including the issuance of execution upon any such judgment, and to stipulate that no appeal shall be prosecuted from any such
judgment or that no proceedings in chancery or otherwise shall be filed or prosecuted to interfere in any way with the operation of
such judgment or of any execution issued thereon or with any supplemental proceedings taken by Landlord to collect the amount of
any such judgment and to consent that execution on any judgment or decree may issue forthwith.

G. All property removed from the Premises by Landlord pursuant to the authority of this Lease or of law, to which Tenant may
be entitled, shall be handled, removed or stored by Landlord at the sole risk, cost and expense of Tenant; and Landlord in no event
shall be liable for conversion or be responsible for the value, preservation or safe keeping thereof. Tenant shall pay to Landlord on
demand all expenses incurred by Landlord in such handling, removal and storage.

H. Tenant shall pay all of Landlord’s costs and expenses, including the fees of counsel, agents and others retained by Landlord,
incurred in enforcing Landlord’s rights or remedies hereunder or incurred in enforcing Landlord’s rights or remedies hereunder or
incurred by Landlord in any litigation, negotiation or transaction in which Tenant causes Landlord, without Landlord’s fault, to
become involved or concerned.

L. If this Lease or Tenant’s right to possession is terminated prior to the Lease expiration date set forth in the Schedule, Tenant
shall be liable for and shall pay to Landlord the unamortized amount of all rent abated, credited or forgiven for Tenant and the
unamortized costs of all decorations, installations, additions, alterations and improvements made in respect to the Premises and paid
for or credited to Tenant by Landlord; and the entire amount thereof shall be due and payable immediately upon termination.

J. If Tenant fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder or violates any of the provisions of this Lease, Landlord may (but
need not) cure such default in whole or in part, in which event Tenant shall pay Landlord on demand as additional rent the amount
of all costs, expenses and fees insured by Landlord in connection therewith.

-32-

11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

K. To the fullest extent allowed by law, Tenant waives its right to a jury trial in any action under or with respect to this Lease or
the Premises.

L. In addition to any interest payable thereon, Tenant shall pay Landlord on demand a late charge equal to Twenty-Five and
00/100 Dollars ($25.00) per day for each day the rent remains delinquent and unpaid and all delinquent rent shall, at Landlord’s
request, be paid by certified funds. Any other sums due under this Lease and remaining unpaid for more than thirty (30) days, after
notice to Tenant that said sums are due and payable, shall be paid thereafter together, from the date of such Notice, with interest at
the rate set forth in Paragraph I. D. of this Leasing Agreement.

M. All rights and remedies of Landlord provided herein and available at law and in equity shall be separate and cumulative; and
any of them may be exercised singly, concurrently, alternatively and in any order without prejudice to any other of them.

N. Whenever Landlord’s consent is required under the term of this Lease, said consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

XIV. Bankruptcy or Insolvency.

If Landlord’s right to terminate this Lease pursuant to Section XIII(A) above is not elected, upheld or enforced, the following
provisions shall apply in the event of the bankruptcy or insolvency of Tenant:

A. If Tenant files a petition under Chapters 7, 11 or 13 of the Bankruptcy Code, or if an order for relief is entered against Tenant
under Chapter 7, or if a proceeding filed by or against Tenant under any other chapter of the Bankruptcy Code is converted to a
chapter 11 or 13 proceeding, and if the Trustee in Bankruptcy (hereinafter referred to as “Trustee”) appointed by the Bankruptcy
Court as referred to in this Section XIV of this Leasing Agreement or Tenant as Debtor-in-Possession fails to assume this Lease
within sixty (60) days after appointment of the Trustee in a Chapter 7 proceeding or the date of the filing of such petition or
conversion in such other chapter proceeding, then the Trustee or the
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Debtor-in-Possession shall be deemed to have rejected this Lease, and Landlord shall be entitled immediately to possession of the
Premises without further obligation to Tenant or the Trustee and this Lease shall be terminated. Landlord shall be entitled to recover
all past due rent and damages in the bankruptcy proceeding, and such right shall survive termination of the Lease. Landlord’s
damages shall include the unamortized amount of all rent abated, credited or forgiven for Tenant and the unamortized costs of all
decorations, installations, alterations, additions and improvements made in respect to the Premises and paid for or credited to
Tenant by Landlord determined as of the commencement of the bankruptcy proceeding. To be effective, any election to assume this
Lease must be given in writing to Landlord, and, in Landlord’s sole business judgment, all of the following conditions, which
Landlord and Tenant acknowledge to be commercially reasonable, must have been satisfied:

1. The Trustee or the Debtor-in-Possession must have cured or must have provided to Landlord adequate assurance that the
Trustee or the Debtor-in-Possession will cure all monetary defaults within ten (10) days and all nonmonetary defaults within thirty
(30) days after the date of assumption and that within ten (10) days from the date of assumption or such other time periods as may
be imposed by the Bankruptcy Court or the any
applicable Bankruptcy (Insolvency) Code, Act or Laws, Landlord will be compensated for all pecuniary damages it has incurred
arising from the defaults of Tenant, the Trustee, or the Debtor-in-Possession, as recited in Landlord’s written statement of pecuniary
loss sent to the Trustee or Debtor-in-Possession.

2. The Trustee or the Debtor-in-Possession must have provided Landlord with adequate assurance of the timely future
performance of each of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease; provide also that:

a. The Trustee or Debtor-in-Possession must, if the Bankruptcy Court permits or orders, also deposit with Landlord as
security for the timely payment of rent, an amount equal to three months’ rent and other periodic sums accruing under this Lease;
and

b. The obligations imposed upon the Trustee or the Debtor-in-Possession must continue and be binding upon Tenant
after the completion of bankruptcy proceedings, unless the Bankruptcy Court enters an order imposing different obligations.
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3. For purposes of Subsection A(1), “adequate assurance” means that:

a. Landlord shall have determined that the Trustee or the Debtor-in-Possession has, and will continue to have, sufficient
unencumbered assets, after the payment of all secured obligations and administrative expenses, to assure Landlord that the Trustee
or the Debtor-in-Possession will have sufficient funds timely to fulfill Tenant’s obligation under this Lease and to keep the Premises
properly staffed with sufficient employees to conduct a fully operational, actively promoted business in the Premises; and

b. An order shall have been entered segregating sufficient cash payable to Landlord and/or a valid and perfected first
lien and security interest shall have been granted in property of Tenant, Trustee, or Debtor-in-Possession which is acceptable in
value and kind to Landlord, to secure to Landlord the obligation of the Trustee or Debtor-in- Possession to cure all monetary and
nonmonetary defaults under this Lease within the time periods set forth above.

B. If the Trustee or the Debtor-in-Possession has assumed this Lease and assigns or elects to assign Tenant’s interest under this
Lease or the estate created by that interest to any other person, such interest or estate may be assigned only if:

1. The assignee shall have submitted a current financial statement, audited by a certified public accountant, which
shows a net worth and working capital in amounts determined by Landlord to be sufficient to assure the future performance by the
assignee of the Tenant’s obligations under this Lease;

2. If requested by Landlord, the assignee shall have obtained guarantees, in form and substance satisfactory to
Landlord, from one or more persons who satisfy Landlord’s standards of credit worthiness; and

3. Landlord shall have obtained consents or waivers from any third parties
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which may be required under any Lease, the Bankruptcy Court, if required, mortgage, financing arrangement, or other agreement by
which Landlord is bound, to enable Landlord to permit such assignment.

C. When, pursuant to the applicable Bankruptcy Code or Act or Insolvency Laws, the Trustee or the Debtor-in-Possession is
obligated to pay reasonable use and occupancy charges for the use of all or part of the Premises, such charges shall not be less than
the Base Rent, Rental Adjustments and other sums payable by Tenant hereunder.

XV. Default by Landlord.

The Landlord agrees that if it fails to pay any installment of taxes prior to sale of said taxes or assessments or any interest,
principal, costs of other charges upon any mortgage or mortgages, or other liens and encumbrances affecting the leased Premises,
and to which this Lease may be subordinate when any of the same become due, or if the Landlord fails to make any repairs or do
any work required of the Landlord by the provisions of this Lease, or in any other respect fails to perform any covenant and
agreement in the Lease contained on the part of the Landlord to be performed, then, and in any such event or events, the Tenant,
after the continuance of any such failure of default for thirty (30) days after notice in writing thereof is given by the Tenant to the
Landlord, may at its option pay said taxes, assessments, interest, principal, costs, and other charges and cure such defaults all on
behalf of and at the expense of the Landlord, and do all necessary work and make all necessary payments in connection therewith
including but not limiting the same to the payment of any fees, costs and reasonable charges of or in connection with any legal
action which may have been brought; and the Landlord agrees to pay to the Tenant forthwith the amount so paid by the Tenant,
together with interest at the rate often percent (10% ) per annum and agrees that the Tenant may withhold any and all rental
payments thereafter becoming due to the Landlord pursuant to the provisions of this Lease or any extension thereof and may apply
the same to the payment of such indebtedness of the Landlord to the Tenant until such indebtedness is fully paid with interest as
herein provided. Nothing herein contained shall preclude the Tenant from proceeding to collect the amount so paid by it as
aforesaid without waiting for rental off-sets to accrue or from exercising any other right or remedy available to Tenant at
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law or in equity. Landlord agrees to indemnify and save Tenant harmless from all fines, claims, demands, actions, proceedings,
judgments, and damages (including court costs and reasonable attorney fees) of any kind or nature by anyone whomsoever arising
or growing out of any breach or nonperformance by Landlord of the covenants in this Lease.

XVI. Eminent Domain.

If the whole or any part of the Premises shall be taken for public or quasi-public use by a governmental authority acting under
the power of eminent domain or shall be conveyed to a governmental authority in lieu of such taking, and if such taking or
conveyance shall cause the remaining part of the Premises (if any) to be untenantable and inadequate for use by Tenant for the
purposes for which they were Lease, then Tenant, at its option, may terminate this Lease as of the date Tenant is required to
surrender possession of the Premises. If a part of the Premises shall be so taken or conveyed but the remaining part is tenantable and
adequate for Tenant’s use, then this Lease shall be terminated as to the part taken or conveyed as of the date Tenant surrenders
possession; Landlord shall make such repairs, alterations and improvements as may be necessary to render the part not taken or
conveyed tenantable; and the rent shall be reduced in proportion to the part of the Premises so taken or conveyed (as measured by
Landlord). All compensation awarded for such taking or conveyance shall be the property of Landlord without any deduction
therefrom for any present or future estate of Tenant, and Tenant hereby assigns to Landlord all its rights, title and interest in and to
any such award. However, Tenant shall have the right to recover from the governmental authority, but not from Landlord, such
compensation as may be awarded to Tenant on account of the interruption of Tenant’s business, moving and relocation expenses
and depreciation to and removal of Tenant’s trade fixtures and personal property.

XVII. Landlord’s Mortgage.

From time to time either before or after the execution of this Lease, Landlord may execute a mortgage or trust deed in the nature
of a mortgage of Landlord’s interest in the Building and/or underlying land. In such event:
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A. If and as requested by the mortgagee or trustee, Tenant will subordinate or agree to the superiority of its interest in this Lease
to said mortgage or trust deed and will execute such subordination or superiority agreement or agreements as reasonably may be
required by said mortgagee or trustee. Tenant’s obligation to subordinate to Landlord’s mortgagee is conditioned upon execution by
such mortgagee of an agreement, in form reasonably satisfactory to Tenant, providing that Tenant’s right of quiet possession and
occupancy of the Premises should not be disturbed in the even to foreclosure by such mortgagee or default under the mortgage.

B. Should such mortgage or trust deed be foreclosed, the liability of the mortgagee, trustee or purchaser at such foreclosure sale
or the liability of a subsequent owner designated as Landlord under this Lease shall exist only so long as such trustee, mortgagee,
purchaser or owner is the owner of the subject real estate, and such liability shall not continue or survive after further transfer of
ownership.

C. Tenant agrees that, in the event of any act or omission by Landlord which would give Tenant the right to terminate this Lease
or to claim a partial or total eviction, Tenant shall not exercise any such right:

1. Until it has notified in writing the holder of any mortgage or trust deed which at the time shall be a lien on the
Building or underlying land of such act or omission (if the name and address of such holder shall previously have been furnished by
written notice to Tenant); and

2. Until a reasonable period, not exceeding thirty (30) days, for commencing the remedying of such act or omission
shall have lapsed following the giving of such notice; and

3. Unless such holder, with reasonable diligence, shall not have commenced and continued to remedy such act or
omission or to cause the same to be remedied.
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D. If such mortgage or trust deed be foreclosed, upon request of the mortgagee or trustee, Tenant will attorn to the purchaser at
any foreclosure sale and will execute such instruments as may be necessary or appropriate to evidence such attornment. Likewise,
Tenant will attorn to the leasehold mortgagee (if any) in the event said leasehold mortgagee should ever become the owner of the
leasehold estate covered by its mortgage or should become the owner of any new lease in replacement or substitution of such
leasehold estate.

XVIII. Estoppel Certificate.

When requested by Landlord, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord or to its present or prospective mortgages, purchasers, auditors or
another persons designated by Landlord, a certificate stating that: this Lease is in full force and effect; Landlord is not in default (or
stating specifically any exceptions thereto); the date of acceptance of the Premises; the date of commencement of rent; the date of
commencement of the term of this Lease; the expiration date of this Lease; the amount of rent currently payable; the date to which
rent has been paid; whether or not Landlord has completed any improvements required to be made to the Premises; whether or not
Tenant has any options or rights of first refusal; and such other matters as may be reasonably required. Failure to give such a
certificate within ten (10) days after written request shall constitute a default by Tenant and also shall be conclusive evidence that
this Lease is in full force and effect and that Landlord is not in default, and Tenant shall be estopped from asserting any defaults
know to Tenant at that time.

XIX. Holding Over.

If Tenant retains possession of the Premises or any part thereof after termination of this Lease, by lapse of time or otherwise, or
after termination of Tenant’s right to possession of the Premises, Tenant shall pay Landlord for the time Tenant remains in
possession rent at double the rental rate payable for the last period prior to the date of such termination, which rate shall include
Base Rentals and Rental Adjustments as provided in Sections I and
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IT of this Landlord. Tenant also shall pay all damages sustained by Landlord by reason of such retention. Unless otherwise provided
in writing by Landlord, any such retention shall give rise to a month to month holdover. If Landlord so elects by giving written
notice thereof to Tenant, such holding over shall constitute renewal of this Landlord for one year at a rental rate equal to One
Hundred Fifty percent (150%) of the rent provided for thereunder on the stated termination date of this Lease; plus all rent that may
be pursuant to the terms hereof, as specified in Landlord’s notice. Acceptance by Landlord of rent after any such termination shall
not constitute a renewal. This section does not waive Landlord’s right of re-entry or any other right or remedy available to Landlord
upon holding over.

XX. Miscellaneous.

A. Default Under Other Lease. If the term of any lease, other than this Lease, made by Tenant for the Premises or any part
thereof or for any other space in the Building shall be terminated or terminable after the making of this Landlord, because of any
default by Tenant under such other lease, such fact shall empower Landlord, at Landlord’s sole option, to terminate this Landlord or
to exercise any of the remedies set forth in Section XIII.

B. Acts Subsequent to Default. No receipt of money by Landlord from Tenant after any default, the termination of this Landlord
or Tenant’s right to possession, the service of any notice or demand, the commencement of any suit or the entry of any judgment
shall operate to cure or waive such default, reinstate, continue or extend the term of this Lease or Tenant’s right to possession, or
affect any such notice, demand, suit or judgment.

C. Waiver of Default. No waiver of any default of Tenant shall be implied an no express waiver of any such default shall affect,
any default other than the default specified in such waiver, and then only for the time and to the extent therein stated. No waiver of
or failure to enforce any provision under any other tenant’s lease or any provision of the Building’s rules and regulations, and no
consent or permission given to any other tenant or person, shall operate to waive, diminish, or impair any similar provision relating
to Tenant or give rise to or require any similar consent or permission in the case of Tenant. The
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invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Lease, per se or as applied, shall not affect or impair any other provision of
this Lease, the remainder of which shall remain in full force and effect, or any other application of the provision in question.

D. Plats and Riders. Clauses, plats and riders, if any, signed by Landlord and Tenant and endorsed on or attached to this Lease
are a part hereof; and in the event of variation or discrepancy, the duplicate original hereof, including such clauses, plats and riders,
if any, held by Landlord shall control.

E. Meaning of Tenant. The word “Tenant” wherever used in this Landlord shall be construed to mean Tenants in all cases where
there is more than one tenant, and the necessary grammatical changes required to make the provisions hereof apply either to
corporations or individuals, men or women, shall in all cases be assumed as though in each case fully expressed. The word “term”
as used herein includes the initial Lease term and all extensions and renewals.

F. Representative Capacity. No person executing this Lease in a representative capacity for Landlord or Tenant shall be held
individually liable hereunder in the absence of fraud, provided that such person acted with due authority and the intended principals
are bound.

G. Brokers. Tenant certifies that it has not dealt with any real estate broker other than the broker identified on the Schedule and
that no other broker initiated or participated in the negotiation of this Lease, submitted or showed the Premises to Tenant or is
entitled to any commission in connection with this Landlord. Tenant agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from all
claims from and liabilities to any other real estate broker for commissions or fees in connection with this Lease and space.

H. Force Majeure. Time is of the essence. However, provision or performance by Landlord of any maintenance, repair,
restoration, improvement, facility or service shall be subject to delays due to strikes, labor problems, material shortages, Acts of
God, weather conditions, war and other cause beyond the reasonable control of Landlord.
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L. Successors and Assigns. Each provision hereof shall extend to and shall bind and inure to the benefit of Landlord and Tenant
and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, provided, however, that this Lease shall not inure to the
benefit of any heir, legal representative, transferee, successor or assign of Tenant except upon the express written consent or
election of Landlord to be exercised in Landlord’s sole and absolute discretion.

J. Rules and Regulations. Tenant agrees to comply with all reasonable rules and regulations Landlord may adopt from time to
time for the operation, management, protection and welfare of the Building and its tenants and occupants.

K. Notices. No notice or demand related to this Lease shall be effective unless in writing and either delivered personally to the
party to whom it is directed or sent by United States certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, in a sealed envelope
addressed: if to Tenant, to Tenant at the Premises, with a copy to Dr. Jeffrey Kreamer, Regency Medical Center, P.C., 782 West
Euclid, Palatine, Illinois 60067, or, if Tenant is not in possession thereof, then to Tenant’s address last known to Landlord; and, if to
Landlord, to Landlord at 1111 Waukegan Road, Northbrook, Illinois, 60062, with a copy to Stephen B. Cohen at Kelly, Olson,
Michod & DeHaan & Richter, L.L.C., 30 South Wacker Drive, Suite 2300, Chicago, IL 60606; provided that either party, by notice
to the other, from time to time may designate another address in the United States of America to which notices mailed more than ten
(10) days thereafter shall be addressed. Notices mailed as aforesaid shall be effectively given as of the date of mailing.

L. Marginal Notations. The marginal notations of this Lease are for conveniences only and in no way limit or enlarge scope or
meaning.

M. Examination of Lease. Submission of this instrument for examination or signature by Tenant does not constitute a reservation
of or option for lease and this instrument is not effective as a Lease or otherwise until execution and delivery by both Landlord and
Tenant.
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N. This Lease is subject to the renewal option granted to Tenant as set forth in Rider attached hereto and made a part hereof.

LANDLORD:
GEORGE GARNER and BARBARA GARNER

By: / &0 D

e

GEORGE P. GARNER

" Lt Jlwron

BARBARA J. GARNER

TENANT:

MIDWEST BANK AND TRUST COMPANY

L L

BRUNO P. COSTA
Its: Executive Vice-President

ATTEST:

By:

Do [l

DANIEL R. KADOLPH
Its: Executive Vice-President
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RIDER TO LEASE DATED AS OF DECEMBER 27,2007, BETWEEN GEORGE GARNER AND BARBARA GARNER,
LANDLORD, AND MIDWEST BANK AND TRUST COMPANY, TENANT, AT 585-587 ELA ROAD, IN LAKE ZURICH,
ILLINOIS.

OPTION TO EXTEND TERM.

It is expressly agreed that provided this Lease has not been theretofore canceled or terminated by operation of law or otherwise, and
that the Tenant is not in default under this Lease on the date (i) that Tenant exercises the option to extend the Term, or (ii) the
extended Term hereof commences, then Tenant is granted the option to extend the Term of this Lease for a further term of Five

(5) years commencing on the anniversary of the Commencement Date, and ending five years thereafter, subject to the same terms
and conditions as in this Lease contained, except that:

(a) Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Landlord, Tenant shall have no further option for any further renewal or extension;

(b) The Base Rent and Monthly Base Rent, subject to adjustments, during the extended term shall be as follows:

Period: Sixty (60) months
Base Rent: for 2009 $ 60,279.96
2009 Monthly Base Rent: $ 5,023.33

(c) Tenant shall deposit the additional Security Deposit set forth below upon the date Tenant exercises its Option to Renew
hereunder;

Date of Required Additional Security Deposit: Upon exercise of option to extend term.

Amount of Additional Security Deposit: $ 292.62

Total Security Deposit: $10,046.66

The Tenant, in order to exercise such Option to Extend, must serve notice of its election to extend the terms of the Leasing
Agreement upon Landlord, or its successor or assigns, by serving no later than 5:00 p.m. on a date which is One Hundred Eighty
(180) days prior to the date of expiration of this Leasing Agreement. The notice once given shall be and is irrevocable. The
aforesaid Option to Extend the Term is given to and may be enforced by the original Tenant only, and on condition that it shall not
be assigned, mortgaged or encumbered by such Tenant, nor shall it be exercisable by Tenant if all or a portion of the Premises may
have been sublet by the Tenant with or without the consent of Landlord or, pass by any devolution, assignment or transfer of this
Lease, which may be permitted by such transfer or disposition of such option to extend or attempt to accomplish such transfer or
disposition, this option to extend shall become null and void.
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(d) The Extended Term Base Rent as described herein shall increase annually to an amount equal to One Hundred Three (103%)
percent of the Base Rent which was payable for the year immediately preceding the first anniversary date of the extended Term and
Tenant shall thereafter (until further increase) pay equal monthly installments of the Base Rent as adjusted. Tenant shall pay all
monthly installments of Base Rent to Landlord, in advance, on or before the first day of each and every month during the Term,
without demand and without any set-off or deduction whatsoever, except that Tenant shall pay an amount equal to one full monthly
installment of Base Rent at the time of execution of this Lease, which amount shall be credited to the first full monthly installment

of Base Rent payable hereunder.

This rider is hereby accepted and acknowledged by both the Landlord and the Tenant as of the date of the Leasing Agreement as

noted herein above:

LANDLORD:

By: . 4— (j’? /M

GEORGE P. GARNER

Y Lo P

BARBARA J. GARNER

TENANT:

MIDWEST BANK AND TRUST COMPANY

L L

BRUNO P. COSTA
Its: Executive Vice-President

" ol

DANIEL R. KADOLPH
Its: Executive Vice-President

THIS LEASE WAS PREPARED BY STEPHEN B. COHEN, KELLY, OLSON, MICHOD DEHAAN & RICHTER, L.L.C., 30 SOUTH WACKER
DRIVE, SUITE 2300, CHICAGO, IL 60606 (PHONE: 312-236-6700; FAX 312-236-6706; AND EMAIL: SCOHEN@KOMDR.COM).

(Back To Top)
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Exhibit 10.50

Execution Copy

MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.

MUTUAL AGREEMENT RE SEVERANCE AND RETIREMENT

THIS MUTUAL AGREEMENT RE SEVERANCE AND RETIREMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of January 14, 2008 (the
“Effective Date”), by and between JOHN EILERING (the “Executive”) and MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC. (the
“Company”);

A. The Executive and his previous employer, Northwest Suburban Bancorp, Inc. (“Northwest”) have previously entered into:
that Mutual Termination Agreement dated March 22, 2007 (the “Mutual Termination Agreement”) (attached as Exhibit A
hereto), that Transitional Employment Agreement dated March 22, 2007 (the “Transitional Employment Agreement”) (attached
as Exhibit B hereto), and that Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement dated January 1, 2007 (the “SERP”) (attached as
Exhibit C hereto);

B. The Company, as successor to Northwest, has assumed all rights and obligations of Northwest as provided in the Mutual
Termination Agreement, the Transitional Employment Agreement and the SERP;

C. The Company granted to the Executive, pursuant to that Restricted Stock Award Agreement and the Restricted Stock Grant
Notice both dated October 1, 2007 (together, the “Restricted Stock Agreement”) (attached as Exhibit D hereto), 10,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock;

D. In connection with, and as a condition to, the delivery of the Restricted Stock Agreement, the Executive was required to
execute that Confidential Information and Non-Solicitation Agreement dated October 1, 2007 (the “Restrictive Covenant
Agreement”) (attached as Exhibit E hereto);

E. The Company wishes to provide for, in writing, the continued employment of the Executive through January 1, 2009;
F. The Executive desires to provide services to the Company through January 1, 2009;
G. The Executive’s employment can be extended beyond January 1, 2009, by joint agreement of both parties; and

H. For good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Executive now
desire to amend certain provisions of the Mutual Termination Agreement, Transitional Employment Agreement, SERP, Restricted
Stock Agreement and Restrictive Covenant Agreement with immediate effect.
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In consideration of the foregoing premises, which are incorporated herein by reference, and the covenants and agreements of the
parties herein contained, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment. The Company hereby agrees to continue the Executive in its employ beginning on the Effective Date through
January 1, 2009 (the “Employment Period”), with the same titles, duties and responsibilities as in effect immediately prior to the
Effective Date. The Executive agrees that during the Employment Period he shall continue to devote such time to his duties as
devoted prior to the Effective Date and shall perform such duties faithfully; provided, however, that the Executive’s continued
service for other corporations or entities, and on any other corporate, civic, charity or foundation board shall not be deemed to
breach the Executive’s obligations hereunder; provided, further, that it is the expectation of the parties that the Executive’s duties
will change following January 1, 2009, such that he shall have less direct reports and shall have added leadership responsibilities as
head of cash management for the bank (or such similar role).

2. Mutual Termination Agreement Amendment.

(a) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 2(d) of the Mutual
Termination Agreement shall be replaced with the following new Section 2(d):

“In the event of the Executive’s termination, whether voluntary or involuntary (but other than for ‘cause,’ as
defined in the Transitional Employment Agreement, whether or not such agreement is applicable or in effect),
at any time on or after January 1, 2009, the Executive shall be entitled to receive similar severance benefits as
if terminated under the Transitional Employment Agreement for the 12-month period following termination;
provided, however, that if Executive is terminated by the Company other than for ‘cause,’ prior to January 1,
2009, the Executive shall be entitled to receive similar severance benefits as if terminated under the
Transitional Employment Agreement for the 12-month period following termination; provided, further, that no
such payment shall be made under this provision if he is entitled to receive severance benefits under any other
provision of this Agreement or a transitional employment agreement. By way of clarification, it is the parties
intent that the Executive is not to receive duplicate benefits under the Transitional Employment Agreement,
this Agreement or a new transitional employment agreement (or internally in any one of the agreements).”

(b) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 3 of the Mutual Termination
Agreement shall be replaced with the following new Section 3:
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“The Executive agrees to abide by the terms of the restrictive covenant as set forth in Section 7 of the
Employment Agreement; provided, however, as of the Effective Time, the thirty-six (36) month restricted
period shall be reduced to a period beginning on the Executive’s date of termination (if such termination
occurs prior to January 1, 2009) and ending on January 1, 2009 and shall be ineffective thereafter, regardless
of the time of termination of employment or the reason for such termination of employment.”

3. Transitional Employment Agreement Amendment.

(a) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 7 of the Transitional
Employment Agreement shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with “Reserved.”

(b) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 15 of the Transitional
Employment Agreement shall be amended by adding as a part thereof immediately after the last sentence of the existing
Section 15 the following new paragraph:

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of the Executive’s termination, whether voluntary or involuntary
(but other than for ‘cause,’ as defined in Section 5(c)), at any time on or after January 1, 2009, the
Non-Solicitation Period shall be eliminated.”

4, SERP Amendment.

(a) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 2.1 of the SERP shall be
replaced with the following new Section 2.1:

“2.1 Normal Retirement Benefit. Subject to Article 6, upon the earlier of (a) the Executive’s Normal
Retirement Age, (b) Executive’s Separation from Service on or after January 1, 2009 for any reason, or (c) the
termination of the Executive by the Company for reasons other than a Termination for Cause, after

December 31, 2007 and prior to January 1, 2009, the Employer shall pay to the Executive the benefit described
in this Section 2.1 in lieu of any other benefit under this Agreement.

2.1.1 Amount of Benefit. The annual benefit under this Section 2.1 is an amount equal to the Executive’s
Final Salary multiplied by the Benefit Percentage.

2.1.2 Payment of Benefit. The Employer shall pay the annual benefit to the Executive in twelve (12) equal
monthly installments payable on the first day of each month commencing with the month following the earliest
of the three events set forth in
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Sections 2.1(a), (b) or (c). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the first payment may be made within 45 days
following such commencement date. The annual benefit shall be paid to the Executive for fifteen (15) years.”

(b) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 2.2 of the SERP shall be
replaced with the following new Section 2.2:

2.2 Early Retirement Benefit. Subject to Article 6, upon Separation from Service (a) on or after the Early
Retirement Age but before January 1, 2009 (other than as may be provided in Section 2.1(c)) for reasons other
than Disability and (b) after completing five (5) continuous years of employment with the Employer or any
Subsidiary after the Effective Date, the Employer shall pay to the Executive the benefit described in this
Section 2.2 in lieu of any other benefit under this Agreement.”

(¢) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 6.3 of the SERP shall be
amended by adding as a part thereof the following new subsection 6.3.5:

“6.3.5 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in the event of the Executive’s
Separation from Service on or after January 1, 2009, the restrictive covenants set forth in this Section 6.3 shall
cease to have any effect and the Executive shall no longer be bound by such restrictive covenants.”

(d) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Section 7.5.1 of the SERP shall be
replaced with the following new Section 7.5.1:

“7.5.1 Economic Benefit Provided to Executive. For each calendar year for which this Agreement is in force,
the economic benefit provided to Executive under this Section 7.5 is limited to current life insurance
protection in an amount equal to the total age 65 liability accrued on the Company’s records as of the end of
the preceding calendar year (the “Current Life Insurance Protection Amount”). By way of clarification, and
not limitation, it is the intent of the parties that this Section 7.5.1 shall not in anyway limit the benefits under
Article 2 of this Agreement absent the death of the Executive.”

(¢) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, Article 10 of the SERP shall be
deleted in its entirely and shall have no force and effect to reduce any benefit which may otherwise be provided to the
Executive under the SERP.
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5. Restricted Stock.

(a) The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the Effective Date, the “Restricted Stock Grant Notice”
portion of the Restricted Stock Agreement shall be amended to provide that the 10,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock subject to the Restricted Stock Agreement shall become immediately and fully vested as of the earlier of
(a) January 1, 2009, (b) the termination of the Executive by the Company for reasons other than Cause (as defined in the
Transitional Employment Agreement, whether or not such agreement is applicable or in effect), (c) the death or Disability
of the Executive, or (d) a Change in Control of the Company.

(b) In the event that the Company grants to Executive restricted stock in 2008, then the Company’s common stock subject to
such restricted stock award shall become immediately and fully vested as of the earlier of (a) January 1, 2009, (b) the
termination of the Executive by the Company for reasons other than Cause (as defined in the Transitional Employment
Agreement, whether or not such agreement is applicable or in effect), (c) the death or Disability of the Executive, or (d) a
Change in Control of the Company.

6. Restrictive Covenant Agreement Amendment. The Company and the Executive acknowledge and agree, that as of the
Effective Date, the Restrictive Covenant Agreement shall be cancelled and that neither party, nor their heirs, dependents, successors
or assigns, shall have any rights or obligations thereunder except as provided herein.

7. Code Sections 280G and 4999.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any other agreement, plan, program or arrangement, it is the intent of the parties that
there shall be no effective provisions, in any such agreement, plan, program or arrangement that would act to limit any benefits or
payment due to the Executive on the basis that such amounts exceed any limitations under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and thereby are subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code.
Additionally, it is the intent of the parties that there shall be no effective provisions in any such agreement, plan, program or
arrangement that would act to obligate the Company or any of its affiliates to reimburse the Executive for any additional taxes in the
event any benefits or payment due to Executive exceed any limitations under Section 280G of the Code and are thereby be subject
to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code.

8. Section 409A.

(a) To the extent that any of the terms and conditions contained herein constitute an amendment or modification of the time or
manner of payment under a non-qualified deferred compensation plan (as defined under Code Section 409A), then to the
extent necessary under the transitional guidance under Internal Revenue Service Notice 2007-86 (the “Transition Rules”),
this Agreement constitutes an amendment to, and a new election under, such deferred compensation plan, in order to
properly modify the time or manner of payment consistent with such guidance.
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(b) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, any amounts that are to be, or could be, distributed from a
non-qualified deferred compensation plan during 2008 due to the amendments contained herein, shall be made in
accordance with such amendments to the maximum extent permitted under the Transition Rules. It is the intent of the
parties hereto that the foregoing shall in no way limit the economic benefits contemplated by the amendments contained
herein and that the parties shall take all reasonable actions necessary which are not in contravention of Code Section 409A
to maintain to the maximum extent possible such intentions.

(c) The parties agree and acknowledge that the Executive is a “specified employee” as that term is used in Code
Section 409A(a)(2)(B), and therefore all payments to Executive that may constitute deferred compensation (as defined
under Code Section 409A), shall be deferred for a period of six (6) months from the Executive’s date of termination. For
purposes of Code Section 409A, all payments of deferred compensation made hereunder or pursuant to another plan or
arrangement, shall be deemed to be separate payments and, accordingly, the aforementioned deferral shall only apply to
separate payments which would occur during the six (6) month deferral period and all other payments shall be unaffected.
All payments deferred pursuant to this Section 8, shall be paid in full on the first day of the seventh (7th) month following
Executive’s date of termination.

(d) Itis intended that the provisions of this Agreement, and all compensation plans and programs sponsored by the Company in
which Executive participates, comply with, or remain exempt from, Code Section 409A, and all provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in a manner consistent with such intentions. From and after the Executive’s
date of termination, (i) the Company shall administer and operate this Agreement and any non-qualified deferred
compensation plan (and any other arrangement that could reasonably be expected to constitute such a plan) in which the
Executive participates and the Executive’s rights and benefits hereunder and thereunder in compliance with Code
Section 409A and any rules, regulations or other guidance promulgated thereunder as in effect from time to time, and (ii) in
the event that the Company determines that any provision of this Agreement or any such plan or arrangement does not
comply with Code Section 409A or any such rules, regulations or guidance and that the Executive may become subject to
an additional tax under Code Section 409A (a “Section 409A Tax”), the Company shall amend or modify such provision,
to the extent possible, to avoid the application of the Section 409A Tax. In the event the Company is unable to amend or
modify a provision to avoid application of the Section 409A Tax, the Executive will remain responsible to pay the
Section 409A Tax. Moreover, the Company will not indemnify the Executive for the Section 409A Tax.

9. Indemnification. In the event that legal action is instituted against the Executive during or after the term of his or her
employment by a third party (or parties) based on the performance or nonperformance by Executive of his or her duties as an officer
or director of the
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Company or any of its affiliates or a fiduciary of any benefit plan maintained by the Company or any of its affiliates during his or
her employment with the Company, the Resulting Entity, their successors and predecessors (collectively, the “Indemnifying
Party”) or their affiliates, the Indemnifying Party will assume the defense of such action by its attorney or attorneys selected by the
Indemnifying Party and will advance the costs and expenses thereof (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) and will indemnify the
Executive against any judgment or amounts paid in settlement of said actions in accordance with its charter, by-laws, insurance and
applicable law, without prejudice to or waiver by the Indemnifying Party of its rights and remedies against Executive. In the event
that there is a settlement or final judgment entered against Executive in any such litigation, and the Indemnifying Party’s Board of
Directors determines that Executive should, in accordance with the Indemnifying Party’s charter, by-laws, insurance and applicable
law, reimburse the Indemnifying Party, Executive shall be liable to the Indemnifying Party for all such costs, expenses, damages
and other amounts paid or incurred by the Indemnifying Party in the defense, settlement or other resolution of any such litigation
(the “Reimbursement Amount”). The Reimbursement Amount shall be paid by Executive within thirty (30) days after rendition of
the final judgment. The Indemnifying Party shall be entitled to set off the reimbursement amount against all sums which may be
owed or payable by the Indemnifying Party to Executive hereunder or otherwise. The parties shall cooperate in the defense of any
asserted claim, demand or liability against Executive or the Indemnifying Party or its subsidiaries or affiliates. The term “final
judgment” as used herein shall be defined to mean the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, and in the event of an appeal,
then the decision of the appellate court, after petition for rehearing has been denied, or the time for filing the same (or the filing of
further appeal) has expired.

The rights to indemnification under this Section 8(d) shall be in addition to any rights which Executive may now or hereafter
have under the charter or By-Laws of the Indemnifying Party or any of its affiliates, under any insurance contract maintained by the
Indemnifying Party or any of its affiliates or any agreement between Executive and the Indemnifying Party or any of its affiliates.

10. Legal Fees.

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any other agreement, plan, program or arrangement, in the event of any
controversy or claim by either party under this Agreement, or any other agreement, plan, program or arrangement in which
Executive is the prevailing party in any final and legally binding adjudication (as to which all periods for the filing of any
appeal have expired) with respect to such controversy or claim or which controversy or claim is settled by mutual
agreement between the parties, Executive shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Company for reasonable attorney’s
fees and costs and for all other reasonable expenses of such adjudication

(b) The Company shall pay legal fees for the drafting and negotiating of this Agreement directly to the law firm of Barack
Ferrazzano Kirschbaum & Nagelberg, LLP (the “Firm”), with such payment to be made within fifteen (15) calendar days
following the Effective Date. The payment of such fees shall be reflected on an IRS Form 1099 designating the Firm as the
payee and the Company as the payor.
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11. Conflicting Provisions.
In the event of any inconsistency between this Agreement and any other agreement, plan, program, policy or practice (collectively,
“Other Provision”) of the Company, the provision which is more favorable to Executive shall control, unless such Other Provision
provides otherwise by a specific reference to this Section 11.

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, without regard to
the conflict of law provisions of any jurisdiction.

13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

14. Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns; provided, however, that neither party hereto may assign this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be assigned, without the prior consent of the
Executive to a successor of the Company (and the Executive hereby consents to the assignment of the covenants under this
Agreement to a purchaser of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or a transferee, by merger or otherwise, of all or
substantially all of the businesses and assets of the Company) and, upon the Executive’s death, this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and be enforceable by the Executive’s executors, administrators, representatives, heirs, distributees, devisees, and
legatees and all amounts payable hereunder shall be paid to such persons or the estate of the Executive.

[Remainder of page intentionally blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed as of the Effective Date.

/s/ John G. Eilering Date: 1/14/08
JOHN EILERING

MIDWEST BANC HOLDINGS, INC.

/s/ James J. Giancola Date: 1/14/08
By: James J. Giancola
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

(Back To Top)
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EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

Subsidiary or Organization
Midwest Bank and Trust Company [llinois
MBHI Capital Trust 111 Delaware
MBHI Capital Trust IV Delaware
MBHI Capital Trust V Delaware
Royal Capital Trust I Delaware
Northwest Suburban Capital Trust I Delaware
MBTC Investment Company Nevada
Midwest Funding, L.L.C. Delaware
Midwest Financial and Investment Services, Inc. Illinois

(Back To Top)
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-147295, 333-123603 and
333-36564) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-134180, 333-132491 and 333-125191) of Midw est Banc Holdings, Inc. of our report dated
March 14, 2008 relating to the financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears
in this Form 10-K.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 14, 2008

(Back To Top)

Section 6: EX-31.1 (CERTIFICATION)

198 of 201 11/18/2008 10:22 AM



Document Contents http://www.snl.com/Cache/c5772400.htm

EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, James J. Giancola, President and Chief Executive Officer, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc.;

2) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ James J. Giancola
James J. Giancola
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 14, 2008

(Back To Top)
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Jan R. Thiry, Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc.;

2) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Jan R. Thiry
Jan R. Thiry
Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer

Date: March 14, 2008

(Back To Top)
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Midwest Banc Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”’) on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 14,
2008 (the “Report™), the undersigned hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ James J. Giancola
Name: James J. Giancola
Title: President and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 14, 2008

/s/ Jan R. Thiry
Name: Jan R. Thiry
Title: Senior Vice President and
Chief Accounting Officer

Date: March 14, 2008
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